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Mid-nineteenth century Baltimore was the center of a significant moment in the history of American decorative arts, when album
quilt making rose to a high level of sophistication, using highly complex and unique designs. Due to Baltimore’s role as a port city, a wide array of

international textiles could be incorporated into the quilts made there.

The quilt on the cover was created for lay preacher Samuel Williams. Featuring forty-two designs made by his relatives and friends,
it has squares that depict Baltimore history, including a railroad car from the B&O Railroad and the Baltimore Battle Monument. The quilt also

features complex floral arrangements and an appliquéd border.

The quilt is part of an exhibition, Baltimore Album Quilts: Appliquéd Artistry, on display at The Baltimore Museum of Art,
November 5, 2003 through May 9, 2004, featuring more than twenty exceptional album quilts and individual squares created in Baltimore between
1845 and 1865.

This is the fifth in a series of annual reports to feature the work of regional artists in the communities supported by M&I" Bank.

American, Baltimore. Friends and family of Samuel Williams. Baltimore Album Quilr. 1846-1847. Gift of Serena O’Laughlen Wagner, Baltimore. The Baltimore Museum of Art.
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The annual meeting of stockholders will take place at 11:00 a.m. on April 20, 2004
at One M&I' Plaza in Buffalo.

M&T Bank Corporation is a bank holding company headquartered in
Buftalo, New York, which had assets of $49.8 billion at December 31,2003.
M&T Bank Corporation’s subsidiaries include Manufacturers and Traders

Trust Company and M&I" Bank, National Association.

Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company has offices in New York State,
Pennsylvania, Maryland, Delaware, Virginia, West Virginia and the District of

Columbia, and has an office in the Cayman Islands. Major subsidiaries include:

Highland Lease Corporation M&T Realty Capital Corporation
M&T Credit Corporation M&T Securities, Inc.
Mg&T Financial Corporation Matthews, Bartlett &

M&T Mortgage Corporation Dedecker, Ine.

M&T Real Estate Trust MTB Investment Advisors, Inc.



M&T BANK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Financial Highlights

2003 2002 Change
For the year
Performance Net income (thousands) . . . ... ........ $573,942 456,752 + 26%
Return on
Average assets . . . ..o 1.27% 1.43%
Average common equity . . . .. ... ... .. 11.62% 15.09%
Net interest margin . . . . . .. ... ....... 4.09% 4.36%
Net charge-offs/average loans. . . . . . ... .. .28% 42%
Efficiency ratio®. . . . ... ... L. 56.79% 54.20%
Per common share data Basicearnings . . . ... ... L $ 5.08 4.94 + 3%
Diluted earnings. . . . ... ... ... ... ... 495 478 + 4%
Cash dividends. . . .. ........ .. ..... 1.20 1.05 + 14%
Net operating (tangible) results"”  Net operating income (thousands) . . . . . .. $660,931 489,243 + 35%
Diluted net operating earnings
per common share . ... ... L 5.70 5.12 + 11%
Net operating return on
Average tangible assets. . . . ... ... ... 1.55% 1.59%
Average tangible common equity. . . . . . .. 28.49% 26.71%
Efficiency ratio™. . . . ... ... L. 53.59% 51.30%
At December 31
Balance sheet data (millions) Loans and leases,
net of unearned discount . . .. ... ... .. $ 35,772 25,728 + 39%
Totalassets. . . .. ................. 49.826 33,201 + 50%
Deposits . . . ... ... oo 33,115 21,665 + 53%
Stockholders’ equity . ... ... ... ... ... 5,717 3,208 + 78%
Loan quality Allowance for credit losses/net loans. . . . . . . 1.72% 1.70%
Nonperforming loans ratio. . . . . ... ..... .67% .84%
Capital Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio . . . . . ... ... 7.30% 8.02%
Total risk-based capital ratio. . . . .. ... ... 11.20% 11.20%
Leverageratio . . .. ................ 6.98% 7.05%
Common equity/total assets. . . . .. .. .... 11.47% 9.66%
Common equity (book value) per share . . . . . $ 47.55 34.82 + 37%
Tangible common equity per share . . . . .. .. 21.97 22.04 -
Market price per share
Closing. . .. ................... 98.30 79.35 + 24%
High .. ...... ... .. ... ... ... 98.98 90.05
Low. . ... 74.71 67.70

@ Excludes impact of merger-related expenses and net securities transactions.

® Excludes amortization and balances related to goodwill and core deposit and other intangible assets and merger-velated expenses which, except in
the calculation of the efficiency ratio, are net of applicable income tax effects. A reconciliation of net income and net operating income appears on

page 24.

) Net operating income excludes the after-tax impact of merger-velated expenses of $39 million or $.34 per diluted share in 2003.



DILUTED EARNINGS
PER COMMON SHARE

1999 | 2000 | 2001 | 2002 | 2003

W $3.69 $4.11 $4.63 8512 $5.70
B $3.13 $3.24 $3.58 $4.78 $4.95

M Diluted net operating®
M Diluted

NET INCOME
In millions

1999 | 2000 | 2001 | 2002 | 2003

$297.8 $340.7 $457.3 $489.2 $660.9
$252.4 $268.2 $353.1 $456.8 $573.9
Net operating income®

Net income

RETURN ON AVERAGE COMMON
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

1999 | 2000 | 2001 | 2002 | 2003

25.40% 26.02% 26.76% 26.71% 28.49%
W 14.47% 13.11% 11.87% 15.09% 11.62%

Net operating return on average tangible
common stockholders’ equity®
I Return on average common stockholders’

equity

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
PER COMMON SHARE AT YEAR-END

1999 | 2000 | 2001 | 2002 | 2003

W $2336 $29.09 $3154 $34.82 $47.55
W $1526 $16.89 $1854 $22.04 $2197

1 Stockholders’ equity per common share
at year-end

B Tangible stockholders’ equity per common
share at year-end

@ Excludes merger-related expenses, net of applicable income tax effects. A reconcilintion of net
operating (tangible) results with net income is included on page 24.
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MESSAGE TO STOCKHOLDERS



he past year must be viewed as a significant milestone in the history of

Mg&I' Bank Corporation, thanks to the closing, at the start of the second
quarter, of the largest merger in our history. That merger, with the Baltimore-
based Allfirst Financial Inc. (Allfirst) expanded our geographic reach, increased by
more than half (269) the size of our network of branches, and led to our being
ranked among the twenty largest publicly-traded bank holding companies in the
United States, as measured by total assets. Indeed, as a result of the merger, total
assets grew by 49%, total deposit balances increased by 50% and noninterest
income rose by 54%. A full report on the progress of our combination with the
former Allfirst follows below. It must be noted at the outset, though, that growth
in M&I”s net income and earnings per share in 2003 was driven, in significant
part, by asset and deposit growth resulting from the merger, coupled with
increased lending to consumers for homes and automobiles. Such factors were
tempered by increased expenses for daily operations that reflect our expanded scale,
amortization of intangible assets, and costs associated with combining the
operations of the former Allfirst with those of M&T.

Using generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), M&I’s diluted
carnings per share in 2003 were $4.95 and net income for last year was $574
million. Those measures improved by 4% and 26% from $4.78 and $457 million,
respectively, in 2002. The differential in the rate of increase between the two
measures reflects the issuance of 26.7 million common shares on April 1 of last
year to Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c. (AIB) in connection with the merger with Allfirst.
In addition to the shares, we paid $886 million to AIB to complete the transaction.
In return we received $16 billion of assets, including $10 billion of loans and
leases, and assumed $14 billion of liabilities, including $11 billion of deposits.

Net income in 2003 represented a rate of return on average assets of 1.27%
and on average common stockholders’ equity of 11.62%. The comparable rates
of return in 2002 were 1.43% and 15.09%.

Since 1998, we have provided supplemental reporting of earnings on a
“net operating” or “tangible” basis. In contrast to GAAP-basis results, net
operating results exclude the after-tax effect of core deposit and other intangible
assets — both in the income statement and on the balance sheet — and merger-
related expenses associated with the integration of acquired operations with and
into M&TI'. We have consistently reported in this way to help investors understand
the effect of merger activity in M&I’s reported results.

Merger-related expenses last year amounted to $39 million after applicable
income tax effect, or 34 cents per diluted share. There were no merger-related

expenses in 2002. Non-cash charges for amortization of core deposit and other



intangible assets, also after income tax effect, totaled $48 million in 2003, or
41 cents per diluted share. In 2002, amortization charges, net of tax effect,
were $32 million or 34 cents per diluted share. The increased level of
amortization was a direct consequence of the Allfirst merger.

Diluted net operating earnings per share, which exclude merger-related
expenses and charges for core deposit and other intangible assets, grew 11% last
year to $5.70. In 2002 net operating earnings per diluted share were $5.12.
For all shares in the aggregate, net operating income in 2003 totaled $661 million.
That was a 35% jump from $489 million a year ecarlier. The net operating return
on average tangible assets slipped a bit, though, as we integrated the acquired
operations with those we had previously. That return was 1.55% last year,
compared with 1.59% in 2002. The net operating return on average tangible
equity rose, however, to 28.49% in 2003 from 26.71% in 2002.

As required by the Securities and Exchange Commission, reconciliations
of GAAP-basis net income and net operating income, average total assets and
average tangible assets, and average total stockholders’ equity and average tangible
stockholders’ equity appear on page 24 of this report.

Last year also witnessed a significant change in M&I accounting policy.
As explained in these pages a year ago, M&I" began reporting stock-based
compensation as a component of operating expenses in 2003. In implementing
the change, M&I not only charged stock-based compensation expense to last year’s
results, but elected to restate previously reported financial results to also include
stock-based compensation in determining net income for earlier years, as allowed
by the accounting rule makers at the Financial Accounting Standards Board.
Oftentimes restatements of previously reported financial information are not
looked upon favorably. However, in this instance, the restatement clearly enhances
the comparability and transparency of the information reported. As a result of
our chosen method of implementation, stock-based compensation is recognized
as an expense in all GAAP-basis and net operating-basis results presented in this
Annual Report. After applicable tax effect, stock-based compensation amounted to
$32 million, or 27 cents per diluted share, in 2003 and $28 million, or 29 cents
per diluted share, in 2002.

Comparisons of financial statement line item details between years are
complicated by the merger of Allfirst into M&I'. For example, the pro-rated
nine-month impact of the $10 billion added to the company’s loan portfolio on
the merger date was the major element in the loan total’s 33% growth from its
2002 average level of $25.5 billion to last year’s $34.0 billion. That $8.5 billion

increment also includes a $1 billion rise in the average outstanding balance of



loans to consumers for financing the purchase of automobiles and other vehicles,
plus growth of more modest proportions in other loan categories.

The rate profile of loans acquired in the merger contributed greatly to the
downward drift in the average taxable-equivalent rate earned on the loan portfolio
in 2003. That rate declined last year to 5.61% from 6.57% in 2002. Likewise, the
average taxable-equivalent rate earned on the company’s $39.5 billion average
total of earning assets declined by nearly the same number of basis points
(hundredths of one percent) as the fall in the average rate on loans, moving from
6.42% in 2002 to 5.42% in 2003.

The average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities went down by 78 basis
points last year, from 2.39% to 1.61%. The differing magnitude of decline resulted
in a 22 basis point narrowing of the spread between the average rates earned and
paid. The net interest spread was 3.81% in 2003 and 4.03% in 2002. The lowered
net interest spread curbed year-to-year growth in taxable-equivalent net interest
income, the main component of net income. At $1.62 billion last year, it was 28%
higher than 2002’s $1.26 billion.

Net charge-offs of loans — that is, the amount by which charge-ofts of loans
exceeded recoveries of loans previously charged oft — declined last year both in
dollar total and as a percentage of average loans outstanding. Net charge-ofts
were $97 million in 2003, or .28% of average loans outstanding. A year earlier,
net charge-ofts were $108 million, or .42% of the total loan average. There were
no significant net charge-ofts of loans acquired in the merger with Allfirst during
the nine months of 2003 that we operated that franchise.

The ratio of nonperforming loans to total loans also improved last year.
At December 31, 2003, nonperforming loans totaled $240 million. That was
cqual to .67% of the $35.8 billion of loans outstanding. At December 31, 2002,
nonperforming loans were $215 million, or .84% of the $25.7 billion of loans
then outstanding.

The provision for credit losses in 2003 was $131 million, or $34 million
more than net charge-offs. The provision in 2002 was $122 million, some
$14 million more than that year’s net charge-offs. At 2003’s end, the allowance
for credit losses — including an existing allowance of $146 million that came
with Allfirst’s loans in the merger — stood at $614 million and was equal to 1.72%
of outstanding loans. At December 31, 2002, the allowance of $436 million was
equal to 1.70% of the then outstanding loan total.

Noninterest income grew significantly — expanding 62% to $831 million
last year from $512 million in 2002. Nearly nine-tenths of that increase can be

sourced to operations or market areas associated with the former Allfirst franchise.



The remainder was largely due to higher fee revenues earned from providing
deposit account services to customers and from our residential mortgage loan
origination and sales activities.

Noninterest operating expenses, which exclude the merger-related expenses
and amortization charges, bulged to $1.31 billion last year, 44% above the 2002
total of $910 million. The elevated expenses reflect the breadth of our post-
merger operations. A reconciliation of noninterest operating expenses and total
noninterest expenses appears on page 24.

Because the operational integration of Allfirst with M&TI occurred over the
last nine months of 2003, some redundant operations co-existed during that
period. As a result, M&I’s efficiency ratio — that is, noninterest operating expenses
as described above divided by the sum of taxable-equivalent net interest income
and noninterest income (exclusive of securities transactions) — came in at 53.6%

in 2003, compared with 51.3% for the prior year.

One might say that the merger with Allfirst was an endeavor for which the
employees of M&I' Bank have been preparing for more than a decade, as we have
steadily grown and built our capacity to integrate institutions of larger and larger
size with our operations. Indeed, at the time we acquired ONBANCorp in 1998 it
was roughly one-third the size of M&T; at the time we acquired Keystone in 2000,
it too was about one-third the size of a larger M&I'; and, at the time we acquired
Allfirst this past year, it was nearly half the size of a still-larger M&I'. Clearly the
last six years have been a period of ambitious growth for this company; each of the
mergers we have completed was larger, in absolute terms, than the last, just as
each one was large in relationship to our own size at the time. The Allfirst merger
is, in other words, the latest of a series of challenges of steadily increasing magnitude.
As we have undertaken each, we have focused on our core values and strengths:
our role as a community banker, hiring and retaining top-quality employees,
smooth execution of our conversion plan, and attention to value for shareholders.
Underlying all, is our commitment to honesty, integrity and transparency.

Still, as well-prepared as we were for it and as much as it resembled, in
scale, previous mergers, there can be little doubt that the Allfirst integration has
represented both the greatest challenge, as well as the greatest opportunity, in
Mg&I”s history. This is to report both that we have made significant progress
toward our goal of profitably incorporating the Allfirst franchise, as judged by
such measures as the retention of customers and the reduction in costs — and, too,

that much remains to be accomplished.



In discussing Allfirst, it remains important to keep in mind that this
merger is, in significant ways, different from those previous, in both quantitative
and qualitative regards. Our new markets, for instance, and their population of
8.2 million, not only represent the largest single addition ever to our potential
customer base (a 72% increase when compared with the 11.4 million population
of our “vintage” markets in upstate New York and central Pennsylvania) but are
both growing faster and are more affluent. Their 1.2% annual rate of population
growth is four-times the .3% average of our pre-Allfirst market region. Indeed,
the 1.1% annual population growth (1990-2002) in Maryland alone compares
to just a 0.1% annual increase in upstate New York during the same period.
Moreover, despite their relatively smaller current population, our new markets’
aggregate net income ($308.4 billion in 2001) virtually matched that of our
combined upstate New York and central Pennsylvania markets ($311.2 billion).
Put another way, per capita personal income in the “new” markets ($38,060)
was 39% higher than that of our vintage markets ($27,450). The promise of
these markets is reflected not only in the fact that the Baltimore-Washington
area is the nation’s fourth-largest metropolitan statistical area but that five of
the 20 wealthiest counties in the country are located there.

Greater affluence is, of course, good news for any financial institution
seeking to attract deposits and offer lending products and other financial services.
At the same time, however, a more affluent market is, inevitably, a more
competitive one. In entering the Maryland, District of Columbia and northern
Virginia markets, we entered a region in which a considerable number of major
national and regional competitor banks were already well-established — and were
accustomed to spending heavily on advertising to gain and maintain public
awareness of their brand names, products and services. In fact, annual spending
on bank industry advertising in the Baltimore /Washington markets totaled some
$32 million, or three-times the cost of such spending in the Buffalo, Rochester
and Syracuse markets combined (19% more on a per capita basis). Needless to
say, there was, in the Baltimore-Washington area, little or no awareness at all of the
M&I' name at the time of our merger with Allfirst — whose own brand name was
relatively new to a region which had been more familiar with some of its
predecessor institutions, such as the First National Bank of Maryland.

Nor was a need to establish awareness of the M&I' name our only
challenge. At the time of the merger, the Allfirst cost structure — as measured by
its efficiency ratio (70.5%) — compared unfavorably with that of the previously-
existing M&I" operations (49.8%).

Notwithstanding these significant challenges, we have, to date, much
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more than held our own in the former Allfirst markets. The credit for this must
go first, and foremost, to a capable and dedicated workforce inherited from Allfirst
itself. More than 4,000 former Allfirst employees — notably those with direct
contact with customers — were kept on after the merger. The retained former
Allfirst employees — whether in consumer, business or commercial banking,
whether in branches or the Baltimore main office — made certain their customers
were well-taken care of through the transition period. They have been
complemented by hundreds of dedicated M&I' employees who joined with them,
working long hours far from home or, indeed, permanently relocating to Baltimore
and other locations, to help smooth the integration, whether through painstaking
conversion of vital information technology systems or by “buddying” with
individual Allfirst employees to familiarize them with M&I" procedures and culture.

In addition, however, as befits the different nature of the former Allfirst
markets, we have taken some new and distinct approaches in our effort to
make this merger successful. As a conservatively-run firm, for instance, we had
traditionally focused, in our advertising, on the products and services we
make available to potential customers. We recognized, however, that gaining
recognition for the M&I' name such that our message would be heard in our new
markets was a notable challenge. A heavy investment in conventional advertising
might have borne fruit only slowly — and ran the risk of not sufficiently
distinguishing ourselves from our well-established competitors.

It was in this context that we entered into an agreement with Baltimore’s
National Football League team, the Ravens, to purchase the naming rights to
what had been known simply as Ravens Stadium. It was our hope that what
initially appeared to us to be a high price — $75 million over 15 years — would
prove to be a bargain, when compared with the cost of other avenues to
establish the M&I' name. There is good reason to believe that this has, indeed,
proven to be the case. In September 2003 — just four months after the naming
rights announcement, and just five months after the closing of the Allfirst
transaction — M&I found that our “unaided top-of-mind brand awareness” in
the Baltimore region went from virtually nil to third place among 18 financial
institutions included in our survey. Indeed, over the course of the past
professional football season, M&I' Bank Stadium became familiar to television
viewers and sports page readers across the country, through broadcasts and
reports of Ravens” home games. Professional football, it’s worth noting, is ranked
as the number one spectator sport in the U.S., with some 100 million fans.

Although the stadium naming rights were, from a marketing point of

view, a departure from our past practice, they should, in a larger sense, be



understood as much in keeping with the traditional (and traditionalist) M&T
approach to our business. We have always considered and presented ourselves as
a community bank — a “hometown” bank, if you will — one interested in the
needs and issues of the places we serve. So it has been in Baltimore and other
parts of the former Allfirst markets, in ways small and large. The M&I" Bank All
Community Team, for instance, brings together the Ravens and Baltimore’s
business leadership to support fundraising and volunteer projects to benefit
Baltimore. Our long-standing interest in supporting education is reflected in the
advent of the M&I" Bank Honor Rows — through which 150 children from
socially and economically disadvantaged backgrounds receive free football
tickets, as a reward for academic performance. The M&I'-donated “Believemobile”
has allowed the city of Baltimore to bring entertainment on a professional
soundstage to some of the city’s poorest neighborhoods. Working with a local
non-profit, Operation Hope, 30 of our employees have made a four-week
volunteer commitment to teach financial literacy in the Baltimore public schools.
And we have contributed $1 million towards the renovation of Baltimore’s
historic, newly-reopened Hippodrome Theatre. Not only will this historic
renovation provide the city with a world-class venue for Broadway-quality
theatre but will, we believe, help maintain the momentum of renewal ongoing
on Baltimore’s west side. Thus we hope to have played a role not only in
improving the city’s quality of life but in sparking economic development.

Broadly, it was our belief that our competitors were viewed as national
banks; we set out to be in our new markets what we have always been in our
vintage markets — a local bank. To do so, our management team (led by Eugene
Sheehy and Atwood Collins, IIT — the latter a long-time member of the M&I'
management team who also has deep family roots in Baltimore) has worked
diligently to link the bank with prominent and effective local organizations —
ranging from an effort to improve minority entrepreneurship to the campaign
to preserve Maryland’s greatest natural resource, the Chesapeake Bay.

But no forms of public relations and community service would bear fruit
were we not able to deliver consistently good service to our new customers.
Mergers are demanding, often in unexpected ways. We’ve had to work to
be able to give customers what they want, even if that means making quick
adjustments — such as tripling our e-mail response staffing so as to successfully
handle inquires from customers in the first days after the Allfirst conversion, or
quickly fixing the problem that was making it difficult for customers to activate
M&I Business Visa Cards. Our commercial banking business, in particular, faced

special challenges. Allfirst had emphasized fee revenue by providing a broad
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array of customized cash management and depository services to large commercial
and government customers. On these dimensions, Allfirst’s commercial banking
business was significantly larger than M&I”s. In order to retain such customers
more than 120 separate Allfirst commercial products had to be made consistent
with M&lI practices. Some 99,000 person-hours were required just for information
technology adaptations. It was an investment we did not hesitate to make.
We well appreciate that our responsiveness, or lack of it, as well as maintaining
consistent service even in such relatively small matters throughout the course of
a merger conversion, does much to establish our overall long-term reputation in
our new markets.

More broadly, the merger of M&I" and Allfirst has been, in a number of ways,
a merger of businesses with their own comparative advantages. The international
trade expertise of Allfirst has now been complemented by M&I’s expertise in
residential mortgage finance, for instance; to M&I”s familiarity with automobile
floor plan financing has been added Allfirst’s knowledge of lending to government
contractors. It’s our hope and belief that, through such complements, the whole
of this larger company will be greater than the sum of its previous parts.

The early results of this, our largest merger yet, are, indeed, promising.
Six months after the conversion of customer data to M&I’s operating systems,
consumer demand deposit and NOW account balances in the former Allfirst
markets had grown by 7.6%, to $2.1 billion. In those same markets, checking
account sales in 2003 exceeded those of 2002 by 12.7%. What’s more, M&I" has
successfully retained former Allfirst households. In the first five months
following conversion — arguably a period of vulnerability for a new entrant to
the market — some 96.5% of consumer households remained M&I' customers
(compared with 95.8% in our vintage markets over the same period).
Significantly, during that same time frame we have retained 98.1% of the most
profitable former Allfirst households, compared to 96.0% in our vintage markets.
We were similarly successful in retaining commercial business. Although we
chose not to continue to originate loans in several specialized areas not in
keeping with our traditional focus (such as maritime lending), nonetheless,
virtually all Allfirst’s large corporate, middle market, commercial real estate and
government banking customers continue to bank with M&I'. By all these counts,
we have improved upon our performance during the initial six-month period
following our last major merger, that of Keystone Financial in October 2000.
Notwithstanding their impressiveness, such figures, nonetheless mask the
enormity of the task and the accomplishment; Allfirst, after all, brought us some

1.4 million customers who needed to be served and served well.



In addition to maintaining and expanding our customer base, we have
made progress in controlling costs in the former Allfirst franchise. We estimate
that, as of December 31, 2003, we had realized the run-rate cost savings which
we estimated at the time of the merger announcement. This is not, however,
to say, that this work is done.

In short, our experience, to date, in the markets we have entered as a
result of the Allfirst merger, has done nothing to shake and everything to confirm
our initial confidence in the most ambitious expansion effort in M&I history.
Nevertheless, we do not underestimate the extent of the continuing effort which

long-term success will require.

Over the past year M&I" has not only begun to do business in important new
markets but to do so under significant new rules. Landmark federal legislation,
the 2002 Sarbanes-Oxley Act, passed “to improve the accuracy and reliability of
corporate disclosures” is, by many measures, the most sweeping new regulation
in corporate governance since the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Its emphasis
on accurate accounting information through requirements for independent
membership majorities on boards of directors and the personal liability of chief
executive and chief financial officers for any financial statement misrepresentation
were not unexpected in the light of the corporate accounting scandals which have
made brand names like Enron, Adelphia and WorldCom synonymous with scandal.

It should go without saying that M&[I" has done its utmost to come into
full compliance with the new law — and that doing so does not represent any
change in our historic corporate culture. A majority of the members of our board
and its audit committee have historically been outside directors. Just as we have
hewed to traditional banking practices, so have we adhered to conservative
accounting and transparent reporting methods — reporting earnings, as noted
above, on both a GAAP and non-GAAP basis so as to make year-over-year
comparisons as clear and easy as possible. Investors, moreover, will recall that
we became (in 2002) one of the first banks of our size to announce that we
would account for stock options as expenses in our income statement.
Shareholders should be assured that this change is no mere window-dressing.
Where once we considered stock options primarily as a compensation-related
number — that is, how many were to be issued? — we now consider them more
so in value terms and focus our attention on the need to cover, with revenue,
the costs which they represent.

We have made such changes because we well understand — and deeply
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believe — that it is only in a business world in which profits and losses are clearly
stated, and in which the interests of stockholders are paramount for management,
that capital markets — of which banking is so central a part — can properly
function. Accounting transparency and independent oversight are the oxygen

of free enterprise.

All this said, however, I cannot help but to draw attention to the reality
that, through this new generation of regulation, corporate wrongdoing has had
the effect of imposing significant costs and burdens both on the overwhelming
majority of firms which have always been open and honest, and, indirectly, on those
firms’ customers. At M&I', we estimate that the overall cost of complying with all
federal and state regulations exceeded $50 million in 2003. That represented
about four percent of the company’s operating expenses. More than 500 full-time
equivalent employees contributed to our compliance efforts. Sarbanes-Oxley has
added yet another layer of costs to this total. Specifically, the new legislation
caused our compendium of corporate governance standards to grow from a listing
on two pages to a published program fully a half-inch thick. It catalogues our
means of complying with no less than 294 duties and obligations.

Most of the new legislation’s requirements are both unobjectionable
and in keeping with common sense. Some, however, are not. For instance, the
rule that anyone employed by the company or its affiliates, in any capacity, is
prohibited from service on its audit committee effectively precludes the chief
financial officer of AIB from such service. Yet I can think of no one with any
greater interest in ensuring that this company is both honest and profitable, lest
AIB put its own substantial investment at risk. An independent majority on the
audit committee makes sense; excluding a financial expert simply because he is
employed by a major shareholder may not actually provide his fellow shareholders
with the best protection. This is not to say that key members of a firm’s
management should sit on its audit committee, but it does seem foolish to
exclude from M&I’s audit committee someone, in the person of AIB chief
financial officer Gary Kennedy, who is arguably a highly-qualified financial expert
with particular knowledge of banking.

We must take great care lest demands for both independence and
commitment on the part of board members — particularly those on the audit
committee, whose duties are highly-demanding — drive qualified candidates
away from such service altogether. Already, those on M&I”s own audit
committee find their role constitutes something close to a part-time job all of
its own, in addition to executive roles they play in their own firms. It is a role

with significant pressures: they find they must now be concerned about their



own personal liability, for instance, when giving their approbation to financial
representations. New demands risk diluting the quality of those willing and
able to serve.

Nor are such contraventions of common sense limited to legislation or
regulatory fiat. Consider, for instance, new New York Stock Exchange regulations
which call for a firm’s directors to engage in an annual “self-evaluation” process,
wherein they are to assess the performance of the board and its committees.
Such an ill-advised requirement for what amounts to corporate group therapy
not only seems silly but may well be counter-productive and risks inhibiting
candor on the part of directors. It is, in other words, a rather Stalinesque recipe
for group-think, rather than a tonic to induce independent expression.

Concern about corporate governance has also spawned private independent
rating agencies which set their own standards and issue their own report cards
for individual firms, as a service to investors. This is generally to the good.

But in some instances, such agencies adopt an unfortunate, one-size-fits-all
approach which ill-serves those in whose interest they nominally operate.
M&I, for instance, has had to struggle to convince outside observers that

the size of our board of directors — 26 — is not designed somehow to dilute

its influence and to advance the interests of management at the expense of
investors (an oxymoron in our case, given the shareholdings of our managers).
In fact, the size of our board is nothing less than a prudential means to
protect the interests of sharcholders. As a result of our long series of mergers,
we have added as directors, one-time directors of ONBANCorp, Keystone,
AIB and other institutions now joined into M&I'. We believe that their industry
experience and knowledge of their local markets is invaluable. That this makes
for a board of more than 16 members (the measure some have set) should lead
to concern only if one believes that all firms should be judged by the same
standards, regardless of their special circumstance. No careful analyst would
adopt such an approach — and neither should corporate governance rating
agencies or pension funds.

These are not, in themselves, matters of great significance — and, indeed,
people of good faith may disagree with my specific conclusions. I raise them,
rather, to make the larger point that those setting corporate governance standards
and requirements must seek to strike a balance among interests. It is crucially
important for lawmakers, for instance, to keep in mind, as they go forward, that
added regulation increases costs and that those corporate wrongdoers now under
indictment or otherwise disgraced are in that position because they violated laws

that were already on the books — that is, before Sarbanes-Oxley was approved.
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Indeed, of approximately 10,500 publicly-held companies in the United
States, only 225 had to restate their financial reports in 2001, the last full year
prior to the passage of Sarbanes-Oxley. Moreover, from 1997 through 2002, the
Securities and Exchange Commission found it necessary to file 515 enforcement
actions against 164 corporate entities — representing less than 2% of all publicly-
held companies in the U.S. It is true, and terribly unfortunate, that this number
has been increasing. But it is also true that this relatively small group of
wrongdoers has set in motion a wave of more stringent regulation which has
imposed significant costs on the overwhelming majority of firms which have
played by the rules. Nor can we be assured that the new, stricter rules will
yield any better results than the previous regime. It is not as if there were not
independent board members and outside auditors serving firms which are now
in disgrace. Laws, after all, are the necessary but not sufficient means to deter
those who, for reasons of greed or desperation, choose to commit fraud or to
loot corporate treasuries for their personal gain. But, at the same time, rules
cannot substitute for honor and ethics, and the understanding that, without these,
the functioning of markets and the wealth and well-being of all are threatened.

Still, even though the extent of corporate wrongdoing has been
relatively limited, it has clearly grown alarmingly and the dimensions of specific
misconduct have been outrageous, with innocent shareholders and employees
victimized. In this context, it is likely that we will continue in a period of more
regulation, not less. This is to express the hope that legislators keep in mind that
more regulation will also mean higher costs — without any certainty of serving

the public interest.

In years past, I have had a good deal to say in these messages about public
affairs in M&I”’s headquarters region, that of Buffalo and Western New York,
especially as regards high levels of taxation, ineffective and expensive delivery of
public services, and loss of population and economic vitality. The civic, community
and economic health of Buffalo and environs continue to be of great personal
importance to me. In that light, I was privileged, this past year, to be named, by
New York Governor George Pataki, to serve on the Buffalo Fiscal Stability
Authority, the so-called “control board” which is reviewing the city’s expenditures
and revenues in an effort to set it on a sustainable, long-term financial course.
That official position makes it inappropriate, in my view, to expound such topics
as the city’s finances, as in previous messages. Moreover, as a result of our mergers

of the past several years, Buffalo — although of ongoing personal importance to



me — is no longer as central to the fortunes of M&I'. Buftalonians can rest assured
that M&I" will continue to call the city home, for our corporate headquarters.

But readers of these pages can now be spared the jeremiads of years past.

The past year saw the passing of three former members of our boards of directors.

Barber Conable, former member of Congress and president of the World
Bank (1986-1991), was a former director of M&I' Bank Corporation and M&T'
Bank, as well as Chairman of M&I" Bank’s Directors Advisory Council — Rochester
Division. We will remember his distinguished service to his country and to this
company with gratitude.

William H. Harder was a former member of the board of M&I' Bank.
He had served as president of Buftalo Savings Bank. We will remember his
dedication to the welfare of his native Buftalo and his service to the city on
numerous charitable boards and fund drives. Buffalo will miss him greatly.

Raymond D. Stevens, Jr., was a former director of M&I' Bank Corporation
and a member of its executive committee, and a director of M&I" Bank, and a
member of both its executive, and trust and investment committees. He was the
retired chairman of the board of Pratt & Lambert United, Inc. We recall his
sound advice with appreciation. Mr. Stevens served as a director from 1963 until

his retirement in 1998, the longest such tenure of service in M&Is history.

Finally, this message would not be complete without noting the retirement,

this past year, of M&I" Executive Vice President for Human Resources Ray Logan.
In his 17 years in that post, Ray helped shepherd a workforce which grew from
2,300 when he began to 14,000 at the time of his retirement. He played a key
role in our recruitment and retention of top-quality employees and worked

hard, and creatively, to ensure that, as the company grew, employees continued
to feel that their voices were heard and their ideas taken seriously. It is a legacy

of which we will strive to be mindful.

Robert G. Wilmers
Chairman of the Board,

President and Chief Executive Officer

February 18, 2004
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M&T BANK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

M&TI Bank Corporation (“M&I™”) is a
bank holding company headquartered
in Buffalo, New York with consolidated
assets of $49.8 billion at December 31,
2003. The consolidated financial
information presented herein reflects
M&T and all of its subsidiaries, which
are referred to collectively as “the
Company.” M&I’s wholly owned bank
subsidiaries are Manufacturers and
Traders Trust Company (“Ms&I" Bank”)
and M&T Bank, National Association
(“M&T Bank, N.A.”).

M&T' Bank, with total assets of
$49.2 billion at December 31, 2003, is
a New York-chartered commercial bank
with 683 banking offices in New York
State, Pennsylvania, Maryland, Delaware,
Virginia, West Virginia and the District
of Columbia, and an office in the
Cayman Islands. M&T Bank and its
subsidiaries offer a broad range of
financial services to a diverse base of
consumers, businesses, professional
clients, governmental entities and
financial institutions located in its
markets. Lending is largely focused on
consumers residing in New York State,
Pennsylvania, Maryland, northern
Virginia and Washington, D.C., and on
small and medium size businesses based
in those areas. Certain lending activities
are also conducted in other states
through various subsidiaries. M&I'
Bank’s subsidiaries include: M&T' Credit
Corporation, a consumer lending and
commercial leasing and lending
company; M&I" Financial Corporation,
a commercial leasing company; M&I'
Mortgage Corporation, a residential
mortgage banking company; M&I' Real
Estate Trust, a commercial mortgage
lender; M&T" Realty Capital Corporation,
a multi-family commercial mortgage
lender; M&T Securities, Inc., a
broker/dealer; MTB Investment
Advisors, Inc., which serves as invest-
ment advisor to the MTB funds, a
family of proprietary mutual funds, and
other funds and institutional clients;
Highland Lease Corporation,

a consumer leasing company; and
Matthews, Bartlett & Dedecker, Inc.,
an insurance agency.

M&I" Bank, N.A., with total assets
of $473 million at December 31, 2003,
is a national bank with an office in

Oakfield, New York. M&I" Bank, N.A.
offers selected deposit and loan products
on a nationwide basis, largely through
telephone and direct mail marketing
techniques. Insurance products are
offered by M&I' Bank, N.A. through
banking offices of M&I' Bank.

On April 1, 2003, M&I' completed
the acquisition of Allfirst Financial Inc.
(“Allfirst”), a bank holding company
headquartered in Baltimore, Maryland,
from Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c. (“AIB”),
Dublin, Ireland. Allfirst Bank, Allfirst’s
primary bank subsidiary, was merged
into M&I' Bank on that date. Allfirst
Bank operated 269 banking offices in
Maryland, Pennsylvania, Virginia and
the District of Columbia at the date of
acquisition. The acquisition of Allfirst
represented a major geographic
expansion by M&[I and created a strong
Mid-Atlantic banking franchise. AIB
received 26,700,000 shares of M&T
common stock and $886 million in
cash in exchange for all outstanding
Allfirst common shares. Immediately
after the completion of the acquisition,
AIB owned approximately 22.5% of the
outstanding shares of M&I’s common
stock. The results of operations acquired
in the Allfirst transaction have been
included in the Company’s financial
results since April 1, 2003. Table 1
provides a summary of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by the Company
on April 1, 2003 in connection with
the Allfirst transaction.

Merger-related expenses associated

ALLFIRST FINANCIAL, INC. ACQUISITION

In thousands

Assets

Investment securities. . . . . ... ... ...
Loans and leases, net of unearned discount
Allowance for credit losses . . . .. ... ..

Loans and leases, net . . ... .......

Goodwill. . .. ... .. ... ... .. ..

Core deposit and other intangible assets

Otherassets. . . . ... ............

Totalassets . . . ... ... .........

Liabilities

Deposits. . . ... ...
Short-term borrowings . . . ... ......
Long-term borrowings . . ... .. ... ..
Other liabilities . . . .. ............

Total liabilities . . . . .. .. ........

with the Allfirst acquisition incurred
during the year ended December 31,
2003 totaled $60 million ($39 million
after tax effect). Such expenses were for
professional services and temporary help
associated with the conversion of systems
and/or integration of operations; initial
marketing and promotion expenses
designed to introduce M&I" Bank to
Allfirst’s customers; travel and relocation
costs; and printing, supplies and other
costs of commencing operations in new
markets and offices. The Company does
not expect to incur any significant addi-
tional merger-related expenses relating
to the Allfirst transaction. In accordance
with generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”), included in the
determination of goodwill associated
with the Allfirst merger were charges
totaling $29 million, net of applicable
income taxes ($48 million before tax
effect), for severance costs for former
Allfirst employees; investment banking
and other professional fees; and termi-
nation of Allfirst contracts for various
services. As of December 31, 2003, the
remaining unpaid portion of merger-
related expenses and charges included
in the determination of goodwill were
$1 million and $13 million, respectively.
The resolution of Allfirst’s preacquisition
contingencies in future periods could
have an impact on the allocation of

the purchase price and the amount of
goodwill recorded as part of the acqui-
sition, however, management does

not presently expect that any such

Table 1

$ 1,312,301
10,265,123
(146,300)

10,118,823

1,806,528
199,265
3,053,742

$16,490,659

$10,935,521
1,610,782
1,226,518
723,882

$14,496,703
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adjustments will be material to the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

In anticipation of the Allfirst
acquisition, M&T' Bank issued $400
million of subordinated notes on
March 31, 2003 to fund a portion
of the cash consideration paid to AIB
and to maintain appropriate regulatory
capital ratios. The subordinated notes
are included in regulatory capital of
M&T and M&T Bank. The notes pay
interest semi-annually on April 1 and
October 1. The interest rate is fixed at
3.85% through March 31, 2008, with
a floating rate payable from April 1,
2008 through the maturity date based
on the then applicable U.S. dollar three-
month London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) plus 1.50%. The notes will
mature on April 1, 2013. Beginning on
April 1, 2008, M&I" Bank may, at its
option and subject to prior regulatory
approval, redeem some or all of the
subordinated notes on any interest
payment date at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the redeemed
principal, plus any accrued but
unpaid interest.

On February 9, 2001, M&I'
acquired Premier National Bancorp,
Inc. (“Premier”), a bank holding
company headquartered in Lagrangeville,
New York. Premier National Bank,
Premier’s bank subsidiary, was merged
into M&T' Bank on that date. Premier
National Bank operated 34 banking
offices in the mid-Hudson Valley
region of New York State. As of the
merger date, assets acquired totaled
$1.8 billion, including $1.0 billion of
loans and leases, and liabilities assumed
were $1.5 billion, including approx-
imately $1.4 billion of deposits. The
acquisition has been accounted for
using the purchase method of accounting
and, accordingly, the operations acquired
from Premier have been included in
M&I’s financial results subsequent to
the acquisition date. Premier’s
stockholders received $171 million in
cash and 2,440,812 shares of M&T'
common stock in exchange for the
Premier shares outstanding at the time
of the acquisition. In connection with
the acquisition, the Company recorded
approximately $178 million of goodwill
and $32 million of core deposit
intangible. In 2001, the Company
incurred expenses associated with
systems conversions and other costs of
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integrating and conforming the
acquired operations of Premier and of
Keystone Financial Inc. (“Keystone”),
which was acquired on October 6, 2000,
with and into the operations of M&T
Bank. Such merger-related expenses
totaled approximately $8 million

($5 million after-tax) during the year
ended December 31, 2001.

The Company’s significant accounting
policies are described in note 1 of Notes
to Financial Statements. In applying
those accounting policies, management
of the Company is required to exercise
judgment in determining many of the
methodologies, assumptions and
estimates to be utilized. Certain of the
critical accounting estimates are more
dependent on such judgment and in
some cases may contribute to volatility
in the Company’s reported financial
performance should the assumptions
and estimates used change over time
due to changes in circumstances. Some
of the more significant areas in which
management of the Company applies
critical assumptions and estimates
include the following:
Allowance for credit losses — The
allowance for credit losses represents
the amount which, in management’s
judgment, will be adequate to absorb
credit losses inherent in the loan and
lease portfolio as of the balance sheet
date. In estimating losses inherent in
the loan and lease portfolio, assump-
tions and judgment are applied to
measure expected future cash flows,
collateral values and other factors
used to determine the borrowers’
abilities to repay obligations. Historical
loss trends are also considered, as are
economic conditions, industry trends,
portfolio trends and borrower-specific
financial data. Changes in the circum-
stances considered when determining
management’s estimates and assump-
tions could result in changes in those
estimates and assumptions, which
may result in adjustment of the
allowance. A detailed discussion of
facts and circumstances considered
by management in assessing the
adequacy of the allowance for credit
losses is included herein under the
heading “Provision for Credit
Losses.”

Valuation methodologies —
Management of the Company applies
various valuation methodologies to
assets and liabilities which often
involve a significant degree of
judgment, particularly when liquid
markets do not exist for the particular
items being valued. Quoted market
prices are referred to when estimating
fair values for certain assets, such as
trading assets, most investment
securities, and residential real estate
loans held for sale and related com-
mitments. However, for those items
for which an observable liquid market
does not exist, management utilizes
significant estimates and assumptions
to value such items. Examples of
these items include capitalized
servicing assets, goodwill, core deposit
and other intangible assets, pension
and other postretirement benefit
obligations, value ascribed to stock-
based compensation, estimated
residual values of property associated
with commercial and consumer leases,
and certain derivative and other
financial instruments. These valuations
require the use of various assumptions,
including, among others, discount
rates, rates of return on assets,
repayment rates, cash flows, default
rates, costs of servicing and liquidation
values. The use of different assump-
tions could produce significantly
different results, which could have
material positive or negative effects
on the Company’s results of
operations. Specific discussion of
assumptions and estimates utilized by
management are discussed in detail in
this Financial Review and in notes
1,3,4,7,8,10,11,17, 18 and 19
of Notes to Financial Statements.
Commitments, contingencies and
oft-balance sheet arrangements —
Information regarding the Company’s
commitments and contingencies,
including guarantees and contingent
liabilities arising from litigation,

and their potential effects on the
Company’s results of operations is
included in note 20 of Notes to
Financial Statements. In addition,

the Company is routinely subject

to examinations from various
governmental taxing authorities. Such
examinations may result in challenges
to the tax return treatment applied by
the Company to specific transactions.



Management believes that the
assumptions and judgment used to
record tax-related assets or liabilities
have been appropriate. Should tax
laws change or the tax authorities
determine that management’s
assumptions were inappropriate, the
result and adjustments required could
have a material effect on the
Company’s results of operations.
Information regarding permanent
and temporary income tax differences
is presented in note 12 of Notes to
Financial Statements. The recognition
or de-recognition in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements of
assets and liabilities held in trusts or
other so-called variable interest
entities is subject to the interpretation
and application of complex accounting
pronouncements or interpretations
that require management to estimate
and assess the probability of financial
outcomes in future periods.
Information relating to the Company’s
involvement in such entities and the

EARNINGS SUMMARY

Dollars in millions

Increase (decrease)® @

2002 to 2003

Increase (decrease)
2001 to 2002

Amount % Amount %
$286.8 15 $(263.3) (12)
(66.7) (11) (349.1) (37)
353.5 28 85.8 7
9.0 7 18.5 18
3.1 - (2.5) -
316.1 62 37.0 8
243.3 49 29.8 6
2434 52 (48.8) (10)
177.0 26 120.8 21
2.3 16 (3.5) (20)
57.6 26 20.6 10
$117.1 26 $103.7 29

accounting treatment afforded each
such involvement is included in note
18 of Notes to Financial Statements.

The Company’s net income in 2003
totaled $574 million or $4.95 of
diluted earnings per common share, up
26% and 4%, respectively, from $457
million or $4.78 per diluted share in
2002. Basic earnings per common share
rose 3% to $5.08 in 2003 from $4.94
in 2002. The after-tax impact of
merger-related expenses associated with
the Allfirst acquisition was $39 million
($60 million pre-tax) or $.34 of diluted
earnings per share and $.35 of basic
earnings per share in 2003. There were
no significant similar expenses in 2002.
Net income in 2001 totaled $353
million, while diluted and basic earnings
per share were $3.58 and $3.69,
respectively. The after-tax impact of
merger-related expenses associated with
the Premier and Keystone acquisitions

was $5 million ($8 million pre-tax) or
$.05 of diluted and basic earnings per
share in 2001.

Net income represented a return
on average assets in 2003 of 1.27%,
compared with 1.43% in 2002 and
1.14% in 2001. The return on average
common stockholders” equity was
11.62% in 2003, 15.09% in 2002 and
11.87% in 2001. Excluding the impact
of merger-related expenses, the rates of
return on average assets and average
common equity were 1.35% and 12.41%,
respectively, in 2003 and 1.16% and
12.03%, respectively, in 2001.

Effective January 1, 2003, the
Company began recognizing expense
for stock-based compensation using
the fair value method of accounting
described in Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)

No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” as amended. As a result,
salaries and employee benefits expense
in 2003 included $43 million of stock-
based compensation. After tax effect,

Table 2
Compound
growth rate
5 years
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 t02003
Interest income™ . . . . .. $2,142.9 1,856.1 2,119.4 1,783.3 1,486.3 9%
Interest expense . . . . . . . 527.8 5945 9436 918.6 719.2 (5)
Net interest income®™ . . . . 1,615.1 1261.6 1,175.8 864.7 767.1 19
Less: provision for
credit losses. . . ... ... 131.0 122.0 1035 38.0 445 25
Gain (loss) on sales of bank
investment securities . . . 2.5 (0.6) 1.9 (3.1) 1.6 -
Other income. . . . ... .. 828.6 5125 4755 327.8 280.8 26
Less:
Salaries and
employee benefits . . . . 740.3 497.0 467.2 3534 302.5 22
Other expense . . . . . .. 708.0 464.6 5134 3652 294.1 18
Income before income taxes. . 8669 689.9 569.1 432.8 408.4 22
Less:
Taxable-equivalent
adjustment®™. . ... .. 16.3 140 175 105 7.8 18
Income taxes. . . ... .. 276.7 219.1 1985 154.1 1482 19
Netincome . . . . . ... .. $ 5739 456.8 353.1 2682 2524 24 %

© Changes were caleulated from unrounded amounts.

©) Interest income data ave on a taxable-equivalent basis. The taxable-equivalent adjustment vepresents additional income taxes that would be due if nll
interest income were subject to income taxes. This adjustment, which is velated to interest veceived on qualified municipal securities, industvial revenue
financings and preferred equity securities, is based on a composite income tax vate of approximately 36% for 2003, 39% for 2002, 37% for 2001,

40% for 2000, and 41% for 1999.
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TAXABLE-EQUIVALENT
NET INTEREST MARGIN

4.02% | 4.02% | 4.23% | 4.36% | 4.09%

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

stock-based compensation lowered
2003’s net income by $32 million,

or $.27 per diluted share. Using the
retroactive restatement method
described in SFAS No. 148, which
amended SFAS No. 123, financial
information for all prior periods
presented in this annual report has been
restated to reflect the impact of
recognizing expense for stock-based
compensation in those years as well. As
a result, salaries and employee benefits
expense in 2002 has been restated to
include $41 million of stock-based
compensation, resulting in a reduction
of previously reported net income of
$28 million. Diluted earnings per share
noted herein for 2002 have been
reduced by $.29 from the amount
previously reported. For 2001, the
impact of adopting SFAS No. 123
using the retroactive restatement
method was to increase salaries and
employee benefits expense by approx-
imately $32 million, resulting in a
reduction of previously reported net
income of $25 million or $.24 of
diluted earnings per share.

Effective January 1, 2002, the
Company adopted SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets.” SFAS No. 142 revised
accounting standards for all purchased
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intangible assets, but not the
accounting for internally developed
intangible assets. SFAS No. 142, as
amended, requires that most goodwill
not be amortized, but rather that it
periodically be tested for impairment.
Other intangible assets assumed to have
been acquired but with finite lives, such
as core deposit intangible assets, are
required to be amortized over their
assumed lives.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142,
effective January 1, 2002 the Company
ceased amortization of goodwill
associated with corporate acquisitions.
Amortization of such goodwill in 2001,
none of which was tax deductible, was
$62 million ($.62 per diluted share).
The after-tax impact of amortization of
core deposit and other intangible assets
for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001 was $48 million
($.41 per diluted share), $32 million
($.34 per diluted share) and $38 million
($.38 per diluted share), respectively.
Pro forma net income, diluted earnings
per share and basic earnings per share
for 2001, computed as if SFAS No. 142
had been effective in 2001, were $415
million, $4.20 and $4.33, respectively,
while pro forma annualized returns on
average assets and average common
stockholders’ equity in 2001 were
1.35% and 13.95%, respectively.

Further information regarding
the allocation of goodwill to the
Company’s reportable segments and
results of impairment tests of such
goodwill is provided in note 8 of Notes
to Financial Statements.

Net interest income recorded on
a taxable-equivalent basis increased 28%
to $1.62 billion in 2003 from $1.26
billion in 2002, reflecting higher
average earning assets, which increased
37% to $39.5 billion in 2003 from
$28.9 billion in 2002. The higher levels
of average earning assets in 2003 as
compared with 2002 were largely the
result of loans, leases and investment
securities obtained in the Allfirst
acquisition. Average loans and leases
increased $8.5 billion, or 33%, to $34.0
billion in 2003 from $25.5 billion in
2002. Included in the 2003 average
was the nine-month impact of the
$10.3 billion of Allfirst-related loans
and leases acquired on April 1, 2003.
Partially offsetting the impact of the
higher levels of average earning assets

in 2003 was a narrowing of the
Company’s net interest margin, or
taxable-equivalent net interest income
expressed as a percentage of average
earning assets. Net interest margin
declined 27 basis points (hundredths
of one percent) to 4.09% in 2003 from
4.36% a year carlier, due largely to
lower yielding portfolios of loans and
investment securities acquired in the
Allfirst transaction. A widening of

the Company’s net interest margin
and higher average carning assets,
which rose $1.1 billion or 4% from
$27.8 billion in 2001, were the

most significant factors contributing

to the increase in 2002’s taxable-
equivalent net interest income from
$1.18 billion in 2001. Net interest
margin in 2002 was 13 basis points
higher than 4.23% in 2001, due to

the full-year impact of 2001’s declining
rate environment and further changes
in rates and spreads in 2002. The

4% rise in average earning assets from
2001 to 2002 was the result of growth
in the consumer loan portfolio.

The provision for credit losses was
$131 million in 2003, $122 million in
2002 and $104 million in 2001. Net
charge-ofts totaled $97 million in
2003, compared with $108 million in
2002 and $75 million in 2001. Net
charge-ofts as a percentage of average
loans and leases outstanding were .28%,
42% and .31% in 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Net charge-offs of
loans acquired from Allfirst were not
significant during the final nine months
ot 2003. The provision in each year
reflects the result of management’s
analysis of the composition of the loan
and lease portfolio and other factors,
including concern regarding uncertainty
about economic conditions, both
nationally and in many of the markets
served by the Company, and the impact
of such conditions and prospects on the
abilities of borrowers to repay loans.

Noninterest income aggregated
$831 million in 2003, 62% higher than
$512 million in 2002 and up 74% from
$477 million in 2001. Approximately
$279 million of the increase from 2002
was attributable to revenues related to
operations or market areas associated
with the former Allfirst franchise.
Higher mortgage banking revenues
and service charges on deposit accounts
also contributed to the improvement.



Increased revenues from providing
deposit account and mortgage banking
services were significant contributors
to the rise in noninterest income from
2001 to 2002.

Noninterest expense in 2003
totaled $1.45 billion, 51% higher than
$962 million in 2002 and up 48% from
$981 million in 2001. Included in such
amounts are expenses considered to be
“nonoperating” in nature, consisting of
amortization of core deposit and other
intangible assets of $78 million, $51
million and $60 million in 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively; amortization of
goodwill of $62 million in 2001; and
merger-related expenses of $60 million
and $8 million in 2003 and 2001,
respectively. There were no merger-
related expenses in 2002. Exclusive
of these nonoperating expenses,
noninterest operating expenses aggre-
gated $1.31 billion in 2003, compared
with $910 million in 2002 and $851
million in 2001. Expenses related to
operations formerly associated with
Allfirst significantly contributed to
the higher level of expenses in 2003
compared with 2002, along with higher
expenses for salaries and benefits,
professional services and amortization
of capitalized residential mortgage
servicing rights. Partially offsetting
these higher expenses was a $30 million
decrease in the provision for possible
impairment of capitalized residential
mortgage servicing rights, which was
$2 million in 2003 and $32 million in
2002. The $32 million provision for
the impairment of capitalized residential
mortgage servicing rights and higher
costs for salaries, including commissions
and incentive compensation, were large
contributors to the rise in noninterest
operating expenses in 2002 as
compared with 2001.

The efficiency ratio expresses the
relationship of operating expenses to
revenues. The Company’s efficiency
ratio, or noninterest operating expenses
divided by the sum of taxable-
equivalent net interest income and
noninterest income (exclusive of gains
and losses from sales of bank
investment securities), was 53.6% in
2003, compared with 51.3% in 2002
and 51.5% in 2001. The higher ratio
in 2003 reflects the impact of the
acquired Allfirst operations that are
now part of M&T.

M&I has accounted for substantially

all of its business combinations using
the purchase method of accounting.

As a result, the Company had recorded
intangible assets consisting of goodwill
and core deposit and other intangible
assets totaling $3.1 billion at
December 31, 2003, $1.2 billion at
December 31, 2002 and $1.3 billion at
December 31, 2001. Included in such
intangible assets was goodwill of $2.9
billion at December 31, 2003, up from
$1.1 billion at December 31, 2002 and
2001 due to the Allfirst acquisition.
Amortization of core deposit and other
intangible assets, after tax effect, was
$48 million, $32 million and $38
million during 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The higher level of such
amortization in 2003 as compared with
2002 and 2001 was due to the impact
of core deposit and other intangible
assets recorded as part of the
acquisition of Allfirst.

Since 1998 M&I has consistently
provided supplemental reporting of its
results on a “net operating” or
“tangible” basis, from which M&T'
excludes the after-tax effect of
amortization of core deposit and other
intangible assets (and the related
goodwill, core deposit intangible and
other intangible asset balances, net of
applicable deferred tax amounts, when
calculating certain performance ratios)
and expenses associated with merging
acquired operations into the Company,
because such expenses are considered
by management to be “nonoperating”
in nature. Although “net operating
income” as defined by M&T is not a
GAAP measure, M&I’s management
believes that this information helps
investors understand the effect of
acquisition activity in reported results.

Net operating income rose 35% to
$661 million in 2003 from $489 million
in 2002. Diluted net operating earnings
per share in 2003 increased 11% to
$5.70 from $5.12 in 2002. In 2001,
net operating income totaled $457
million and diluted net operating
carnings per share were $4.63.

A reconciliation of net income
and diluted earnings per share with
net operating income and diluted
net operating earnings per share is

presented in table 3.

Expressed as a rate of return on
average tangible assets, net operating
income was 1.55% in 2003 and 2001,
compared with 1.59% in 2002. Net
operating return on average tangible
common equity was 28.49% in 2003,
compared with 26.71% and 26.76% in
2002 and 2001, respectively. Including
the effect of merger-related expenses,
net operating return on average tangible
assets for 2003 and 2001 was 1.46%
and 1.53%, respectively, and net
operating return on average tangible
common equity was 26.80% and
26.48%, respectively.

A reconciliation of average assets
and equity with average tangible assets
and average tangible equity is presented
in table 3.

Taxable-equivalent net interest income
rose 28% to $1.62 billion in 2003 from
$1.26 billion in 2002. The improvement
reflects a 37% increase in average earning
assets to $39.5 billion in 2003 from
$28.9 billion in 2002, partially offset
by a narrowing of the Company’s net
interest margin. The growth in average
earning assets was largely attributable
to higher average loans and leases
outstanding, which totaled $34.0
billion in 2003, up 33% from 2002’s
average of $25.5 billion.

The most significant factor for
the higher loan balances in 2003 was
the nine-month impact of the $10.3
billion of loans obtained in the Allfirst
acquisition on April 1, 2003. Such
acquired loans were comprised of
approximately $4.5 billion of commercial
loans and leases (including $314 million
of leveraged leases and $230 million of
loans to foreign borrowers), $2.5 billion
of commercial real estate loans, $383
million of residential real estate loans
and $2.9 billion of consumer loans
and leases.

Average consumer loans and leases,
excluding those acquired in the Allfirst
transaction, grew 20% to $8.2 billion
in 2003 from $6.8 billion in 2002.
Increases in the outstanding average
balances of automobile loans and leases
of $1.0 billion and home equity lines of
credit of $495 million were the leading
contributors to that growth.
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RECONCILIATION OF GAAP TO NON-GAAP MEASURES Table 3
2003 2002 2001
Income statement data
In thousands, except per share
Net income
Netincome ... ............... $ 573942 456,752 353,088
Amortization of goodwill. . . .. ... ... - - 61,820
Pro forma netincome. . .. ........ 573,942 456,752 414,908
Amortization of core deposit
and other intangible assets® . . . . .. .. 47,826 32491 37,525
Merger-related expenses® . ... ... ... 39,163 - 4,844
Net operating income . . . . ... ..... $ 660,931 489,243 457277
Earnings per share
Diluted earnings per common share . . . . $ 4.95 4.78 3.58
Amortization of goodwill. . . .. ... ... - - .62
Pro forma diluted earnings per share . . . 495 4.78 4.20
Amortization of core deposit
and other intangible assets® . . . . .. .. 41 .34 .38
Merger-related expenses® . ... ... ... .34 - .05
Diluted net operating earnings per share . . $ 5.70 5.12 4.63
Other expense
Otherexpense . . . . .. ... ... .. ... $1,448,180 961,611 980,575
Amortization of goodwill. . . .. ... ... - - (61,820)
Amortization of core deposit
and other intangible assets. . . . . .. .. (78,152) (51,484) (59,816)
Merger-related expenses . . . .. ... ... (60,387) - (8,007)
Noninterest operating expense. . . . . . . $1,309,641 910,127 850,932
Merger-related expenses
Salaries and employee benefits. . . . . . . . $ 8,542 - 275
Equipment and net occupancy. . . . . . .. 2,126 - 309
Printing, postage and supplies . . . . . . .. 3,216 - 438
Other costs of operations. . . . . . ..... 46,503 - 6,985
Total. . ... ... $ 60,387 - 8,007
Balance sheet data
In millions
Average assets
Average assets . . . ... ... $ 45349 31,935 30,842
Goodwill . ... ... .. . oL (2,456) (1,098) (1,126)
Core deposit and other intangible assets . . . (233) (143) (196)
Deferred taxes . . . . . ... ... ... ... - 46 56
Average tangible assets . . . .. ... ... $ 42,660 30,740 29,576
Average equity
Averageequity . . . . .. ... ... $ 4,941 3,026 2,975
Goodwill . ... ... .. . L (2,456) (1,098) (1,126)
Core deposit and other intangible assets . . . (233) (143) (196)
Deferred taxes . . . . . ... ... ... ... 68 46 56
Average tangible equity . . . . . ... ... $ 2,320 1,831 1,709
At end of year
Total assets
Totalassets. . . ... ............. $ 493826 33,201 31,469
Goodwill . ... ... ... L (2,904) (1,098) (1,098)
Core deposit and other intangible assets . . . (241) (119) (170)
Deferred taxes . . . . . ... ... ... ... - 40 49
Total tangible assets. . . . ... ... ... $ 46,681 32,024 30,250
Total equity
Totalequity . . . ............... $ 5717 3,208 2,958
Goodwill . ... ... ... L (2,904) (1,098) (1,098)
Core deposit and other intangible assets . . . (241) (119) (170)
Deferred taxes . . . . .. ... ... ... .. 70 40 49
Total tangible equity . . ... ....... $ 2,642 2,031 1,739

W After any related tax effect.
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TAXABLE-EQUIVALENT
NET INTEREST INCOME
In millions

$767 | $865 | $1.176 | $1,262 | $1,615

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

Partially offsetting the growth
noted above was a decline in the
residential real estate loan portfolio,
due largely to customer repayments of
loans and the impact of two separate
securitization transactions totaling
$1.3 billion of such loans during
2003’s fourth quarter and the full-year
impact of a similar $1.1 billion
securitization in the fourth quarter of
2002. In connection with the first 2003
securitization transaction, the Company
transferred approximately $838 million
of one-to-four family residential
mortgage loans to a qualified special
purpose trust. The Company received
$112 million in cash and retained
approximately 87% of the resulting
securities in exchange for the loans.
The Company realized a gain of
$1 million on the transaction which
has been included in other revenues
from operations. In 2003’s second
securitization transaction, approximately
$441 million of one-to-four family
residential mortgage loans were con-
verted to mortgage-backed securities
issued by the Federal National Mortgage
Association (“FNMA”). All of those
mortgage-backed securities were
retained by the Company and,
accordingly, no gain or loss was




AVERAGE EARNING ASSETS
In billions
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recognized. In total, approximately
$1.2 billion of mortgage-backed
securities resulting from 2003’s
securitization transactions were retained
by the Company and included in the
portfolio of investment securities
classified as available for sale.
Taxable-equivalent net interest
income in 2002 was 7% higher than
$1.18 billion in 2001, when average
carning assets aggregated $27.8 billion.
A 4% increase in average loans and
leases from 2001 to 2002, coupled with

AVERAGE LOANS AND LEASES (NET OF UNEARNED DISCOUNT)

Dollars in millions

Commercial, financial, ete. . . ... ...
Real estate — commercial. . . .. ... ..
Real estate — consumer. . . .. ... ...
Consumer
Automobile . . .. ... ... ...
Home equity lines . . . .. ... ....
Home equity loans. . . ... ......
Other . ..................

a widening of the Company’s net interest
margin, were the most significant
factors for the higher level of taxable-
equivalent net interest income in 2002
as compared with 2001.

Average outstanding balances of
consumer loans and leases rose $1.2
billion, or 21%, from 2001 to 2002.
Such growth, predominantly in out-
standing home equity lines of credit
and automobile loans, more than offset
declines in the commercial loan and
lease and residential real estate loan
portfolios. The lower average balances
of commercial loans and leases were
due in part to the sluggish economic
conditions in the Company’s core
markets. The residential real estate loan
portfolio’s decline was due largely to
customer repayments of loans and the
impact of the November 2002
securitization of approximately $1.1
billion of such loans.

Similar to one of the securitizations
already discussed, in connection with
the 2002 securitization transaction, the
Company transferred approximately
$1.1 billion of one-to-four family
residential mortgage loans to a qualified
special purpose trust. The Company
received $140 million in cash and
retained approximately 88% of the
resulting securities in exchange for the
loans. The Company realized a gain of
$5 million on the transaction which has
been included in other revenues from
operations. In accordance with GAAPD,
the qualified special purpose trusts related
to the 2003 and 2002 mortgage loan
securitization transactions are not
included in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements. Management
believes that the resulting mortgage-

Table 4

Percent increase (decrease) from

2003 2002 to 2003 2001 to 2002
$ 8,523 66 % (2)%
11,573 22 3
3,777 (8) (6)
4,045 42 34
2,825 57 42
1,619 117 (15)
1,609 17 5
10,098 49 21
$33,971 33 % 4%

AVERAGE LOANS AND LEASES
In billions
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2002 2003

backed securities provide enhanced
liquidity opportunities to the Company
because the securities may be more
readily pledged to secure borrowings or
sold than the underlying loans could be.
Additionally, under present regulatory
risk-based capital rules, the Company is
generally required to maintain higher
levels of regulatory capital when directly
investing in residential real estate loans
than when investing in government-
guaranteed or highly-rated, privately-
placed mortgage-backed securities.
Additional information about these
transactions and the qualified special
purpose trusts is included in note 18
of Notes to Financial Statements.
Information about the Company’s
regulatory capital requirements is
included in note 22 of Notes to
Financial Statements. Table 4 sum-
marizes average loans and leases
outstanding in 2003 and percentage
changes in the major components of
the portfolio over the past two years.
Commercial loans and leases,
excluding loans secured by real estate,
totaled $9.2 billion at December 31,
2003, representing 26% of total loans
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M&T BANK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Average Balance Sheets and Taxable-Equivalent Rates

) Includes nonaccrual loans.

® Includes available for sale securities at amortized cost.
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2003 2002
Average balance in millions; Average Average Average Average
interest in thousands balance Interest rate balance Interest rate
Assets
Earning assets
Loans and leases, net of unearned discount®
Commercial, financial, etc. . . . . ... .. $ 8,523 § 358,629 4.21% 5,146 261,867 5.09%
Real estate — commercial . . . .. ... .. 11,573 706,022 6.10 9,498 661,382 6.96
Real estate — consumer . . . .. ... ... 3,777 232,454 6.15 4,087 285,055 6.98
Consumer . . ................ 10,098 607,909 6.02 6,776 467,167 6.89
Total loans and leases, net. . . . . ... 33,971 1,905,014 5.61 25,507 1,675,471 6.57
Money-market assets
Interest-bearing deposits at banks. . . . . 14 147 1.03 6 76 1.32
Federal funds sold and agreements
to resell securities . . . . ... ... ... 147 1,875 1.28 272 4,455 1.63
Trading account . . . . .. ......... 55 647 1.18 13 247 1.86
Total money-market assets. . . . . . .. 216 2,669 1.24 291 4778 1.64
Investment securities ™
U.S. Treasury and federal agencies . . . . 2,599 106,209 4.09 1,292 81,412 6.30
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions . . . .. ... ... 251 15,827 6.30 279 17,828 6.40
Other . ........... ... ...... 2,494 113,159 4.54 1,552 76,659 4.94
Total investment securities. . . . . . . . 5,344 235,195 4.40 3,123 175,899 5.63
Total earning assets . . . . . . ... ... 39,531 2,142,878 5.42 28,921 1,856,148 6.42
Allowance for credit losses . . . .. ... .. (574) (438)
Cash and due from banks. . . . . ... ... 1,542 732
Otherassets. . . .. .............. 4,850 2,720
Total assets. . . . . ... ......... $45,349 31,935
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Interest-bearing liabilities
Interest-bearing deposits
NOW accounts . . .. ........... $ 1,021 3,613 .35 761 3,900 51
Savings deposits . . . . ... 13,278 102,190 77 8,899 107,281 1.21
Time deposits . . . . .. ... 6,638 159,700 2.41 7,398 237,001 3.20
Deposits at foreign office. . . . ... ... 1,445 14,991 1.04 569 8,460 1.49
Total interest-bearing deposits . . . . . 22,382 280,494 1.25 17,627 356,642 2.02
Short-term borrowings . . . . ... ... .. 4,331 49,064 1.13 3,125 52,723 1.69
Long-term borrowings . . . . ... ... .. 6,018 198,252 3.29 4,162 185,149 4.45
Total interest-beaving linbilities . . . . . 32,731 527,810 1.61 24914 594514 2.39
Noninterest-bearing deposits. . . . . . . .. 6,801 3,618
Other liabilities. . . . ... ... ....... 876 377
Total liabilities. . . . . ... ....... 40,408 28,909
Stockholders’ equity. . . ... ... ... .. 4941 3,026
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . $45,349 31,935
Net interest spread. . . . . .. ... .. ... 3.81 4.03
Contribution of interest-free funds . . . . . 28 .33
Net interest income,/margin
on earning assets. . . . . .. ... ... .. $1,615,068 4.09% 1,261,634 4.36%



Table 5

2001 2000 1999
Average Average Average Average Average Average
balance Interest rate balance Interest rate balance Interest rate
5,271 372,234 7.06% 4,129 365,951 8.86% 3,331 268,279 8.05%
9,224 732,162 7.94 7,188 615,304 8.56 5,908 497,247 8.42
4,354 328,979 7.55 3,266 249224 7.63 3,805 276,619 7.27
5,581 464,151 8.32 3,920 352,331 8.99 3,371 283,565 8.41
24,430 1,897,526 7.77 18,503 1,582,810 8.55 16,415 1,325,710 8.08
4 116 3.10 6 308 5.41 2 87 3.78
63 2,027 3.22 212 12,891 6.08 467 24491 5.24
13 413 3.16 21 1,069 5.08 48 3,221 6.71
80 2,556 3.20 239 14,268 5.97 517 27,799 5.37
1,709 113,908 6.67 1,603 105,104 6.56 920 53,108 5.77
332 24483 7.37 122 8,890 7.27 74 4,660 6.28
1,267 80,925 6.39 1,033 72,259 7.00 1,150 75,064 6.53
3,308 219,316 6.63 2,758 186,253 6.75 2,144 132,832 6.20
27,818 2,119,398 7.62 21,500 1,783,331 8.30 19,076 1,486,341 7.79
(409) (333) (312)
706 536 464
2,727 1,967 1,837
30,842 23,670 21,065
722 8,548 1.18 486 7,487 1.54 389 4,683 1.21
7,378 134,454 1.82 5,507 132,225 2.40 5,163 121,888 2.36
8,906 453,940 5.10 7,674 445,666 5.81 7,074 367,889 5.20
327 11,264 3.44 250 14915 5.95 254 12,016 473
17,333 608,206 3.51 13917 600,293 4.31 12,880 506,476 3.93
3,280 124,810 3.81 2,715 172,466 6.35 2,056 104911 5.10
3,538 210,581 5.95 2,086 145,838 6.99 1,748 107,847 6.17
24151 943,597 391 18,718 918,597 491 16,684 719,234 4.31
3,327 2,425 1,965
389 482 672
27.867 21,625 19,321
2,975 2,045 1,744
30,842 23,670 21,065
3.71 3.39 3.48
.52 .63 .54
1,175,801 4.23% 864,734 4.02% 767,107 4.02%
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COMMERCIAL LOANS AND LEASES, NET OF UNEARNED DISCOUNT

Table 6

(EXCLUDING LOANS SECURED BY REAL ESTATE)

December 31, 2003

Dollars in millions

New York State

Pennsylvania
Secured. . . ... ... ... .. ...
Unsecured . . . ... ..........
Leases. . .. .. ... ... .. .. ...

Total Pennsylvania . . . .. ... ..

Maryland
Secured . . . .. ... ...
Unsecured . . . ... ..........
Leases. . . . ... ............

Total Maryland . . . . ... ... ..

Other
Secured . . .. ... ... L.
Unsecured . ... ............
Leases. . . . ... ... ... ......

Total other. . . . .. ... .. .. ..

Total commercial loans and leases. .

and leases. Table 6 presents such
commercial loans and leases as of
December 31, 2003 by geographic area,
size, and whether the loans are secured
by collateral or unsecured. The Company
provides financing for leases to commer-
cial customers, primarily for equipment.
As already mentioned, commercial
loans and leases obtained in the Allfirst
transaction totaled $4.5 billion on
April 1, 2003, including $314 million
of leveraged leases. Included in the
Allfirst loan and lease portfolio were
certain business lines in which the
Company has not traditionally been
active. An international maritime
portfolio, which at April 1 and
December 31, 2003 totaled $113
million and $71 million, respectively,
was acquired. The Company does not
expect to grow this specialized business.
Other international loans attributable to
Allfirst totaled $132 million and $145
million at April 1 and December 31,
2003, respectively. The Company
participates in the insurance and
guarantee programs of the Export-
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Outstandings  $0-1

Percent of
dollars outstanding by loan size

$1-5 $5-10 $10+

$3,274.7 28% 29% 14% 6%

880.5 8 5 3 4
115.2 2 1 - -

42704 38% 35% 17% 10%

1,743.4 28%  23% 15% 8%

558.0 8 9 4 2
62.4 1

2,363.8 37%  33% 19% 11%

767.6 31%  20% 7% 12%
285.6 10 9 6 1
49.5 3 - 1 -

1,102.7 44% 29% 14% 13%

698.4 11% 21% 13% 2%
2974 8 5 4 3
484.7 4 12 8 9

1,480.5 23% 38%  25% 14%
$9,217 .4 36% 34% 19% 11%

Import Bank of the United States.
These programs provide U.S.
government repayment coverage of
90%-100% on loans supporting foreign
borrowers’ purchases of U.S. goods and
services. The loans generally range from
$500 thousand to $10 million. The
outstanding balance of loans under this
program at December 31, 2003 was
$123 million. Commercial leases
obtained on April 1, 2003 from Allfirst
totaled $610 million, and consisted of
general equipment leases with an
emphasis on transportation equipment,
including railcars, tractors, trailers and
commercial aircraft. The Company does
not expect to pursue growing the
commercial aircraft component of the
lease portfolio. The Company’s
commercial aircraft lease portfolio
totaled $99 million at December 31,
2003, including $70 million that was
obtained from Allfirst. Of the $9.2
billion of commercial loans and leases
outstanding at the 2003 year-end,
approximately $7.2 billion, or 78%, were
secured, while 46%, 26% and 12% were

granted to businesses in New York State,
Pennsylvania and Maryland, respectively.

Loans secured by real estate,
including outstanding balances of home
equity loans and lines of credit which
the Company classifies as consumer
loans, represented approximately 58%
of the loan and lease portfolio during
2003, compared with 63% in 2002 and
64% in 2001. At December 31, 2003,
the Company held approximately $12.4
billion of commercial real estate loans,
$3.1 billion of consumer real estate
loans secured by one-to-four family
residential properties and $5.0 billion
of outstanding balances of home equity
loans and lines of credit, compared with
$9.7 billion, $3.2 billion and $2.7
billion, respectively, at December 31,
2002. As of April 1, 2003, loans
obtained in the Allfirst acquisition that
were secured by real estate aggregated
$5.2 billion, including $2.5 billion of
commercial real estate loans, $383
million of consumer real estate loans
secured by one-to-four family residential
properties and $2.3 billion of out-
standing balances of home equity loans
and lines of credit.

A significant portion of commercial
real estate loans originated by the
Company are secured by properties in
the New York City metropolitan area,
including areas in neighboring states
generally considered to be within
commuting distance of New York City,
and other areas of New York State where
the Company operates, including the
Buffalo, Rochester, Syracuse, Albany,
Hudson Valley and Southern Tier
regions. Commercial real estate loans
are also originated through the
Company’s offices in Pennsylvania,
Maryland, northern Virginia,
Washington, D.C., Oregon and West
Virginia. Commercial real estate loans
obtained in the Allfirst transaction were
geographically centered in Allfirst’s
regional marketplace, with the majority
of that portfolio secured by properties
in Maryland, south central Pennsylvania,
northern Virginia and Washington,
D.C. Commercial real estate loans
originated by the Company include
fixed-rate instruments with monthly
payments and a balloon payment of the
remaining unpaid principal at maturity,
in many cases five years after origination.
For borrowers in good standing, the
terms of such loans may be extended by



COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE LOANS (NET OF UNEARNED DISCOUNT)

December 31, 2003

Dollars in millions

Metropolitan New York City
Apartments/Multifamily . . . . .. ..
Office. . .................
Retail . .. ... ... ... . ...
Construction. . . . . .. ........
Industrial . . . ... ... ........
Other. ..................

Total Metropolitan New York City .

Other New York State
Apartments/Multifamily . . . . .. ..
Office. . .................
Retail . .. ... ... ... .....
Construction. . . . ... ........
Industrial . . . ... ... ... .....
Other. .. ................

Total other New York State . . . . .

Pennsylvania
Apartments/Multifamily . . . . .. ..
Office. .. ................
Retail . . ... ... ... ...
Construction. . . . . ..........
Industrial . . . ... ... ... ...
Other...................

Total Pennsylvania . . . .. ... ..

Maryland
Apartments/Multifamily . . . . .. ..
Office. .. ................
Retail . .. ... ... ... .....
Construction. . . . ... ........
Industrial . . . ... ... ... .....
Other. .. ................

Total Maryland . . . . ... ... ..

Other
Apartments/Multifamily . . . . .. ..
Office. . .................
Retail . ... .. ... ... .....
Construction. . . . ... ........
Industrial . . . ... ... ........
Other. .. ................

Total other. . . ... .........

Total commercial real estate loans. .

the customer for an additional five years
at the then current market rate of
interest. The Company also originates
fixed-rate commercial real estate loans
with maturities of greater than five
years, generally having original maturity
terms of approximately ten years, and
adjustable-rate commercial real estate

Percent of
dollars outstanding by loan size

Outstandings  $0-1

$1-5 $5-10 $10+

1,567.8 5% 17% 7% 8%

4366 1 3 1 5
10370 2 10 5 7
931 - 1 - 1
588 1 1 - -
10763 1 7 6 11

4,269.6 10% 39% 19% 32%

294.0 3% 5% 1% %
1,0214 9 14 6 3
3286 4 4 1 1
230.8 1 2 2 2
259.1 5 3 1 -
1,0595 12 12 5 4

278.2 5% 3% 2% 2%
384.4 8 6 2 -
2221 4 4 1 -
2204 3 4 2 1
279.7 4 5 1 2
978.2 15 13 3 10

2,363.0 39% 35% 11% 15%

33.6 1% 1% % %
358.2 11 7 1 7
151.6 3 3 1 4
305.5 2 8 6 7
117.7 3 3 2 1
370.8 10 11 6 2

1,337.4 30% 33% 16%  21%

2249 2% 8% 3% 6%

173.5 2 3 2 7
250.4 1 5 5 9
89.9 - 3 2 2
82.4 2 3 - 2
386.6 4 11 8 10

1,207.7 11%  33%  20%  36%

$12,371.1 24% 37% 16% 23%

loans, which represented approximately
45% of the commercial real estate loan
portfolio as of December 31, 2003.
Table 7 presents commercial real estate
loans by geographic area, type of
collateral and size of the loans out-
standing at December 31, 2003. Of the
$4.3 billion of commercial real estate

Table 7

loans in the New York City metropolitan
area, approximately 37% were secured
by multifamily residential properties,
24% by retail space and 10% by office
space. The Company’s experience has
been that office space and retail
properties tend to demonstrate more
volatile fluctuations in value through
economic cycles and changing economic
conditions than do multifamily residential
properties. Approximately 49% of the
aggregate dollar amount of New York
City-area loans were for loans with out-
standing balances of $5 million or less,
while loans of more than $10 million
made up approximately 32% of the total.

Commercial real estate loans secured
by properties located in other parts of
New York State, Pennsylvania, Maryland
and other areas tend to have a greater
diversity of collateral types and include
a significant amount of lending to
customers who use the mortgaged
property in their trade or business.
Approximately 74% of the aggregate
dollar amount of commercial real estate
loans in New York State secured by
properties located outside of the
metropolitan New York City area were
for loans with outstanding balances of
$5 million or less. Of the outstanding
balance of commercial real estate loans
in Pennsylvania and Maryland, approx-
imately 74% and 63%, respectively, were
for loans with outstanding balances of
$5 million or less.

Commercial real estate loans
secured by properties located outside
of New York State, Pennsylvania,
Maryland and areas of neighboring
states considered to be part of the
New York City metropolitan area,
comprised 10% of total commercial real
estate loans as of December 31, 2003.

Mg Realty Capital Corporation,
one of the Company’s commercial real
estate lending subsidiaries, participates
in the FNMA Delegated Underwriting
and Servicing (“DUS”) program,
pursuant to which commercial real
estate loans are originated in accordance
with terms and conditions specified by
third-party investors and subsequently
sold to such investors. The Company’s
involvement with the FNMA DUS
program resulted from the Allfirst
acquisition. At December 31, 2003,
$1 million of commercial real estate
loans were held for sale.

Commercial construction loans
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LOANS AND LEASES (NET OF UNEARNED DISCOUNT)

December 31, 2003

Dollars in millions Outstandings
Real estate
Residential. . . . ... ... $ 3,081.4
Commercial . . . ...... 12,371.1
Total real estate . . . . . 15,452.5
Commercial, financial, etc. . 8,505.6
Consumer
Secured or guaranteed . . 10,401.1
Unsecured . ... ..... 276.0
Total consumer . . . . . 10,677.1
Total loans. . . . . .. 34,635.2
Leases
Commercial . . ... ... 711.8
Consumer . . ....... 4254
Total leases. . . . .. .. 1,137.2
Total loans and leases. . $35,772.4

Table 8

Percent of dollars outstanding

New York

State Pennsylvania Maryland Other

43% 17% 8%  32%
60 19 11 10

57% 19% 10% 14%
49% 27% 12% 12%
40% 33% 12% 15%
39 27 30 4

40% 33% 12% 15%
50% 25% 11% 14%
16% 9% 7%  68%
21 53 1 25

18% 25% 5%  52%
49% 25% 11% 15%

@ Includes loans secured by properties located in neighboring states generally considered to be

within commuting distance of New York City.

presented in table 7 totaled $940 million
at December 31, 2003, or approximately
3% of total loans and leases.

Real estate loans secured by one-to-
four family residential properties totaled
$3.1 billion at December 31, 2003,
including approximately 43% secured by
properties located in New York State
and 17% secured by properties located in
Pennsylvania. As already discussed, resi-
dential real estate loans obtained in the
Allfirst transaction totaled $383 million
on April 1, 2003. At December 31, 2003,
$723 million of residential real estate
loans were held for sale, compared with
$1.1 billion at December 31, 2002.
Loans to finance the construction of or
development projects related to one-to-
four family residential properties totaled
$597 million at December 31, 2003, or
approximately 2% of total loans and
leases. Included in such construction
loans were loans to residential real estate
developers aggregating $246 million.

Consumer loans and leases
represented approximately 30% of the
average loan portfolio during 2003, up
from 27% during 2002 and 23% during
2001. Automobile loans and leases and
outstanding balances of home equity
lines of credit represent the largest
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components of the consumer loan
portfolio. Approximately 60% of home
equity lines of credit outstanding at
December 31, 2003 were secured by
properties in New York State and 22%
and 15% were secured by properties in
Pennsylvania and Maryland, respectively.
At December 31, 2003, 31% and 40%
of the automobile loan and lease
portfolio were to customers residing in
New York State and Pennsylvania,
respectively. Automobile loans and
leases have generally been originated
through dealers, however, all applications
submitted through dealers are subject
to the Company’s normal underwriting
and loan approval procedures.
Automobile loans and leases repre-
sented approximately 12% of the
Company’s average loan portfolio
during 2003, while no other consumer
loan product represented more than
8%. The average outstanding balance
of automobile leases was approximately
$527 million in 2003, $556 million in
2002 and $587 million in 2001.
During 2003 the Company decided to
cease origination of automobile leases
concentrating instead on its larger
automobile loan origination business.
Given the growth in the Company’s

automobile loan portfolio, the decision
to cease origination of new auto leases
did not have a significant negative
impact on the Company’s results of
operations. At December 31, 2003 and
2002, outstanding automobile leases
totaled $425 million and $527 million,
respectively.

Table 8 presents the composition
of the Company’s loan and lease
portfolio at December 31, 2003,
including outstanding balances to
businesses and consumers in New York
State, Pennsylvania, Maryland and
other states. Approximately 49% of total
loans and leases at the 2003 year-end
were to New York State customers, while
25% and 11% were to Pennsylvania and
Maryland customers, respectively.

Investment securities averaged
$5.3 billion in 2003, compared with
$3.1 billion in 2002 and $3.3 billion in
2001. The previously discussed retention
of mortgage-backed securities related to
the fourth quarter 2003 and 2002
securitizations of residential real estate
loans of $1.2 billion and $1.1 billion,
respectively, added approximately $817
million to average investment securities
in 2003. Investment securities obtained
in the Allfirst transaction totaled approx-
imately $1.3 billion on April 1, 2003
and contributed approximately $887
million of 2003’s average balance of
investment securities. The investment
securities portfolio is largely comprised
of residential and commercial mortgage-
backed securities and collateralized
mortgage obligations, debt securities
issued by municipalities, debt and
preferred equity securities issued by
government-sponsored agencies and
certain financial institutions, and
shorter-term U.S. Treasury notes.
When purchasing investment securities,
the Company considers its overall
interest-rate risk profile as well as the
adequacy of expected returns relative to
risks assumed, including prepayments.
In managing its investment securities
portfolio, the Company occasionally
sells investment securities as a result of
changes in interest rates and spreads,
actual or anticipated prepayments, or
credit risk associated with a particular
security, or as a result of restructuring
its investment securities portfolio
following completion of a business
combination. Average money-market
assets, which are comprised of interest-



AVERAGE CORE DEPOSITS

Dollars in millions

Table 9

Percent increase (decrease) from
2003 2002 to 2003 2001 to 2002

NOW accounts . . .. .......... $ 1,021 34% 5%
Savings deposits . . . . . ... 13,208 49 20
Time deposits under $100,000 . . . . . 4756 9 (29)
Noninterest-bearing deposits . . . . . . 6,801 88 9
Total . ... ... L $25,786 47% - %

earning deposits at banks, interest-
earning trading account assets, federal
funds sold and agreements to resell
securities, totaled $216 million in
2003, compared with $291 million in
2002 and $80 million in 2001. The
amounts of investment securities and
money-market assets held by the
Company are influenced by such factors
as demand for loans, which generally
yield more than investment securities
and money-market assets, ongoing
repayments, the level of deposits, and
management of balance sheet size and
resulting capital ratios.

Core deposits represent the most
significant source of funding for the
Company and are comprised of
noninterest-bearing deposits, interest-
bearing transaction accounts, nonbro-
kered savings deposits and nonbrokered
domestic time deposits under $100,000.
The Company’s branch network is its
principal source of core deposits, which
generally carry lower interest rates than
wholesale funds of comparable maturities.
Certificates of deposit under $100,000
generated on a nationwide basis by M&I'
Bank, N.A. are also included in core
deposits. Average core deposits were
$25.8 billion in 2003 and $17.6 billion
in 2002 and 2001. Core deposits
assumed in connection with the Allfirst
acquisition totaled approximately $10.7
billion on April 1, 2003. Due to the
low interest rate environment, the
Company experienced a significant shift
in the composition of core deposits
throughout the past three years.
Reflecting a change in customer saving
trends, average core savings and
noninterest-bearing deposits rose during
that period, while average time deposits
under $100,000 decreased, exclusive of
the impact of core deposits obtained in
the Allfirst acquisition. Average core
deposits of M&I' Bank, N.A. were $267
million in 2003, $342 million in 2002

and $521 million in 2001. Funding
provided by core deposits represented
65% of average carning assets in 2003,
compared with 61% in 2002 and 63% in
2001. Table 9 summarizes average core
deposits in 2003 and percentage
changes in the components of such
deposits over the past two years.

The Company also obtains funding
through domestic time deposits of
$100,000 or more, deposits originated
through the Company’s oftshore branch
office, and brokered deposits. Domestic
time deposits over $100,000, excluding
brokered certificates of deposit, averaged
$1.2 billion in 2003 and 2002, compared
with $2.0 billion in 2001. Offshore
branch deposits, primarily comprised of
accounts with balances of $100,000 or
more, averaged $1.4 billion in 2003,
compared with $569 million and $327
million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Brokered time deposits averaged $643
million in 2003, $1.9 billion in 2002
and $794 million in 2001, and totaled
$827 million at December 31, 2003.
The weighted-average remaining term
to maturity of brokered time deposits at
December 31, 2003 was 19 months.
Certain of these brokered deposits
have provisions that allow for early
redemption. In connection with the
Company’s management of interest rate
risk, interest rate swaps have been
entered into under which the Company
receives a fixed rate of interest and pays
a variable rate and that have notional
amounts and terms substantially similar
to the amounts and terms of $110
million of brokered time deposits.
Beginning in 2002, the Company also
had brokered money-market deposit
accounts, which averaged $70 million in
2003 and $59 million in 2002.
Offshore branch deposits and brokered
deposits have been used as an alternative
to short-term borrowings. Additional
amounts of offshore branch deposits or

2003 AVERAGE FUNDING SOURCES

17% Noninterest-bearing

deposits

2002 AVERAGE FUNDING SOURCES

48% Interest-bearing
core deposits

9% Other deposits

26% Borrowings

13% Noninterest-bearing
deposits

1% Capital and other
net free funds

48% Interest-bearing
core deposits

13% Other deposits

25% Borrowings




AVERAGE CORE DEPOSITS
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brokered deposits may be solicited in
the future depending on market
conditions, including demand by
customers and other investors for such
deposits, and the cost of funds available
from alternative sources at the time.
The Company also uses
borrowings from banks, securities
dealers, the Federal Home Loan Bank
of New York, Pittsburgh and Atlanta
(together, the “FHLB”), and others
as sources of funding. Short-term
borrowings averaged $4.3 billion in
2003, $3.1 billion in 2002 and $3.3
billion in 2001. Amounts borrowed
from the FHLB and included in short-
term borrowings averaged $439 million
in 2003, $904 million in 2002 and
$814 million in 2001. Also included in
short-term borrowings is a $500 million
revolving asset-backed structured
borrowing secured by automobile loans
that were transferred to M&I' Auto
Receivables I, LLC, a special purpose
subsidiary of M&I' Bank formed in
November 2002. The subsidiary, the
loans and the borrowings are included
in the consolidated financial statements
of the Company. Additional information
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about M&T' Auto Receivables I, LLC
and the revolving borrowing agreement
is included in note 18 of Notes to
Financial Statements. The remaining
short-term borrowings were predomi-
nantly comprised of unsecured federal
funds borrowings, which generally
mature daily.

The average balance of long-term
borrowings was $6.0 billion in 2003,
$4.2 billion in 2002 and $3.5 billion in
2001. Included in average long-term
borrowings were amounts borrowed
from the FHLB of $3.9 billion in 2003,
$3.0 billion in 2002 and $2.4 billion in
2001, and subordinated capital notes of
$1.2 billion in 2003, $668 million in
2002 and $674 million in 2001. As
previously noted, in anticipation of the
Allfirst acquisition, M&I Bank issued
$400 million of subordinated notes on
March 31, 2003 to fund a portion of
the cash consideration paid to AIB and
to maintain appropriate regulatory
capital ratios. Trust preferred securities
associated with junior subordinated
debentures of M&T included in average
long-term borrowings totaled $595
million in 2003, compared with $318
million in 2002 and 2001. Subordinated
capital notes and trust preferred securities
associated with junior subordinated
debentures obtained in the Allfirst
acquisition on April 1, 2003 averaged
$252 million and $277 million,
respectively, in 2003. As described in
notes 9 and 18 of Notes to Financial
Statements, as of December 31, 2003
the Company applied new accounting
provisions promulgated by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
and removed the trusts that had issued
the trust preferred securities from its
consolidated balance sheet. That change
in financial statement presentation had
no economic impact on the Company,
no material or substantive impact on
the Company’s financial statements as
of and for the year ended December
31, 2003, and no impact on 2003’s
average balances noted herein. Additional
information regarding junior subordinated
debentures, as well as information
regarding contractual maturities of
long-term borrowings, is provided in
note 9 of Notes to Financial Statements.
Certain interest rate swap agreements
have been entered into by the Company
as part of its management of interest
rate risk relating to long-term

borrowings. Further information on
such interest rate swap agreements is
provided in note 17 of Notes to
Financial Statements.

In addition to changes in the
composition of the Company’s earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities,
changes in interest rates and spreads can
impact net interest income. Net interest
spread, or the difference between the
yield on earning assets and the rate paid
on interest-bearing liabilities, was 3.81%
in 2003, down from 4.03% in 2002.
The yield on earning assets during 2003
was 5.42%, down 100 basis points from
6.42% in 2002, while the rate paid on
interest-bearing liabilities decreased 78
basis points to 1.61% from 2.39% in
2002. Lower vielding portfolios of loans
and investment securities obtained in the
Allfirst merger contributed to the
reduced yields on earning assets in 2003
when compared with 2002 and were the
leading cause for the lower year-over-
year net interest spread. The decreases in
interest rates earned and paid also reflect
generally lower market interest rates in
2003 as compared with 2002, including
the impact of reductions by the Federal
Reserve of its benchmark overnight
federal funds target rate of 50 basis
points in November 2002 and 25 basis
points in June 2003.

The Federal Reserve also took
numerous actions throughout 2001 to
lower the level of interest rates by reducing
its benchmark overnight federal funds
target rate by 475 basis points. In general,
the full-year impact of such actions
combined with the 50 basis point reduction
in November 2002 contributed to a
greater decline in 2002’s short-term rates
on deposits and borrowings as compared
with the decline in yields on loans and
other earning assets. As a result, the impact
of changing interest rates had a positive
effect on the Company’s net interest
spread in 2002 as compared with 2001.
The yield on the Company’s earning
assets decreased 120 basis points in 2002
from 7.62% in 2001, while the rate paid
on interest-bearing liabilities in 2002 was
down 152 basis points from 3.91%. The
impact of the more rapid repricing of
interest-bearing liabilities than earning
assets combined with the full-year impact
of 2001°s interest rate reductions led to a
32 basis point increase in the Company’s
net interest spread, from 3.71% in 2001
to 4.03% in 2002.



Net interest-free funds consist
largely of noninterest-bearing demand
deposits and stockholders’ equity,
partially offset by bank owned life
insurance and non-earning assets,
including goodwill and core deposit
and other intangible assets. Average
net interest-free funds totaled $6.8
billion in 2003, $4.0 billion in 2002
and $3.7 billion in 2001. The higher
level of average net interest-free funds
in 2003 was due largely to the impact
of the Allfirst acquisition, which
provided, on average for 2003,
noninterest-bearing deposits of $2.8
billion and stockholders’ equity of $1.5
billion, partially offset by goodwill and
core deposit and other intangible assets
of $1.5 billion and bank owned life
insurance of $214 million. The increase
in average net interest-free funds in
2002 as compared with 2001 was
largely the result of higher levels of
noninterest-bearing deposits and
stockholders’ equity. Goodwill and
core deposit and other intangible
assets averaged $2.7 billion in 2003,
$1.2 billion in 2002 and $1.3 billion
in 2001. The cash surrender value of
bank owned life insurance averaged
$858 million in 2003, $604 million
in 2002 and $573 million in 2001.
Increases in the cash surrender value
of bank owned life insurance are not
included in interest income, but rather
are recorded in “other revenues from
operations.” The contribution of net
interest-free funds to net interest margin
was .28% in 2003, compared with .33%
in 2002 and .52% in 2001. The decline
in the contribution to net interest
margin ascribed to net interest-free

INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS

Dollars in thousands

Increase (decrease) in:

Interestincome . . . ... ... ... ..
Interest expense . . . . ... ... ... ..

Net interest income/margin. . . . . . . .

b)

Average notional amount™. . . .. ... ..
Rate received@ . . . . ... oL
Rate paid® . ... .......... ... ...

funds in 2003 and 2002 compared
with 2001 resulted largely from the
impact of lower interest rates on
interest-bearing liabilities used to value
such contribution, offset, in part, by
higher balances of net interest-free
funds. Reflecting the changes to the net
interest spread and the contribution of
interest-free funds as described herein,
the Company’s net interest margin was
4.09% in 2003, compared with 4.36%
in 2002 and 4.23% in 2001. As noted
previously, lower yielding portfolios

of loans and investment securities
obtained in the Allfirst acquisition
contributed to the lower net interest
margin in 2003 as compared with
2002. Nevertheless, the net interest
margin declined in each quarter of
2003. As a result, the net interest margin
of 3.96% in 2003’s fourth quarter was
the lowest quarterly net interest margin
carned by the Company since the first
quarter of 2000.

The Company’s net interest
income and net interest margin could
be adversely impacted by future changes
in market interest rates or spreads, as
well as changes in the composition of
the Company’s portfolios of earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities
that result in reductions in spreads.
Management assesses the potential
impact of future changes in interest
rates and spreads by projecting net
interest income under several interest
rate scenarios. In managing interest rate
risk, the Company utilizes interest rate
swap agreements to modify the repricing
characteristics of certain portions of its
portfolios of earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities. Periodic settlement

amounts arising from these agreements
are generally reflected in either the
yields earned on assets or, as appro-
priate, the rates paid on interest-bearing
liabilities. The notional amount of
interest rate swap agreements entered
into for interest rate risk management
purposes as of December 31, 2003
was $685 million. In general, under
the terms of these swap agreements,
the Company receives payments based
on the outstanding notional amount
of the swaps at fixed rates of interest
and makes payments at variable rates.
As of December 31, 2003, all of
the Company’s interest rate swap
agreements entered into for risk
management purposes had been
designated as fair value hedges. In
a fair value hedge, the fair value of
the derivative (the interest rate swap
agreement) and changes in the fair
value of the hedged item are recorded
in the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet with the corresponding gain or
loss recognized in current earnings.
The difference between changes in
the fair value of the interest rate swap
agreements and the hedged items
represents hedge ineffectiveness and
is recorded in “other revenues from
operations” in the Company’s consol-
idated statement of income. In a cash
flow hedge, unlike in a fair value hedge,
the effective portion of the derivative’s
gain or loss is initially reported as a
component of other comprehensive
income and subsequently reclassified
into earnings when the forecasted
transaction affects earnings. The
ineffective portion of the gain or loss
is reported in “other revenues from

Year ended December 31

2003

Amount Rate® Amount
$ - —% $  (673)
(17,327) (.05) (9,495)
$ 17,327 .05 % $ 8,822
$688,603 $693.910

6.06 %

3.55 %

" Computed as a percentage of average earning assets or interest-beaving linbilities.
® Excludes forward-starting interest vate swap agreements.
) Weighted-average rate paid or received on interest rate swap agreements in effect during year.

2002

Table 10
2001

Rate® Amount Rate®
—% $ (360) — 9

(.04) (7,080) (.03)
.03 % $ 6,720 .03 %

$522,730

3.48 % 5.75 %
221 % 4.47 %
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operations” immediately. The amounts
of hedge ineffectiveness of both fair
value and cash flow hedges recognized
in 2003, 2002 and 2001 were not
material to the Company’s results of
operations. The estimated fair values

of interest rate swap agreements desig-
nated as fair value hedges represented

a loss of approximately $1 million at
December 31, 2003, compared with

a gain of $8 million at December 31,
2002. The fair values of such swap
agreements were substantially offset by
changes in the fair values of the hedged
items. The estimated fair value of the
interest rate swap agreements designated
as cash flow hedges was a loss of approx-
imately $1 million at December 31,
2002. Net of applicable income taxes,
such loss was approximately $622
thousand and was included in “accumu-
lated other comprehensive income, net”
in the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2002. The
changes in the fair values of the interest
rate swap agreements and the hedged
items result from the effects of changing
interest rates. The average notional
amounts of interest rate swap agreements
entered into for interest rate risk manage-
ment purposes, the related effect on net
interest income and margin, and the
weighted-average rate paid or received
on those swaps are presented in table 10.

The Company maintains an allowance
for credit losses that in management’s
judgment is adequate to absorb losses
inherent in the loan and lease portfolio.
A provision for credit losses is recorded
to adjust the level of the allowance as
deemed necessary by management. The
provision for credit losses was $131
million in 2003, up from $122 million
in 2002 and $104 million in 2001. Net
loan charge-offs were $97 million in
2003, compared with $108 million and
$75 million in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Net loan charge-offs as a
percentage of average loans outstanding
were .28% in 2003, compared with
42% in 2002 and .31% in 2001. Net
charge-ofts in 2003 of loans acquired
from Allfirst were not significant. A
summary of loan charge-offs, provision
and allowance for credit losses is
presented in table 11.

Nonperforming loans consist of
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nonaccrual and restructured loans and
aggregated $240 million or .67% of
loans and leases outstanding at
December 31, 2003, compared with
$215 million or .84% at December 31,
2002 and $190 million or .76% at
December 31, 2001. The increase in
the amount of loans classified as nonper-
forming at December 31, 2003 as
compared with a year earlier reflects the
inclusion of approximately $67 million
of such loans obtained in the Allfirst
acquisition. The higher level of nonper-
forming loans at December 31, 2002
compared with December 31, 2001
was largely the result of the inclusion at
the 2002 year-end of three commercial
loans totaling $49 million that were
classified as nonperforming during
2002. Outstanding balances relating
to those same three loans included in
nonperforming loans at December 31,
2003 totaled $33 million, including
a $17 million portion obtained in the
acquisition of Allfirst. That $17 million
is included in the $67 million of
nonperforming loans noted above.

Loans past due 90 days or more
and accruing interest totaled $155
million or .43% of total loans and leases
at December 31, 2003, compared with
$154 million or .60% at December 31,
2002 and $147 million or .58% at
December 31, 2001. Such loans at the
recent year-end include $17 million
of accruing loans past due 90 days or
more obtained in the Allfirst transaction.
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more
also included $118 million, $123 million
and $108 million at December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, of
one-to-four family residential mortgage
loans serviced by the Company and
repurchased from the Government
National Mortgage Association
(“GNMA”). The outstanding principal
balances of the repurchased loans
are fully guaranteed by government
agencies. The loans were repurchased
to reduce servicing costs associated
with them, including a requirement
to advance principal and interest
payments that had not been received
from individual mortgagors. A summary
of nonperforming assets and certain
past due loan data is presented in
table 12.

Factors that influence the
Company’s credit loss experience include
overall economic conditions affecting
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businesses and consumers, in general,
and, due to the size of the Company’s
commercial real estate loan portfolio,
real estate valuations, in particular.
Commercial real estate valuations can be
highly subjective, as they are based upon
many assumptions. Such values can be
significantly affected over relatively short
periods of time by changes in business
climate, economic conditions, interest
rates, and, in many cases, the results of
operations of businesses and other
occupants of the real property.

Net charge-offs of commercial real
estate loans in 2003 were $6 million,
compared with $7 million in 2002 and
$5 million in 2001. Nonperforming
commercial real estate loans totaled
$48 million at December 31, 2003,
compared with $49 million and $39
million at December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Commercial real
estate loans obtained in the acquisition
of Allfirst classified as nonperforming
at December 31, 2003 were $4 million.

Commercial loans and leases
charged oft during 2003 and 2001,
net of recoveries, totaled $32 million,
compared with $54 million in 2002.
Included in 2002’s net charge-offs was



the entire $17 million outstanding
balance of two leases to a major airline
company that filed for bankruptcy
protection in the third quarter of that
year. Nonperforming commercial loans
and leases totaled $120 million at
December 31, 2003, $102 million a
year carlier and $85 million at
December 31, 2001. Commercial loans
and leases obtained in the acquisition of
Allfirst classified as nonperforming at
December 31, 2003 were $45 million.
During 2003 and 2002, net

charge-offs of residential real estate
loans were $5 million, compared with
$4 million in 2001. Residential real
estate loans classified as nonperforming
at December 31, 2003 totaled $51
million, compared with $37 million

LOAN CHARGE-OFES, PROVISION AND ALLOWANCE

FOR CREDIT LOSSES

Dollars in thousands 2003
Allowance for credit losses
beginning balance . . .. .. $436,472
Charge-offs during year
Commercial, financial,
agricultural, etc. . . . . .. 44782
Real estate — construction . . 2
Real estate — mortgage. . . . 13,999
Consumer . . ... ...... 68,737
Total charge-offs . . . . . 127,520
Recoveries during year
Commercial, financial,
agricultural, etc. . . .. .. 12,517
Real estate — construction . . 4
Real estate — mortgage. . . . 3,436
Consumer . . . ........ 15,047
Total recoveries . . . . . . 31,004
Net charge-offs . . . ... ... 96,516
Provision for credit losses . . . 131,000
Allowance for credit losses
acquired during the year. . . 146,300
Allowance related to loans
sold or securitized . . . . .. (3,198)
Allowance for credit losses
ending balance . . ... ... $614,058
Net charge-offs as a percent of:
Provision for credit losses . . 73.68%
Average loans and leases,
net of unearned discount . . .28%
Allowance for credit losses
as a percent of loans and
leases, net of unearned
discount, at year-end . . . 1.72%

and $35 million at December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively. Residential real
estate loans past due 90 days or more
and accruing interest totaled $141
million, $142 million and $135 million
at December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. As already noted, a sub-
stantial portion of such amounts relate
to loans repurchased from GNMA
which are fully guaranteed by govern-
ment agencies. Residential real estate
loans obtained in the Allfirst acquisition
classified as nonperforming and past due
90 days or more and accruing interest
aggregated $13 million and $7 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2003.
Net charge-offs of consumer loans
and leases were $54 million in 2003,
representing .53% of average consumer

Table 11
2002 2001 2000 1999
425,008 374,703 316,165 306,347
57,401 35,555 6,943 19,246
88 - - -
13,969 13,849 7,133 5,159
53,124 44,750 28,855 35,250
124,582 94154 42931 59,655
3,129 3,949 1,199 2,244
- - - 406
2,333 4,027 3,551 3,180
11,370 10,871 9,201 13,507
16,832 18,847 13,951 19,337
107,750 75,307 28,980 40,318
122,000 103,500 38,000 44,500
- 22,112 49518 5,636
(2,786) - - -
436,472 425,008 374,703 316,165
88.32% 72.76%  76.26%  90.60%
42% 31% .16% 25%
1.70% 1.69% 1.65% 1.82%
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loans and leases outstanding during the
year, compared with $42 million or .62%
in 2002 and $34 million or .61% in 2001.
Indirect automobile loans and leases repre-
sented the most significant category of
consumer loan charge-offs in each of the
past three years. Net indirect automobile
loan and lease charge-offs during 2003
were $32 million, compared with $21
million and $12 million in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Consumer loans and leases
classified as nonperforming totaled $21
million or .19% of outstanding consumer
loans and leases at December 31, 2003,
compared with $27 million or .37% at
December 31, 2002 and $31 million or
.51% at December 31, 2001. Consumer
loans and leases past due 90 days or more
and accruing interest totaled $3 million at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and $5
million at December 31, 2001. Consumer
loans and leases obtained in the Allfirst
transaction classified as nonperforming
and past due 90 days or more and accruing
interest totaled $5 million and $1 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2003.

The Company maintains an
allowance for credit losses which it
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NONPERFORMING ASSETS AND PAST DUE LOAN DATA

Dollars in thousands

December 31 2003
Nonaccrual loans . . . ... .. $232.983
Renegotiated loans . . . . . .. 7,309
Total nonperforming loans . . 240,292
Real estate and other
assetsowned . .. ... ... 19,629
Total nonperforming assets . . $259,921
Accruing loans past due
90 days or more®™ . ... .. $154,759
Government guaranteed loans
included in totals above:
Nonperforming loans . . . $ 19,355
Accruing loans past due
90 days or more . . . . . 124,585
Nonperforming loans
to total loans and leases, net
of unearned discount . . . .67%
Nonperforming assets to total
net loans and leases and
real estate and other
assets owned . . . ... .. .73%
Accruing loans past due
90 days or more to total
loans and leases, net of
unearned discount . . . . . 43%

@ Predominantly residentinl mortgage loans.

believes is adequate to absorb losses
inherent in the loan and lease portfolio
as of each respective balance sheet date.
Management regularly assesses the
adequacy of the allowance by performing
ongoing evaluations of the loan and
lease portfolio, including such factors as
the differing economic risks associated
with each loan category, the current
financial condition of specific borrowers,
the economic environment in which
borrowers operate, the level of delinquent
loans, the value of any collateral and,
where applicable, the existence of any
guarantees or indemnifications.
Management evaluated the impact of
changes in interest rates and overall
economic conditions on the ability of
borrowers to meet repayment obligations
when quantifying the Company’s
exposure to credit losses and assessing
the adequacy of the Company’s
allowance for such losses as of each
reporting date. Factors also considered
by management when performing its
assessment, in addition to general
economic conditions and the other
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Table 12

2002 2001 2000 1999

207,038 180,344 100951 61,816
8252 10,128 9,688 10,353
215,290 190472 110,639 72,169
17,380 16,387 13,619 10,000
232,670 206,859 124258 82,169
153,803 146,899 141,843 31,017
11,885 10,196 8,625 5,239
129,114 113,600 102,505 11,290
84% 76% 49% A41%
90% 82% 55% A7%
.60% 58% 62% 18%

factors described above, included, but
were not limited to: (i) the concentration
of commercial real estate loans in the
Company’s loan portfolio, particularly
the large concentration of loans secured
by properties in New York State, in
general, and in the New York City
metropolitan area, in particular; (ii) the
amount of commercial and industrial
loans to businesses in areas of New York
State outside of the New York City
metropolitan area and in central
Pennsylvania that have historically
experienced less economic growth and
vitality than the vast majority of other
regions of the country; (iii) significant
growth in loans to individual consumers,
which historically have experienced
higher net charge-offs as a percentage of
loans outstanding than other loan types;
and (iv) the large portfolios of loans
obtained in the acquisition of Allfirst
which management continues to evaluate
in accordance with the Company’s
policies and procedures for credit
underwriting, loan classification, and
measurement of exposure to loss. The

level of the allowance for credit losses
is adjusted based on the results of
management’s analysis.

Management cautiously and
conservatively evaluated the allowance
for credit losses as of December 31,
2003 in light of (i) the uncertain status
of the overall economic recovery;

(ii) the mixed economic indicators being
proffered by government economists and
others; and (iii) given the relative size
of the acquired Allfirst loan portfolios,
the status of management’s ongoing
detailed credit reviews of such portfolios.
Although there are signs that the
national economy has improved and
optimism about its future outlook is
growing, concerns exist about stagnant
job growth, which could cause
consumer spending to slow; higher
interest rates, which could adversely
impact the housing market; continued
stagnant population growth in the
upstate New York and central
Pennsylvania regions; and sluggish
commercial loan demand.

In ascertaining the adequacy of the
allowance for credit losses, the Company
estimates losses attributable to specific
troubled credits and also estimates losses
inherent in other loans and leases. The
total allowance for credit losses, therefore,
includes both specific and inherent base
level loss components, as well as inherent
unallocated loss components. The
following paragraphs describe these
components.

The amount of specific loss
components in the Company’s loan and
lease portfolios is determined through a
loan by loan analysis of all commercial
and commercial real estate loans which
are in nonaccrual status. Specific loss
components are also established for
certain classified commercial loans and
leases and commercial real estate loans
greater than $250,000 when it is
determined that there is a differing risk
of loss than otherwise prescribed under
the inherent base level loss component
calculation. Measurement of the specific
loss components is typically based on
expected future cash flows, collateral
values and other factors that may impact
the borrower’s ability to pay. Impaired
loans, as defined in SFAS No. 114,
“Accounting by Creditors for Impairment
of'a Loan,” as amended, are evaluated
for specific loss components. Except for
consumer loans and leases and



residential real estate loans that are
considered smaller balance homoge-
neous loans and are evaluated
collectively, the Company considers a
loan to be impaired when, based on
current information and events, it is
probable that the Company will be
unable to collect all amounts according
to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement or the loan is delinquent 90
days or more. Loans less than 90 days
delinquent are deemed to have a
minimum delay in payment and are
generally not considered to be impaired.

The inherent base level loss
components are generally determined
by applying loss factors to specific loan
balances based on loan type and manage-
ment’s classification of such loans under
the Company’s loan grading system.
The Company utilizes a loan grading
system which is applied to all commercial
and commercial real estate credits. Loan
officers are responsible for continually
assigning grades to these loans based
on standards outlined in the Company’s
Credit Policy. Internal loan grades are
also extensively monitored by the
Company’s loan review department to
ensure consistency and strict adherence
to the prescribed standards.

Loan balances utilized in the
inherent base level loss component
computations exclude loans and leases
for which specific allocations are
maintained. Loan grades are assigned
loss component factors that reflect the
Company’s loss estimate for each group
of loans and leases. Items considered
in assigning loan grades and loss
component factors include borrower-
specific information related to expected
future cash flows and operating results,
collateral value, financial condition,
payment status, and other factors; levels
of and trends in portfolio charge-ofts
and recoveries; levels of and trends in
portfolio delinquencies and impaired
loans; changes in the risk profile of
specific portfolios; trends in volume
and terms of loans; national and local
economic conditions and trends; and
observed trends and practices in the
banking industry.

The specific loss components and
the inherent base level loss components
together comprise the total base level
or “allocated” allowance for credit
losses. Such allocated portion of the
allowance represents management’s

assessment of near-term charge-ofts and
losses existing in specific larger balance
loans that are reviewed in detail by
management and pools of other loans
that are not individually analyzed.

The inherent unallocated portion
of the allowance is intended to provide
for probable losses that are not otherwise
identifiable. The inherent unallocated
allowance includes management’s
subjective determination of amounts
necessary for such things as economic
uncertainties; customer, industry and
geographic concentrations; and
expansion into new products and
market areas. The unallocated portion
of the allowance is intended to provide
for probable losses that are not
otherwise identifiable resulting from
(i) comparatively poorer economic
conditions and an unfavorable business
climate in many market regions served
by the Company, specifically New York
State and central Pennsylvania, that
resulted in such regions not having
experienced the same degree of
economic growth in previous years as
experienced by much of the rest of the
country; (i) portfolio concentrations
regarding loan type, collateral type and
geographic location, in particular the
large concentration of commercial real
estate loans secured by properties in the
New York City metropolitan area and
other areas of New York State; (iii) the
effect of expansion into new markets,
including market areas entered through
acquisitions; (iv) the introduction of
new loan and lease product types,
including loans and leases to foreign
and domestic borrowers obtained
through acquisitions; (v) additional risk
associated with growth in the Company’s
portfolio of consumer loans in recent
years, in particular automobile loans
and leases, which generally have higher
rates of loss than other types of
collateralized loans; (vi) the possible use
of imprecise estimates in determining
the allocated portion of the allowance;
and (vii) additional uncertainty
resulting from acquired loan portfolios
to be fully analyzed by the Company’s
loan review department in order to
become familiar with the underlying
characteristics of the portfolios and
specific borrowers.

Commercial real estate valuations
include many assumptions and, as a
result, can be highly subjective.

Commercial real estate values in the
New York City metropolitan area can be
significantly affected over relatively short
periods of time by changes in business
climate, economic conditions and
interest rates, and, in many cases, the
results of operations of businesses and
other occupants of the real property.
The tragic events of September 11,
2001 further dampened the economic
outlook for the United States, which in
2001 and 2002 experienced its first
significant downturn in many years. The
cconomies of New York State, and New
York City in particular, were specifically
damaged by the events of September
11, 2001. Economic performance of the
most significant market regions served
by the Company during 2003 was
mixed. Private sector job growth in the
upstate New York market approximated
the national average (which was a slight
decline from 2002). The manufacturing-
oriented metropolitan areas of Buftalo,
Rochester and Syracuse continued to
experience weakness, including
announced corporate layofts in those
areas. In the Hudson-Valley region of
New York State, private sector job
growth was more than one full
percentage point higher than the
national average (1.4% compared with
job loss of .2% nationally). Also better
than the national average for private
sector job growth were the Maryland,
northern Virginia and southeastern
Pennsylvania regions, whereas the
Binghamton, New York and eastern
Pennsylvania regions, largely
manufacturing-oriented, lagged the
national average. These mixed signals
on private sector job growth, combined
with concerns about higher interest
rates, high levels of consumer
indebtedness, lack of population growth
in the upstate New York and central
Pennsylvania regions and other factors,
continue to indicate an environment of
economic uncertainty, both in the
markets the Company serves and for the
national economy.

Table 13 presents a comparative
allocation of the allowance for credit
losses for each of the past five year-ends.
Amounts were allocated to specific loan
categories based on information available
to management at the time of each
year-end assessment and using the
methodology described herein. Variations
in the allocation of the allowance by
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ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

TO LOAN CATEGORIES

Dollars in thousands

December 31 2003
Commercial, financial,

agricultural, etc.. . . .. ... $186,902
Real estate . . . .. ....... 170,493
Consumer . . .. ........ 152,759
Unallocated . . .. ....... 103,904

Total . .. ........... $614,058
As a percentage of gross loans

and leases outstanding
Commercial, financial,

agricultural, etc.. . . ... .. 1.99%
Realestate . . . ... ... ... 1.10
Consumer . . . ......... 1.37

loan category as a percentage of those
loans reflect changes in management’s
estimate of specific loss components and
inherent base level loss components. As
described in note 4 of Notes to Financial
Statements, loans considered impaired
pursuant to the requirements of SFAS
No. 114 were $164 million at both
December 31, 2003 and 2002. The
allocated portion of the allowance for
credit losses related to impaired loans
was $26 million and $18 million at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respec-
tively. The unallocated portion of the
allowance for credit losses was equal

to .29% and .19% of gross loans out-
standing at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. The increase in the
unallocated allowance as a percentage
of loans from the 2002 year-end to
December 31, 2003 reflects the factors
already described, including prolonged
uncertainty about regional and national
economic conditions and the status of
management’s ongoing credit reviews
of the loans obtained in the acquisition
of Allfirst. As already noted, manage-
ment continues to evaluate the loan
portfolios obtained in the Allfirst
transaction in accordance with the
Company’s credit policies and proce-
dures. The slight decrease in the unallo-
cated portion of the allowance from
December 31, 2001 to December 31,
2002 reflects the modest impact of
improving economic conditions near
2002’s year-end. Given the Company’s
high concentration of commercial loans
and commercial real estate loans in
New York State, including the upstate
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Table 13
2002 2001 2000 1999
120,627 130,156 125,568 78,019
152,758 139,848 122218 91,967
113,711 94710 76,839 47250
49,376 60,294 50,078 98,929
436,472 425,008 374,703 316,165
2.23% 2.50% 2.43% 2.11%
1.17 1.00 97 90

1.51 1.52 1.49 1.30

New York region, and central
Pennsylvania, and considering the
other factors already discussed herein,
management considers the allocated and
unallocated portions of the allowance
for credit losses to be prudent and
reasonable. Nevertheless, the Company’s
allowance is general in nature and is
available to absorb losses from any
loan or lease category.

Management believes that the
allowance for credit losses at December
31, 2003 was adequate to absorb credit
losses inherent in the portfolio as of
that date. The allowance for credit
losses was $614 million or 1.72% of
total loans and leases at December 31,
2003, compared with $436 million or
1.70% at December 31, 2002 and $425
million or 1.69% at December 31, 2001.
On the April 1, 2003 acquisition date,
Allfirst had an allowance for credit
losses of $146 million, or 1.43% of
Allfirst’s loans then outstanding.
Immediately following the acquisition,
the combined balance sheet of M&T
and Allfirst included an allowance for
credit losses of $591 million, or 1.62%
of the $36.5 billion of then outstanding
loans. The ratio of the allowance to
nonperforming loans at the end of
2003, 2002 and 2001 was 256%, 203%
and 223%, respectively. The level of the
allowance reflects management’s
evaluation of the loan and lease
porttfolio as of each respective date.

Commercial real estate loans
secured by multifamily properties in the
New York City metropolitan area
represented 4% of loans outstanding at

December 31, 2003. The Company
had no concentrations of credit extended
to any specific industry that exceeded
10% of total loans at December 31,
2003. Outstanding loans to foreign
borrowers were $218 million at
December 31, 2003, or .6% of total
loans and leases, of which $216 million
were obtained in the Allfirst
transaction.

Assets acquired in settlement of
defaulted loans totaled $20 million at
December 31, 2003, compared with
$17 million a year earlier and $16
million at the end of 2001.

Other income grew 62% to $831 million
in 2003 from $512 million in 2002.
Approximately $279 million of the
increase was attributable to revenues
related to operations or market areas
associated with the former Allfirst
franchise. Higher mortgage banking
revenues and service charges on deposit
accounts also contributed to the
improvement. Other income in 2002
was 7% higher than the $477 million
carned in 2001. Growth in revenues
from providing deposit account and
mortgage banking services significantly
contributed to that increase.

Mortgage banking revenues
were $149 million in 2003, $116
million in 2002 and $103 million
in 2001. Mortgage banking revenues
are comprised of both residential and
commercial mortgage banking activities.
The Company’s involvement in com-
mercial mortgage banking activities are
largely comprised of the origination,
sales and servicing of loans in
conjunction with the FNMA DUS
program, which, as noted earlier,
were operations acquired in the
Allfirst transaction.

Residential mortgage banking
revenues, which are comprised of gains
from sales of residential mortgage loans
and loan servicing rights, residential
mortgage loan servicing fees, and other
residential mortgage loan-related fees
and income, rose 11% to $129 million
in 2003 from $116 million in 2002.
Mortgage banking revenues in 2002
were 13% higher than $103 million in
2001. The higher revenues in 2002
and 2003 were due to the impact of
historically low levels of interest rates



that produced a favorable environment
for loan origination and refinancing
activities by consumers. Residential
mortgage loans originated for sale to
other investors totaled approximately
$5.9 billion in 2003, compared with
$5.7 billion and $5.0 billion in 2002
and 2001, respectively. Realized gains
from sales of residential mortgage loans
and loan servicing rights and unrealized
gains from recording residential
mortgage loans held for sale,
commitments to originate loans for sale
and commitments to sell loans at fair
market value aggregated $65 million in
2003, $54 million in 2002 and $50
million in 2001. Revenues from
servicing residential mortgage loans for
others were $54 million in 2003, up
from $53 million in 2002 and $44
million in 2001. Included in such
servicing revenues were amounts related
to purchased servicing rights associated
with small balance commercial mortgage
loans totaling $5 million, $4 million
and $1 million in 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Residential mortgage
loans serviced for others totaled $13.6
billion at December 31, 2003, $12.6
billion at December 31, 2002 and
$11.0 billion at December 31, 2001,
including the small balance commercial
mortgage loans noted above of approxi-
mately $1.0 billion, $586 million and
$222 million at December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. Capitalized
residential mortgage servicing assets,
net of a valuation allowance for possible
impairment, totaled $129 million at
December 31, 2003, $103 million

a year carlier and $107 million at
December 31, 2001. Included in
capitalized residential mortgage
servicing assets were $8 million

at December 31, 2003, $6 million

a year carlier and $2 million at
December 31, 2001 of purchased
servicing rights associated with the
small balance commercial mortgage
loans noted above. Additional
information about the Company’s
capitalized residential mortgage
servicing assets is presented herein
under the heading “Other Expense”
and in note 7 of Notes to Financial
Statements. Commitments to sell
residential mortgage loans and
commitments to originate residential
mortgage loans for sale at pre-determined
rates were $824 million and $459

million, respectively, at December 31,
2003, $1.5 billion and $825 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2002 and
$1.3 billion and $714 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2001.
Net unrealized gains on residential
mortgage loans held for sale,
commitments to sell loans, and
commitments to originate loans for sale
were $7 million, $15 million and $8
million at December 31, 2003, 2002,
and 2001, respectively. Increases in
such net unrealized gains in 2002 and
2001 added $7 million and $8 million,
respectively, to mortgage banking
revenues, while an $8 million decline in
net unrealized gains reduced mortgage
banking revenues in 2003.

Commercial mortgage banking
revenues were $20 million in 2003,
including $13 million of revenues from
loan origination and sales activities and
$7 million of mortgage loan servicing
revenues. Commercial mortgage banking
revenues in 2003 were predominantly
related to the business obtained in the
Allfirst acquisition. Capitalized commercial
mortgage servicing assets totaled $22
million at December 31, 2003.
Commercial mortgage loans serviced for
other investors totaled $3.8 billion at
December 31, 2003 and included $825
million of loan balances for which
investors had recourse to the Company if
such balances are ultimately uncollectible.
At December 31, 2003, commitments to
sell commercial mortgage loans were
$72 million, commitments to originate
commercial mortgage loans for sale were
$71 million and commercial mortgage
loans held for sale were $1 million.

Service charges on deposit accounts
rose 85% to $310 million in 2003 from
$168 million in 2002. Fees for deposit
services provided to customers in areas
formerly served by Allfirst contributed
$127 million to such revenue in 2003.
The remaining increase was largely
attributable to increased fees for check
processing services on retail customer
transaction accounts. Service charges in
2002 were up 16% from $144 million in
2001. Higher transactional deposit
account balances, which generate higher
levels of service charges than non-
transactional accounts, contributed
to the higher service charge income
levels in 2002.

Trust income includes fees for
trust and custody services provided to

OTHER INCOME - EXCLUDING
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
In millions
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personal, corporate and institutional
customers, and investment management
and advisory fees that are often based
on a percentage of the market value of
assets under management. Trust
income rose 91% to $115 million in
2003 from $60 million in 2002, and
included $55 million of revenues
associated with the operations acquired
in the Allfirst transaction. During 2003,
increases in market values of equity
securities were offset by lower managed
balances of proprietary mutual funds.
Reflecting general declines in market
values of equity securities, trust income
declined 7% in 2002 from $64 million
in 2001. Total trust assets, which
include assets under management and
assets under administration, were
$134.5 billion at December 31, 2003,
compared with $42.8 billion at
December 31, 2002. Trust assets under
management totaled $24.4 billion and
$8.5 billion at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Brokerage services
income, which includes revenues from
the sale of mutual funds and annuities
and securities brokerage fees, totaled
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$51 million in 2003, an increase of 18%
from $43 million in 2002. The improve-
ment was the result of revenues from
the former Allfirst regions. Higher
revenues from sales of annuity products
contributed to a 10% increase in
brokerage services income in 2002
from $39 million in 2001.

Trading account and foreign
exchange activity resulted in gains of
$16 million in 2003, $3 million in
2002 and $4 million in 2001. The
increased gains in 2003 as compared
with the prior years were due in part to
higher volumes of trading assets and
liabilities in 2003 and reflect fees and
market value changes relating to
interest rate swap agreements and
foreign exchange contracts executed
with customers formerly associated with
Allfirst. Offsetting trading positions are
entered into by the Company to
minimize the risks involved with these
transactions. Also contributing to the
rise in such gains in 2003 were market
value increases of $6 million in trading
assets held in connection with deferred
compensation plans. A largely offsetting
expense resulting from corresponding
increases in deferred compensation-
related liabilities is included in other
costs of operations. Trading account
assets held in connection with deferred
compensation plans were $39 million
and $12 million at December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. The Company
sold bank investment securities
resulting in gains of $2 million in 2003
and 2001, compared with losses of
$608 thousand in 2002.

Other revenues from operations
were $188 million in 2003, up from
$122 million in 2002 and $120 million
in 2001. Included in the 2003 total was
approximately $58 million of revenues
related to operations acquired from
Allfirst. Also contributing to the year-
over-year increase were higher revenues
from merchant discount and credit card
activities and letter of credit and other
credit-related fees. The previously
described $5 million gain on the sale of
the 12% portion of the residential real
estate loans that were securitized in
November 2002 offset, in part, by
lower benefits income from bank
owned life insurance, contributed to
the increase in other revenues from
operations from 2001 to 2002.

Other revenues from operations
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included $45 million ($12 million
Allfirst-related), $33 million and $35
million in 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, of tax-exempt income
earned from bank owned life insurance,
which includes increases in cash
surrender value of life insurance policies
and benefits received. Revenues from
merchant discount and credit card fees
totaled $26 million in 2003 ($7 million
Allfirst-related), and $13 million in
2002 and 2001. Letter of credit and
other credit-related fees were $54
million ($24 million Allfirst-related),
$26 million and $24 million in 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. Insurance-
related sales commissions and other
revenues totaled $18 million in 2003,
compared with $15 million and $13
million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
ATM usage fees aggregated $19 million
($6 million Allfirst-related) in 2003,
compared with $12 million in 2002 and
$11 million in 2001.

OTHER EXPENSE

Other expense totaled $1.45 billion in
2003, 51% higher than $962 million in
2002 and up 48% from $981 million in
2001. Included in the amounts noted
above are expenses considered to be
“nonoperating” in nature consisting of
amortization of core deposit and other
intangible assets of $78 million, $51
million and $60 million in 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively; amortization of
goodwill of $62 million in 2001; and
merger-related expenses of $60 million
and $8 million in 2003 and 2001,
respectively. There were no merger-
related expenses in 2002. Exclusive of
those nonoperating expenses,
noninterest operating expenses
aggregated $1.31 billion in 2003, up
44% from $910 million in 2002. The
April 1, 2003 acquisition of Allfirst was
the predominant factor contributing to
the higher expense level in 2003.
However, since the acquired operations
of Allfirst were integrated with the
operations the Company previously had
throughout the last nine months of
2003, the Company’s higher operating
expenses cannot be precisely divided
between or attributed directly to the
acquired operations of Allfirst or to the
Company as it existed prior to the
transaction. Partially offsetting those
higher expenses was a $30 million
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decline in charges for impairment of
capitalized residential mortgage servicing
rights. Such impairment charges were

$2 million in 2003 and $32 million in
2002. Noninterest operating expenses in
2002 were 7% higher than $851 million
in 2001. The $32 million provision for
impairment of capitalized residential
mortgage servicing rights and higher
costs for salaries, including commissions
and incentive compensation, largely
contributed to the higher level of
noninterest operating expenses in 2002
as compared with the preceding year.
There was no provision for impairment
of capitalized mortgage servicing rights
in 2001. Table 3 provides a reconciliation
of other expense to noninterest operating
expense and a summary of merger-
related expenses.

Salaries and employee benefits
expense was $740 million in 2003, an
increase of 49% from $497 million in
2002. As already discussed, the
Company began recognizing expense
for stock-based compensation effective
January 1, 2003. As a result, salaries
and employee benefits expense in 2003



included $43 million of stock-based
compensation. Using the retroactive
restatement method prescribed by
SFAS No. 148, salaries and employee
benefits expense for 2002 and 2001
were restated to include $41 million
and $32 million, respectively, of stock-
based compensation. Expenses related
to the acquired operations of Allfirst
were the leading contributors to the
rise in salaries and employee benefits
from 2002 to 2003. Also contributing
to the higher expense level in 2003
were higher pension costs. Salaries and
employee benefits expense in 2002 was
6% higher than $467 million in 2001.
That higher level of expense was largely
the result of merit salary increases,
higher commissions and incentive
compensation costs, the $9 million
increase in stock-based compensation
referred to earlier, and higher pension
costs. Pension benefit expense was
$24 million in 2003, $6 million in
2002, and $2 million in 2001.
Approximately $10 million of 2003’s
expense was directly attributable to
former Allfirst employees working for
the Company.

Investment returns on assets held
by the Company’s qualified pension
plans improved significantly in 2003
reflecting the overall improvement in the
equity markets. However, largely as a
result of a 50 basis point decline in the
discount rate used to value pension plan
obligations from 6.75% at December 31,
2002 to 6.25% at December 31, 2003,
the accumulated benefit obligation of
certain of the Company’s pension plans
exceeded the fair value of the assets of
such plans by approximately $46 million
at December 31, 2003. The lower
discount rate resulted from declines in
market rates of return on high quality
fixed-income investments currently
available and expected to be available
during the period to maturity of the
pension benefits. The Company estimates
that as of December 31, 2003, accumu-
lated benefit obligations would increase
by approximately $19 million for an
incremental 25 basis point reduction in
the assumed discount rate. According
to the provisions of SFAS No. 87,
“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,”
the Company was required to have a
recorded pension liability that was at
least equal to the $46 million noted
above. As a result, as of December 31,

2003 the Company increased its
previously recorded pension liability by
$20 million with a corresponding
reduction of other comprehensive
income that, net of applicable deferred
taxes, was approximately $12 million.
The Company did not make any
contributions to its qualified pension
plans in 2003. In 2002, as a result of
poor investment performance, the
Company contributed $19 million to its
qualified pension plans during that year’s
fourth quarter. That was the first
pension plan contribution made by the
Company since 1995. As a result of such
contribution, there was no excess of
accumulated benefit obligation over the
fair value of assets held by the
Company’s qualified pension plans as of
December 31, 2002. Information about
the Company’s pension plans, including
significant assumptions utilized in
completing actuarial calculations for the
plans, is included in note 11 of Notes to
Financial Statements. Pension expense
for 2004 is estimated to be approximately
$35 million. The number of full-time
equivalent employees was 13,305 at
December 31, 2003, compared with
8,726 and 8,803 at December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

Excluding the nonoperating
expense items previously noted,
nonpersonnel operating expenses
totaled $578 million in 2003, 40%
higher than $413 million in 2002.
Nonpersonnel operating expenses were
$384 million in 2001. The impact of
the Allfirst acquisition was the most
significant contributor to the higher
nonpersonnel operating expense level in
2003 as compared with 2002. Higher
expenses for amortization of capitalized
residential mortgage servicing rights
and professional services also
contributed to the increased expenses
in 2003. Partially offsetting the higher
expenses were lower charges for
impairment of capitalized residential
mortgage servicing rights, which
totaled $2 million in 2003 and $32
million in 2002. The impairment
charges resulted from changes in the
estimated fair value of capitalized
mortgage servicing rights that reflect
the impact of changing interest rates on
the expected rate of residential
mortgage prepayments. The most
significant factor contributing to the
rise in nonpersonnel operating expenses

in 2002 as compared with 2001 was
the aforementioned $32 million
provision for impairment of capitalized
residential mortgage servicing rights.
There was no such provision during the
year ended December 31, 2001.
Higher amortization of capitalized
residential mortgage servicing rights
also contributed to the higher expense
levels in 2002 as compared with 2001.
Such amortization charges were $48
million in 2003, $40 million in 2002,
and $32 million in 2001.

The provision for income taxes was
$277 million in 2003, compared with
$219 million in 2002 and $199 million
in 2001. The effective tax rates were
32.5% in 2003, 32.4% in 2002 and
36.0% in 2001. The lower tax rates in
2003 and 2002 as compared with 2001
were the result of the Company ceasing
to amortize non-deductible goodwill in
connection with the implementation of
SFAS No. 142 effective January 1, 2002.
A reconciliation of income tax expense
to the amount computed by applying
the statutory federal income tax rate to
pre-tax income is provided in note 12
of Notes to Financial Statements.

The Company’s net investment in
international assets was $229 million at
December 31, 2003 and $6 million at
December 31, 2002. The increase in
such assets included $216 million of
loans to foreign borrowers associated
with business activities obtained in the
acquisition of Allfirst. Oftshore deposits
totaled $2.2 billion at December 31,
2003 and $1.2 billion at December 31,
2002. The Company uses such deposits
to facilitate customer demand and as an
alternative to short-term borrowings
when the costs of such deposits seem
reasonable.

As a financial intermediary the
Company is exposed to various risks,
including liquidity and market risk.
Liquidity refers to the Company’s
ability to ensure that sufficient cash
flow and liquid assets are available to
satisty current and future financial
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obligations, including demands for
loans and deposit withdrawals, operating
costs, and other corporate purposes.
Liquidity risk arises whenever the
maturities of financial instruments
included in assets and liabilities differ.

Core deposits have historically
been the most significant funding source
for the Company and are generated
from a large base of consumer, corporate
and institutional customers, which over
the past several years has become more
geographically diverse as a result of
acquisitions and expansion of the
Company’s businesses. Nevertheless, in
recent years the Company has faced
increased competition in offering services
and products from a large array of
financial market participants, including
banks, thrifts, mutual funds, securities
dealers and others. Core deposits
financed 65% of the Company’s earning
assets at December 31, 2003, compared
with 60% and 62% at December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

The Company supplements
funding provided through core deposits
with various short-term and long-term
wholesale borrowings, including federal
funds purchased and securities sold
under agreements to repurchase,
brokered certificates of deposit, offshore
branch deposits and borrowings from
the FHLB and others. M&I' Bank had
short-term and long-term credit
facilities with the FHLB aggregating
$6.2 billion at December 31, 2003.
Outstanding borrowings under these
credit facilities totaled $3.1 billion and
$4.2 billion at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Such borrowings are
secured by loans and investment
securities. M&I' Bank and M&T' Bank,
N.A. had available lines of credit with
the Federal Reserve Bank of New York
at December 31, 2003 totaling
approximately $2.2 billion. The
amounts of these lines are dependent
upon the balance of loans and securities
pledged as collateral. There were no
borrowings outstanding under these
lines of credit at either December 31,
2003 or 2002.

As previously noted, in anticipation
of the Allfirst acquisition, M&I" Bank
issued $400 million of subordinated
notes on March 31, 2003 to provide
liquidity to fund a portion of the cash
consideration paid to AIB and to
maintain appropriate regulatory capital
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ratios. As an additional source of funding,
in November 2002, the Company
entered into a $500 million revolving
asset-backed structured borrowing
which is collateralized by approximately
$559 million of automobile loans and
related assets. The automobile loans and
related assets have been transferred to a
special purpose consolidated subsidiary
of M&TI' Bank. As existing automobile
loans of the subsidiary pay down,
monthly proceeds, after payment of
certain fees and debt service costs, are
used by the subsidiary to obtain
additional automobile loans from M&T’
Bank or another of its subsidiaries to
replenish the collateral and maintain the
existing borrowing base. Additional
information about this borrowing is
included in note 18 of Notes to
Financial Statements.

Informal and sometimes reciprocal
sources of funding are available to the
Company through various arrange-
ments for unsecured short-term
borrowings from a wide group of
banks and other financial institutions.
Short-term federal funds borrowings
aggregated $3.5 billion and $2.1 billion
at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. In general, these borrow-
ings were unsecured and matured on
the next business day.

Should the Company experience a
substantial deterioration in its financial
condition or its debt ratings, or should
the availability of short-term funding
become restricted due to a disruption
in the financial markets, the Company’s
ability to obtain funding from these or
other sources could be negatively
impacted. The Company attempts to
quantify such credit-event risk by
modeling scenarios that estimate the
liquidity impact resulting from a short-
term ratings downgrade over various
grading levels. The Company estimates
such impact by attempting to measure
the effect on available unsecured lines
of credit, available capacity from secured

DEBT RATINGS

M&T Bank Corporation . . .. ... ...

Mg&T Bank
Short-term deposits . . . .. ... ...
Long-term deposits . . . ... ... ..
Subordinated debt . . . . ... ... ..

borrowing sources and securitizable
assets. Information about the credit
ratings of M&I" and M&I' Bank is
presented in table 14. Additional
information regarding the terms and
maturities of all of the Company’s
short-term and long-term borrowings is
provided in note 9 of Notes to Financial
Statements. In addition to deposits and
borrowings, other sources of liquidity
include maturities of money-market
assets and investment securities, repay-
ments of loans and investment securities,
and cash generated from operations,
such as fees collected for services.

The Company serves in the capacity
of remarketing agent for variable rate
demand bonds (“VRDBs”), in a line of
business obtained in the Allfirst
acquisition. The VRDBs are enhanced
by a direct-pay letter of credit provided
by M&I' Bank. Holders of the VRDBs
generally have the right to sell the
bonds to the remarketing agent with
seven days notice, which could result in
M&T Bank owning the VRDBs for some
period of time until such instruments
are remarketed. When this occurs, the
VRDBs are classified as trading assets in
the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet. The value of VRDBs in the
Company’s trading account totaled $22
million at December 31, 2003. As of
December 31, 2003, the total amount of
VRDBs outstanding backed by an M&I'
Bank letter of credit was $1.3 billion.

The Company enters into
contractual obligations in the normal
course of business which require future
cash payments. As of December 31,
2003, the contractual amounts and
timing of those payments are summa-
rized in table 15. The Company also
has off-balance sheet commitments to
customers that may impact liquidity,
including commitments to extend
credit, standby letters of credit,
commercial letters of credit, financial
guarantees and indemnification
contracts, and commitments to sell real

Table 14
Standard
Moody’s and Poor’s Fitch
A3 A- A-
Prime-1 A-1 Fl
A2 A A
A3 A- BBB+



CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Dollars in thousands

December 31, 2003

Payments due for contractual obligations

Time deposits . . . . .. ........ ...
Deposits at foreign office . . . . ... ...
Federal funds purchased and agreements
to repurchase securities . . . . ... ...
Other short-term borrowings . . . . . . . .
Long-term borrowings. . . . ... ... ..
Operating leases. . . . .. ..........
Other. . . . ... ... ... .......

Other commitments

Commitments to extend credit . . . . . . .
Standby letters of credit . . . . ... .. ..
Commercial letters of credit. . . . ... ..
Financial guarantees and indemnification contracts . . . . .
Commitments to sell real estate loans . . .

estate loans. Since many of these com-
mitments or contracts expire without
being funded in whole or in part, the
contract amounts are not necessarily
indicative of future cash flows. Further
discussion of these commitments is
provided in note 20 of Notes to Financial
Statements. Table 15 summarizes the
Company’s other commitments as of
December 31, 2003 and the timing of
the expiration of such commitments.
Mg&I’s primary source of funds to
pay for operating expenses, sharcholder
dividends and treasury stock repurchases
has historically been the receipt of
dividends from its banking subsidiaries,
which are subject to various regulatory
limitations. Dividends from any banking
subsidiary to M&T are limited by the
amount of earnings of the banking
subsidiary in the current year and the
two preceding years. For purposes of
the test, at December 31, 2003 approx-
imately $696 million was available for
payment of dividends to M&T from
banking subsidiaries without prior
regulatory approval. These historic
sources of cash flow have been
augmented in the past by the issuance
of trust preferred securities. Information
regarding trust preferred securities and
the related junior subordinated
debentures is included in note 9 of
Notes to Financial Statements. M&I also

One to
three years

Less than
one year

.......... $ 4,335,397 1,734,486
.......... 2,209,451 -
.......... 3,832,182 -
.......... 610,064 -
.......... 484422 1,901,977
.......... 47,097 78,756
.......... 9,562 19,843
.......... $11,528,175 3,735,062
.......... $ 6,000,784 3,101,287
.......... 1,197,636 924,812
.......... 35,292 34,085

3,560 162,404
.......... 894,374 1,434
.......... $ 8,131,646 4,224,022

maintains a $30 million line of credit
with an unaffiliated commercial bank,
of which there were no borrowings
outstanding at December 31, 2003.

A similar $30 million line of credit was
entirely available for borrowing at
December 31, 2002.

On an ongoing basis, management
closely monitors the Company’s liquidity
position for compliance with internal
policies and believes that available sources
of liquidity are adequate to meet funding
needs in the normal course of business.
Management does not anticipate
engaging in any activities, either currently
or in the long-term, for which adequate

Table 15

Three to Over
five years five years Total
460,674 106,692 6,637,249
- - 2,209,451
- - 3,832,182
- - 610,064
638,980 2,510,046 5,535,425
47971 94,312 268,136
17,674 63,473 110,552
1,165,299 2,774,523 19,203,059
2,055,850 1,276,686 12,434,607
725,279 208,884 3,056,611
10 - 69,387
97,596 798,131 1,061,691
- - 895,808
2,878,735 2,283,701 17,518,104

funding would not be available and
would therefore result in a significant
strain on liquidity at either M&I or its
subsidiary banks.

Market risk is the risk of loss from
adverse changes in market prices and/or
interest rates of the Company’s financial
instruments. The primary market risk the
Company is exposed to is interest rate
risk. The core banking activities of
lending and deposit-taking expose the
Company to interest rate risk, which
occurs when assets and liabilities reprice
at different times and by different
amounts as interest rates change. As a
result, net interest income earned by the

MATURITY DISTRIBUTION OF SELECTED LOANS® Table 16
In thousands
2005- After

December 31, 2003 Demand 2004 2008 2008
Commercial, financial,

agricultural, etc. . ... ... ... $1,414,802 3,475,143 2,886,103 689,912
Real estate — construction . . . . . . 176,299 737,430 452,125 165,505

Total . .. .............. $1,591,101 4,212,573 3,338,228 855,417
Floating or adjustable

interest rates. . . . . .. ... ... $ 939,788 263,114
Fixed or predetermined

interest rates. . . . . . .. ... .. 2,398,440 592,303

Total. .. .............. $3,338,228 855,417

©The data do not include nonaccrual loans.
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MATURITY AND TAXABLE-EQUIVALENT YIELD OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Dollars in thousands

Table 17

One year One to Five to Over
December 31, 2003 or less five years ten years ten years Total
Investment securities available for sale™
U.S. Treasury and federal agencies
Carryingvalue. . . . .. .. ... o $120,119 58,855 113,734 1,330 294,038
Yield . . ..o 1.43% 3.33% 4.02% 4.84% 2.83%
Obligations of states and political subdivisions
Carryingvalue. . . . . ... ... oo 12,965 49,733 40,533 43,265 146,496
Yield . . ..o 7.36% 6.69% 5.27% 8.65% 6.94%
Mortgage-backed securities )
Government issued or guaranteed
Carrying value . . ... ... ... L 149,339 677,874 983,721 1,293,575 3,104,509
Yield. . ... 3.78% 3.73% 3.72% 4.43% 4.02%
Privately issued
Carrying value . . ... ... ... L 69,553 851,672 281,858 1,345,152 2,548,235
Yield. . . ..o 4.90% 3.86% 5.22% 5.02% 4.65%
Other debt securities
Carryingvalue. . . . . ... ... oo 32,673 45,200 558 242417 320,848
Yield . . ... 7.72% 5.35% 6.68% 3.65% 4.31%
Equity securities
Carryingvalue. . . . . ... ... oo - - - - 448,811
Yield . . ..o - - - - 3.15%
Total investment securities available for sale
Carrying value. . . .. ... ... L Lo 384,649 1,683,334 1,420,404 2,925,739 6,862,937
Yield . . ... 3.70% 3.91% 4.08% 4.70% 4.22%
Investment securities held to maturity
Obligations of states and political subdivisions
Carrying value. . . .. ... ... L 78,204 8,179 8,178 8,136 102,697
Yield . ... oo 2.00% 6.46% 7.74% 10.72% 3.50%
Other debt securities
Carryingvalue. . . . . ... ... L oo - - 606 1,569 2,175
Yield . ... oo - - 8.40% 5.33% 6.19%
Total investment securities held to maturity
Carrying value. . . .. ... ... 78,204 8,179 8,784 9,705 104,872
Yield . . ..o 2.00% 6.46% 7.79% 9.85% 3.56%
Other investment securities . . . . . . . . .. - - - - 291,341
Total investment securities
Carryingvalue. . . . . ... ..o oo $462,853 1,691,513 1,429,188 2935444 7,259,150
Yield . . ..o 3.41% 3.92% 4.10% 4.72% 4.04%

@ Investment securities available for sale are presented at estimated fair value. Yields on such securities ave based on amortized cost.
® Maturities ave veflected based upon contractual payments due. Actual maturities ave expected to be significantly shorter as a vesult of loan

repayments in the underlying mortgage pools.

Company is subject to the eftects of
changing interest rates. The Company
measures interest rate risk by calculating
the variability of net interest income in
future periods under various interest rate
scenarios using projected balances for
earning assets, interest-bearing liabilities
and derivatives used to hedge interest
rate risk. Management’s philosophy
toward interest rate risk management is
to limit the variability of net interest
income. The balances of financial
instruments used in the projections are
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based on expected growth from
forecasted business opportunities,
anticipated prepayments of loans and
investment securities, and expected
maturities of investment securities, loans
and deposits. Management uses a “value
of equity” model to supplement the
modeling technique described above.
Those supplemental analyses are based
on discounted cash flows associated with
on- and off- balance sheet financial
instruments. Such analyses are modeled
to reflect changes in interest rates and

non-parallel shifts in the maturity curve
of interest rates and provide management
with a long-term interest rate risk metric.
The Company has entered into interest
rate swap agreements to help manage
exposure to interest rate risk. At
December 31, 2003, the aggregate
notional amount of interest rate swap
agreements entered into for interest rate
risk management purposes was $685
million. Information about interest rate
swap agreements entered into for
interest rate risk management purposes



is included herein under “Net Interest
Income/Lending and Funding
Activities” and in note 17 of Notes to
Financial Statements.

The Company’s Asset-Liability
Committee, which includes members of
senior management, monitors interest
rate sensitivity with the aid of a computer
model that considers the impact of
ongoing lending and deposit-gathering
activities, as well as interrelationships
in the magnitude and timing of the
repricing of financial instruments,
including the effect of changing interest
rates on expected prepayments and
maturities. When deemed prudent,
management has taken actions, and
intends to do so in the future, to
mitigate exposure to interest rate risk
through the use of on- or off-balance
sheet financial instruments. Possible
actions include, but are not limited to,
changes in the pricing of loan and
deposit products, modifying the
composition of earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities, and modifying
or terminating existing interest rate swap
agreements or other financial instruments
used for risk management purposes.

Table 19 as of December 31, 2003
and 2002 displays the estimated impact
on net interest income from non-trading
financial instruments resulting from
parallel changes in interest rates across
repricing categories during the first
modeling year.

Many assumptions were utilized by
the Company to calculate the impact
that changes in interest rates may have
on net interest income. The more
significant assumptions related to the
rate of prepayments of mortgage-related
assets, cash flows from derivative and
other financial instruments held for non-
trading purposes, loan and deposit

MATURITY OF DOMESTIC Table 18

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

AND TIME DEPOSITS

WITH BALANCES

OF $100,000 OR MORE

In thousands

December 31, 2003

Under 3 months $ 544,803

3 to 6 months. . . ... 159,057

6to 12 months. . . .. 672,895

Over 12 months 638,411
Total. . .. ...... $2,015,166

SENSITIVITY OF NET INTEREST INCOME
TO CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES

Dollars in thousands

Changes in interest rates

+200 basis points. . . . .. ........ ...
+100 basis points. . . . . ....... .. ...
—-100 basis points. . . . . . ... ... ... ..
—-200 basis points. . . . ... ...

volumes and pricing, and deposit
maturities. The Company also assumed
gradual changes in rates during a twelve-
month period, including incremental
100 and 200 basis point rate changes.
In the event that a 100 or 200 basis
point rate change cannot be achieved,
the applicable rate changes are limited
to lesser amounts such that interest
rates cannot be less than zero. These
assumptions are inherently uncertain
and, as a result, the Company cannot
precisely predict the impact of changes
in interest rates on net interest income.
Actual results may differ significantly due
to the timing, magnitude and frequency
of changes in interest rates, market
conditions, and interest rate differentials
(spreads) between and within

maturity /repricing categories, as well as
any actions, such as those previously
described, which management may take
to counter such changes. In light of the
uncertainties and assumptions associated
with the process, the amounts presented
in the table and changes in such
amounts are not considered significant
to the Company’s past or projected net
interest income.

In accordance with industry
practice, table 20 presents cumulative
totals of net assets (liabilities) repricing
on a contractual basis within the
specified time frames, as adjusted for
the impact of interest rate swap
agreements entered into for interest
rate risk management purposes.
Management believes that this measure
does not appropriately depict interest
rate risk since changes in interest rates
do not necessarily affect all categories of
earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities equally nor, as assumed in the
table, on the contractual maturity or
repricing date. Furthermore, this static
presentation of interest rate risk fails to

Table 19

Calculated increase (decrease)
in projected net interest income

December 31

2003 2002
....... $ (4,504) 12,223
....... (190) 5,311
....... (12,945) 12,507
....... (13,064) 13,055

consider the effect of ongoing lending
and deposit gathering activities, projected
changes in balance sheet composition
or any subsequent interest rate risk
management activities the Company is
likely to implement.

The Company has historically
engaged in trading activities to meet
the financial needs of customers, to
fund the Company’s obligations under
certain deferred compensation plans
and, to a limited extent, to profit from
perceived market opportunities. Financial
instruments utilized in trading activities
have included forward and futures
contracts related to foreign currencies
and mortgage-backed securities,

U.S. Treasury and other government
securities, mortgage-backed securities,
mutual funds and interest rate contracts,
such as swap agreements. The Company
generally mitigates the foreign currency
and interest rate risk associated with
trading activities by entering into
offsetting trading positions. The amounts
of gross and net trading positions as
well as the type of trading activities
conducted by the Company are subject
to a well-defined series of potential loss
exposure limits established by the
Asset-Liability Committee. However, as
with any non-government guaranteed
financial instrument, the Company is
exposed to credit risk associated with
counterparties to the Company’s
trading activities.

The notional amounts of interest
rate contracts entered into for trading
purposes totaled $5.3 billion at
December 31, 2003 and $1.3 billion at
December 31, 2002. The notional
amounts of foreign currency and other
option and futures contracts entered into
for trading purposes were $548 million
and $290 million at December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. The notional
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CONTRACTUAL REPRICING DATA

Dollars in thousands by repricing date

Table 20

Three Four to One to After
months twelve five five
December 31, 2003 or less months years years Total
Loans and leases, net . . . $16,457,193 3,035,933 10,572,580 5,706,729 35,772,435
Money-market assets . . . 76,181 3,488 1,000 21,540 102,209
Investment securities . . . 1448443 597244 1,464,500 3,748,963 7,259,150
Total earning assets . . . 17,981,817 3,636,665 12,038,080 9,477,232 43,133,794
NOW accounts . . . . .. 1,738,427 - - - 1,738,427
Savings deposits . . . . . . 14,118,521 - - - 14,118,521
Time deposits . . . . . . . 2,321,955 2,234,133 1974468 106,093 6,637,249
Deposits at
foreign office . . . . .. 2,209,451 - - - 2209451
Total interest-beaving
deposits. . .. ... .. 20,388,354 2,234,133 1974468 106,693 24,703,648
Short-term borrowings . . 4,442,246 - - — 4442246
Long-term borrowings . . 2,011,511 182,036 839,141 2,502,737 5,535,425
Total interest-bearing
linbilities . . . . . . .. 26,842,111 2416,169 2,813,609 2,609,430 34,681,319
Interest rate swaps (685,000) - 105,000 580,000 -
Periodicgap . . . ... .. $(9,545,294) 1,220,496 9,329471 7447802
Cumulative gap . . . . . . (9,545,294) (8,324,798) 1,004,673 8,452,475
Cumulative gap as a %
of total earning assets . . (22.1)% (19.3)% 2.3% 19.6%

amounts of these trading contracts are
not recorded in the consolidated balance
sheet. However, the fair values of all
financial instruments used for trading
activities are recorded in the consolidated
balance sheet. The fair values of all
trading account assets and liabilities were
$215 million and $139 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2003 and
$52 million and $36 million, respectively,
at December 31, 2002. The higher
amounts of trading account assets and
liabilities at December 31, 2003 reflect
the fair values of interest rate swap
agreements and foreign exchange
contracts executed with customers
associated with Allfirst and the related
offsetting trading positions. Included in
trading account assets at December 31,
2003 and 2002 were $39 million and
$12 million, respectively, related to
deferred compensation plans. Changes in
the fair value of such assets are recorded
as trading account and foreign exchange
gains in the consolidated statement of
income. Included in other liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet at
December 31, 2003 and 2002 were $49
million and $23 million, respectively, of
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liabilities related to deferred compensation
plans. Changes in the balances of such
liabilities due to the valuation of
allocated investment options to which
the liabilities are indexed are recorded
in other costs of operations in the
consolidated statement of income.

Given the Company’s policies,
limits and positions, management
believes that the potential loss exposure
to the Company resulting from market
risk associated with trading activities
was not material. Additional information
related to trading derivative contracts is
included in note 17 of Notes to
Financial Statements.

Stockholders’ equity at December 31,
2003 was $5.7 billion or 11.47% of total
assets, compared with $3.2 billion or
9.66% at December 31, 2002 and $3.0
billion or 9.40% at December 31, 2001.
On a per share basis, stockholders’ equity
increased 37% to $47.55 at the 2003
year-end from $34.82 at December 31,
2002, and was 51% higher than $31.54
at December 31, 2001. Tangible equity

per share, which excludes goodwill and
core deposit and other intangible assets
and applicable deferred tax balances, was
$21.97 at December 31, 2003, compared
with $22.04 a year earlier and $18.54 at
December 31, 2001. In the calculation
of tangible equity per common share,
stockholders’ equity is reduced by the
carrying values of goodwill and core
deposit and other intangible assets,

net of applicable deferred tax balances.
A reconciliation of total stockholders’
equity and tangible equity as of
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 is
presented in table 3. The ratio of average
total stockholders’ equity to average total
assets was 10.89%, 9.48% and 9.65% in
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

To complete the acquisition of
Allfirst on April 1, 2003, M&T issued
26,700,000 shares of common stock
to AIB resulting in an addition to
stockholders’ equity of $2.0 billion. The
value ascribed to the common shares
issued to AIB was based on the market
value of M&I' common stock at the time
the terms of the merger were agreed to
and announced by M&I' and AIB.

M&T also issued shares of common
stock in 2001 to complete the acqui-
sition of Premier. On February 9, 2001,
M&T issued 2,440,812 shares of
common stock to former holders of
Premier common stock and assumed
employee stock options to purchase
224,734 shares of M&I' common stock,
resulting in an addition to stockholders’
equity of $176 million.

Included in stockholders’ equity
was accumulated other comprehensive
income which reflects the net after-tax
impact of unrealized gains or losses on
investment securities classified as
available for sale; unrealized fair value
gains or losses associated with interest
rate swap agreements designated as cash
flow hedges; and minimum pension
liability adjustments. Net unrealized
gains on available-for-sale investment
securities were $38 million, or $.32 per
common share, at December 31, 2003,
$55 million, or $.60 per common
share, at December 31, 2002 and $23
million, or $.25 per common share, at
December 31, 2001. Such unrealized
gains are generally due to changes in
interest rates and represent the difference,
net of applicable income tax effect,
between the estimated fair value and
amortized cost of investment securities



classified as available for sale. Net
unrealized fair value losses associated
with interest rate swap agreements
designated as cash flow hedges, were
$622 thousand and $298 thousand at
December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, representing less than

$.01 per share at those respective dates.
There were no outstanding interest rate
swap agreements designated as cash flow
hedges at December 31, 2003. The
minimum pension liability adjustment,
net of applicable tax effect, reduced
accumulated other comprehensive
income by $12 million at December 31,
2003, or $.10 per share. There were no
such adjustments at December 31, 2002
or 2001. Information about the funded
status of the Company’s pension plans
is included in note 11 of Notes to
Financial Statements.

Cash dividends paid in 2003
on M&I’s common stock were $135
million, compared with $97 million
and $96 million in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. M&T increased its quarterly
dividend on common stock in the fourth
quarter of 2002 to $.30 per share from
$.25 per share. Dividends per common
share totaled $1.20 in 2003, up from
$1.05 in 2002 and $1.00 in 2001.

M&T repurchased 3,007,585
shares of its common stock in 2002
and 4,396,303 shares in 2001, at a
cost of $240 million and $324 million,
respectively. In November 2001, M&T
announced that it had been authorized
by its Board of Directors to purchase
up to 5,000,000 shares of its common
stock. Through December 31, 2002,
M&T had repurchased a total of
3,632,098 shares of common stock
pursuant to such plan at an average cost
of $78.49 per share. M&I discontinued
purchases of its common stock during
the third quarter of 2002, determining
instead that it would use the Company’s
internal generation of capital to support
the acquisition of Allfirst. There were
no common stock repurchases in 2003.
However, M&T resumed purchases of
its common stock in January 2004,
and completed the 5,000,000 share
repurchase plan in February 2004. The
common stock was purchased pursuant
to such plan at an average cost of
$82.11 per share.

Federal regulators generally require
banking institutions to maintain “core
capital” and “total capital” ratios of at

least 4% and 8%, respectively, of risk-
adjusted total assets. In addition to
the risk-based measures, Federal bank
regulators have also implemented a
minimum “leverage” ratio guideline
of 3% of the quarterly average of total
assets. Core capital includes the $686
million carrying value of trust preferred
securities as described in note 9 of
Notes to Financial Statements. As of
December 31, 2003, total capital
further included $1.2 billion of
subordinated notes.

The capital ratios of the Company
and its banking subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002 are
presented in note 22 of Notes to
Financial Statements.

The Company generates significant
amounts of regulatory capital. The rate
of regulatory core capital generation, or
net operating income (as previously
defined) less the sum of dividends paid
and the after-tax effect of merger-related
expenses expressed as a percentage of
regulatory “core capital” at the beginning
of each year, was 23.35% in 2003,
19.78% in 2002 and 19.43% in 2001.

The Company’s net income totaled
$167 million during the final quarter of
2003, 41% higher than $119 million in
the corresponding quarter of 2002.
Diluted and basic earnings per share
were $1.35 and $1.39, respectively, in
2003’s fourth quarter, compared with
$1.25 and $1.29, respectively, in the
year-carlier quarter. Expressed as an
annualized rate of return on average
assets, net income for the fourth quarter
of 2003 was 1.35%, compared with
1.42% in 2002’s final quarter. The annu-
alized rate of return on average common
stockholders’ equity for the last three
months of 2003 was 11.77%, compared
with 15.00% in the similar 2002 period.
Net operating income in the
fourth quarter of 2003 increased 44%
to $182 million from $126 million in
the last quarter of 2002. Diluted net
operating earnings per share rose 11%
to $1.47 in the recently completed
quarter from $1.32 in the year-earlier
quarter. The annualized net operating
returns on average tangible assets and
average tangible common equity were
1.57% and 28.33%, respectively, in
2003’s final quarter, compared with

1.56% and 25.54%, respectively, in the
similar 2002 quarter. Amortization of
core deposit and other intangible assets,
after tax effect, totaled $13 million ($.11
per diluted share) in the fourth quarter
of 2003, compared with $7 million ($.07
per diluted share) in the corresponding
quarter of 2002. Merger-related expenses
incurred during the fourth quarter of
2003 totaled $2 million, after applicable
tax effect, or $.01 per diluted share.
There were no significant merger-related
expenses incurred during the fourth
quarter of 2002. Reconciliations of
GAAP results with non-GAAP results
for the quarterly periods of 2003 and
2002 are provided in table 22.
Taxable-equivalent net interest
income increased to $426 million in
the recent quarter, 31% higher than
$325 million in the fourth quarter of
2002. A 42% increase in average earning
assets offset, in part, by a narrowing of
the Company’s net interest margin,
resulted in the improvement. Reflecting
the impact of the Allfirst acquisition,
average earning assets were $42.7
billion in 2003’s fourth quarter, up
from $30.1 billion in the fourth quarter
of 2002. Average loans and leases for
the recently completed three-month
period totaled $36.4 billion, an increase
of 41% from $25.9 billion during the
year-earlier quarter. Average loan bal-
ances in 2003 and 2002 reflect fourth
quarter transactions in each year in
which M&T' converted residential real
estate loans of $1.3 billion and $1.1
billion, respectively, into mortgage-
backed securities. Those transactions
are described in “Net Interest
Income/Lending and Funding
Activities” and in note 18 of Notes
to Financial Statements. The yield on
carning assets was 5.16% in the last
three months of 2003, down 92 basis
points from 6.08% in the corresponding
2002 period. The rate paid on interest-
bearing liabilities was 1.48% in the
fourth quarter of 2003, down 61 basis
points from 2.09% in the like-period of
2002. The resulting net interest spread
was 3.68% in 2003’s final quarter,
compared with 3.99% in the year-earlier
period. As a result, the Company’s net
interest margin declined to 3.96% in
the fourth quarter of 2003 from 4.28%
in the similar quarter of 2002. The
decreases in net interest spread and
margin were due largely to the impact
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of yields on earning assets and rates
paid on interest-bearing liabilities
obtained in the Allfirst acquisition.

The provision for credit losses
was $28 million in the final quarter of
2003, compared with $33 million in
the corresponding 2002 period. Net
charge-offs totaled $32 million in the
recent quarter, compared with $31
million in 2002’s final quarter. Net
charge-ofts as an annualized percentage
of average loans and leases were .35% in
the fourth quarter of 2003, compared
with .48% in the year-earlier period.

Other income rose 69% to $234
million in the final quarter of 2003 from
$138 million in 2002’s fourth quarter.
The increase was attributable to revenues
related to operations or market areas asso-
ciated with the former Allfirst franchise.

Noninterest expense in the fourth
quarter of 2003 aggregated $378
million, 51% higher than $251 million
in the year-earlier period. Included in
such amounts are expenses considered
“nonoperating” in nature consisting of
amortization of core deposit and other
intangible assets of $21 million and
$12 million in the final quarters of 2003
and 2002, respectively, and merger-
related expenses of $3 million in 2003’s
fourth quarter. Exclusive of these
nonoperating expenses, noninterest
operating expenses were $354 million
in the recent quarter, 48% above the
$239 million recorded in 2002’s fourth
quarter. The increase in operating
expenses was largely attributable to
operations formerly related to Allfirst,
partially offset by lower charges for the
impairment of capitalized residential
mortgage servicing rights. Operating
expenses in the fourth quarter of 2003
reflect a $4 million reduction in total
expenses resulting from a partial reversal
of the valuation allowance for possible
impairment of capitalized residential
mortgage servicing rights, while a $13
million increase in the valuation
allowance in 2002’s fourth quarter
added to total expenses. During the
fourth quarter of 2003 and 2002, the
Company’s efficiency ratio was 53.9%
and 51.7%, respectively. The higher
ratio in the recently completed quarter
reflects the impact of the acquired
Allfirst operations. Table 22 includes a
reconciliation of other expense to
noninterest operating expense for each
of the quarters of 2003 and 2002.
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In accordance with the provisions of
SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures About
Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information,” the Company’s reportable
segments have been determined based
upon its internal profitability reporting
system, which is organized by strategic
business unit. Certain strategic business
units have been combined for segment
information reporting purposes where
the nature of the products and services,
the type of customer, and the distri-
bution of those products and services
are similar. The reportable segments are
Commercial Banking, Commercial Real
Estate, Discretionary Portfolio,
Residential Mortgage Banking and
Retail Banking.

The financial information of the
Company’s segments was compiled
utilizing the accounting policies
described in note 21 of Notes to
Financial Statements. The management
accounting policies and processes
utilized in compiling segment financial
information are highly subjective and,
unlike financial accounting, are not
based on authoritative guidance similar
to GAAPD. As a result, reported segments
and the financial information of the
reported segments are not necessarily
comparable with similar information
reported by other financial institutions.
Furthermore, changes in management
structure or allocation methodologies
and procedures may result in changes in
reported segment financial data. Financial
information about the Company’s
segments is presented in note 21 of
Notes to Financial Statements.

The Commercial Banking segment
provides a wide range of credit products
and banking services for middle-market
and large commercial customers, largely
within the markets the Company serves.
Services provided by this segment include
commercial lending and leasing, deposit
products, and cash management
services. Net income contributed by the
Commercial Banking segment totaled
$175 million in 2003, up 95% from
$90 million in 2002. The favorable
performance from the prior year was
predominantly the result of the Allfirst
acquisition, which contributed to
increases in net interest income on
loans of $52 million, service charges on
deposit accounts of $36 million and

credit-related fees of $18 million,
partially offset by higher operating
expenses of $37 million. The improve-
ment was also aided by a decline in net
charge-offs from 2002, largely the result
of'a $17 million loss in 2002 related to
two commercial leases to a major airline
company that filed for bankruptcy. Net
charge-ofts for the commercial banking
segment were $23 million in 2003 and
$48 million in 2002. Net income for
this segment totaled $107 million in
2001. The decline in net income in 2002
as compared with 2001 was attributable
to the $17 million charge-off described
above and a $14 million decrease in net
interest income, due to a 25 basis point
narrowing of the segment’s net interest
margin. Partially offsetting these
decreases was a $4 million increase in
deposit service charges. Net charge-ofts
in 2001 for the commercial banking
segment were $28 million.

The Commercial Real Estate
segment provides credit and deposit
services to its customers. Real estate
securing loans in this segment is
generally located in the New York City
metropolitan area, upstate New York,
Pennsylvania, Maryland, the District of
Columbia, Delaware, Virginia, West
Virginia and the northwestern portion of
the United States. Commercial real
estate loans may be secured by
apartment,/multifamily buildings; office,
retail and industrial space; or other types
of collateral. Activities of this segment
also include the origination, sales and
servicing of commercial real estate loans
through the FNMA DUS program. The
Commercial Real Estate segment’s net
income was $119 million in 2003, up
29% from $92 million in 2002. The
increase was due to higher net interest
income of $38 million, largely the result
of average loan balances acquired in the
Allfirst transaction and a higher net
interest margin on loans in the non-
Allfirst regions, and commercial mortgage
banking revenues of $20 million resulting
largely from the Allfirst acquisition.
Partially offsetting these revenue increases
were higher salaries and benefits and
other operating expenses that also
resulted from the Allfirst acquisition.
Net income in 2002 for the Commercial
Real Estate segment was 7% higher than
the $87 million earned in 2001. That
increase was due largely to an $11 million
increase in net interest income, the result



of'a 12 basis point widening of the net
interest margin on loans and a 5% increase
in average loan balances outstanding.

The Discretionary Portfolio
segment includes investment and
trading securities, residential mortgage
loans and other assets; short-term and
long-term borrowed funds; brokered
certificates of deposit and interest rate
swap agreements related thereto; and
offshore branch deposits. This segment
also provides services to commercial
customers and consumers that include
foreign exchange, securities trading and
municipal bond underwriting and sales.
The Discretionary Portfolio segment
recorded net income of $86 million in
2003, 34% higher than $64 million in
2002, primarily the result of higher net
interest income from investment
securities, including securities acquired
in the Allfirst transaction. In 2001, this
segment’s net income was $53 million.
The 20% increase in net income from
2001 to 2002 was predominantly due
to an $18 million increase in net
interest income, largely the result of a
34 basis point rise in the net interest
margin on investment securities.

The Residential Mortgage Banking
segment originates and services residential
mortgage loans for consumers and sells
substantially all of those loans in the
secondary market to investors or to bank
subsidiaries of M&T'. In addition to
the geographic regions served by or
contiguous with the Company’s branch
network, the Company maintains
mortgage loan origination offices in
several states in the western United
States. The Company also periodically
purchases the rights to service residential
mortgage loans. Residential mortgage
loans held for sale are included in this
segment. The Residential Mortgage
Banking segment earned $66 million in
2003, up 75% from the $38 million
carned in 2002. The 2003 results include
a $34 million increase in revenues from
loan origination and sales activities,
including gains from sales of loans to
the Company’s Discretionary Portfolio
segment, and a $12 million increase in
net interest income, due largely to
higher average balances of outstanding
loans and deposits. Gains from sales of
loans to the Company’s Discretionary
Portfolio segment were $22 million and
$9 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Also contributing to the segment’s

improved net income was a decrease in
the provision for impairment of capitalized
mortgage loan servicing rights, which
was $30 million lower than in 2002.
Partially offsetting the revenue increases
noted above were higher salaries and
employee benefits and other operating
expenses of $29 million, exclusive of the
impact of changes in the provision for
impairment of capitalized mortgage loan
servicing rights already noted. The
segment’s net income in 2002 was 12%
lower than 2001’s total of $43 million.
That decrease from 2001 was attributable
to a $29 million increase in the provision
for impairment of capitalized residential
mortgage loan servicing rights and a $19
million increase in salaries, commissions
and other operating expenses. Mitigating
the impact of those higher expenses was
a $27 million increase in net interest
income, the result of a higher loan net
interest margin and higher average loan
balances outstanding; increased loan
servicing revenues of $7 million, largely
the result of purchased servicing rights;
and a $6 million increase in revenues
from loan origination and sales activities.
During 2001, gains from sales of loans
to the Company’s Discretionary
Portfolio segment were $10 million.
The Retail Banking segment offers
a variety of services to consumers and
small businesses through several delivery
channels which include traditional and
“in-store” banking offices, automated
teller machines, telephone banking and
internet banking. The Company has
banking offices in New York State,
Pennsylvania, Maryland, Virginia, the
District of Columbia, West Virginia and
Delaware. The Retail Banking segment
also offers certain deposit and loan
products on a nationwide basis through
M&T Bank, N.A. Credit services offered
by this segment include consumer
installment loans, student loans,
automobile loans (originated both
directly and indirectly through dealers),
home equity loans and lines of credit,
and loans and leases to small businesses.
The segment also offers to its customers
deposit products, including demand,
savings and time accounts; investment
products, including mutual funds and
annuities; and other services. Net
income for the Retail Banking segment
totaled $192 million in 2003, up 20%
from $159 million in 2002. The
favorable variance was largely the result

of higher net interest income of $180
million and service charges on deposit
accounts of $99 million, partially offset
by higher operating expenses of $231
million, all largely attributable to the
impact of the acquisition of Allfirst. In
the non-Allfirst regions, a $62 million
decrease in net interest income
attributable to deposits, due to a

44 basis point decline in net interest
margin, was partially offset by a $49
million increase in net interest income
on loans, resulting from increases in
indirect automobile loan and home
equity line of credit balances outstanding
of 51% and 27%, respectively. Earnings
for this segment declined 19% in 2002
from $198 million in 2001. A $44
million reduction in net interest income
was a significant contributor to such
decline. A lower deposit net interest
margin of 42 basis points, largely
attributable to the impact of the year’s
low interest rate environment, and a 6%
decrease in retail deposit balances led to
an $82 million decline in net interest
income. Partially offsetting this decline
was higher loan net interest income of
$38 million, primarily the result of a
14% increase in average loan balances
outstanding. Also contributing to the
lower earnings in 2002 was a $15
million increase in the provision for
credit losses and increased operating
expenses of $23 million, offset, in part,
by an $18 million increase in service
charges on deposit accounts.

The “All Other” category reflects
other activities of the Company that are
not directly attributable to the reported
segments as determined in accordance
with SFAS No. 131, such as the M&T
Investment Group, which includes the
Company’s trust, brokerage and
insurance businesses. Also reflected in
this category are the amortization of
goodwill (in 2001) and core deposit
and other intangible assets, merger-
related expenses resulting from
acquisitions, and the net impact of the
Company’s allocation methodologies
for internal funds transfer pricing and
the provision for credit losses. The
various components comprising the
“All Other” category resulted in net
losses of $64 million in 2003 and $134
million in 2001, and net income of $14
million in 2002. The net loss in 2003
was largely the result of merger-related
costs, core deposit intangible
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amortization, and, largely as a result of
the Allfirst acquisition, higher operating
expenses that under the Company’s
cost allocation methodologies were not
allocated to the Company’s reportable
segments. Also contributing to the net
loss were higher provisions for credit
losses. The improvement in 2002 from
2001 was due to the Company’s
allocation methodologies for internal
funds transfer pricing, combined with
the cessation of amortization of goodwill
resulting from the January 1, 2002
adoption of SFAS No. 142.

FASB Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 45”),
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others,” was issued in November 2002.
FIN 45 elaborates on the disclosures to
be made by a guarantor in its interim
and annual financial statements about
its obligations under certain guarantees
that it has issued. It also clarifies that a
guarantor is required to recognize, at
the inception of a guarantee, a liability
for the fair value of the obligation
undertaken in issuing the guarantee.
The initial recognition and initial
measurement provisions of FIN 45
were applicable on a prospective basis
to guarantees issued or modified after
December 31, 2002. The disclosure
requirements were effective for financial
statements of interim or annual periods
ending after December 15, 2002.

The Company adopted the provisions
of FIN 45 as required, and such
adoption did not have a material impact
on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued
FASB Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46”),
“Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities.” The FASB’s stated intent
in issuing FIN 46 was to clarify the
application of Accounting Research
Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial
Statements,” to certain entities in which
equity investors do not have the charac-
teristics of a controlling financial interest
or do not have sufficient equity at risk
for the entity to finance its activities
without additional subordinated
financial support from other parties.
FIN 46 requires an enterprise to
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consolidate a variable interest entity (as
defined in FIN 46) if that enterprise has
a variable interest (or combination of
variable interests) that will absorb a
majority of the entity’s expected losses
if they occur, receive a majority of the
entity’s expected returns if they occur,
or both. In December 2003, the FASB
issued a revised FIN 46 (“FIN 46R”)
which attempts to clarify the guidance
in the original interpretation. FIN 46
applies to variable interest entities
created after January 31, 2003. FIN 46
also applies to all variable interest entities
created prior to February 1, 2003 that
are considered to be special-purpose
entities (as defined in FIN 46R) as of
December 31, 2003. FIN 46R must be
applied to all variable interest entities
no later than the end of the first
reporting period that ends after
March 15, 2004. As described in note
18 of Notes to Financial Statements,
implementation of the new accounting
provisions related to investments in
variable interest entities resulted in the
removal of trusts that had issued trust
preferred securities from the Company’s
consolidated financial statements as of
December 31, 2003. Accordingly, at
December 31, 2003, the Company
included the junior subordinated
debentures payable to such trusts as
long-term borrowings in its consolidated
balance sheet. Prior to that date, the
Company included the capital securities
of the trusts in its consolidated balance
sheet as long-term borrowings, with
accumulated distributions on such
securities included in interest expense.
That change in financial statement
presentation had no economic impact
on the Company, had no material or
substantive impact on the Company’s
financial statements as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2003, had no
impact on 2003’s average balances noted
herein, and resulted in the Company
recognizing $30 million in other assets
for its “investment” in the common
securities of the trusts that had issued
the trust preferred securities that will be
concomitantly repaid to M&TI' by the
respective trusts from the proceeds
of M&I”s repayment of the junior
subordinated debentures associated with
preferred capital securities described in
note 9 of Notes to Financial Statements.
In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS
No. 149, “Amendment of Statement

133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 149
amends and clarifies financial accounting
and reporting for derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments
embedded in other contracts, and for
hedging activities under SFAS No. 133.
SFAS No. 149 is generally effective for
contracts entered into or modified after
June 30, 2003 and is effective for
hedging relationships designated after
June 30, 2003. Provisions of SFAS No.
149 that relate to SFAS No. 133
implementation issues that had been
effective for fiscal quarters that began
prior to June 15, 2003 should continue
to be applied in accordance with their
respective dates. All provisions of SFAS
No. 149 should be applied prospectively,
except for paragraphs 7(a) and 23(a),
which relate to forward purchases or
sales of “when-issued” securities or other
securities that do not yet exist, which
should be applied to both existing
contracts and new contracts entered into
after June 30, 2003. The provisions of
SFAS No. 149 did not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In May 2003, the FASB issued
SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain
Financial Instruments with Characteristics
of Both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS
No. 150 established standards for how
an issuer classifies and measures certain
financial instruments with characteristics
of both liabilities and equity. SFAS No.
150 is effective for financial instruments
entered into or modified after May 31,
2003, and otherwise is effective at the
beginning of the first interim period
beginning after June 15, 2003, except
for mandatorily redeemable financial
instruments of nonpublic entities. It is
to be implemented by reporting the
cumulative effect of a change in account-
ing principle for financial instruments
created before the issuance date of the
statement and still existing at the
beginning of the interim period of
adoption. Restatement is not permitted.
The provisions of SFAS No. 150 did
not have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In October 2003, the FASB
issued SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003),
“Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions
and Other Postretirement Benefits,”
(“SFAS No. 132R”), an amendment of



SEAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting
for Pensions,” SFAS No. 88, “Employers’
Accounting for Settlements and
Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension
Plans and for Termination Benefits,”
and SFAS No. 106, “Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions,” and a revision
of SFAS No. 132. SFAS No. 132R
revised employers’ disclosures about
pension plans and other postretirement
benefit plans. It did not change the
measurement or recognition of those
plans required by SFAS Nos. 87, 88
and 106. While retaining the disclosure
requirements of SFAS No. 132, which
it replaced, SFAS No. 132R requires
additional disclosures about assets,
obligations, cash flows, and net periodic
benefit costs of defined benefit plans
and other defined benefit postretirement
plans. The provisions of SFAS No. 132R
are generally effective for financial
statements with fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2003. The interim period
disclosures required by this statement
are effective for interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2003.
The disclosures for earlier periods
should be restated, or if it is not
practicable to obtain such information,
the notes to the financial statements
should include all available information
and identify information that is not
available. The Company has complied
with the required provisions of SFAS

No. 132R and included the appropriate
information in note 11 of Notes to
Financial Statements.

This Financial Review and other
sections of this Annual Report contain
forward-looking statements that are
based on current expectations, estimates
and projections about the Company’s
business, management’s beliefs and
assumptions made by management.
These statements are not guarantees of
future performance and involve certain
risks, uncertainties and assumptions
(“Future Factors”) which are difficult
to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes
and results may differ materially from
what is expressed or forecasted in such
forward-looking statements.

Future Factors include changes in
interest rates, spreads on carning assets
and interest-bearing liabilities, and
interest rate sensitivity; credit losses;
sources of liquidity; common shares
outstanding; common stock price
volatility; fair value of and number of
stock options to be issued in future
periods; legislation affecting the
financial services industry as a whole,
and/or M&T and its subsidiaries
individually or collectively; regulatory
supervision and oversight, including
required capital levels; increasing price
and product/service competition by

competitors, including new entrants;
rapid technological developments and
changes; the ability to continue to
introduce competitive new products
and services on a timely, cost-eftective
basis; the mix of products/services;
containing costs and expenses; govern-
mental and public policy changes,
including environmental regulations;
protection and validity of intellectual
property rights; reliance on large
customers; technological, implementa-
tion and cost/financial risks in large,
multi-year contracts; the outcome of
pending and future litigation and
governmental proceedings; continued
availability of financing; financial
resources in the amounts, at the times
and on the terms required to support
the Company’s future businesses; and
material differences in the actual
financial results of merger and
acquisition activities compared to the
Company’s expectations, including the
full realization of anticipated cost
savings and revenue enhancements.
These are representative of the Future
Factors that could affect the outcome
of the forward-looking statements. In
addition, such statements could be
affected by general industry and market
conditions and growth rates, general
economic and political conditions,
including interest rate and currency
exchange rate fluctuations, and other
Future Factors.
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M&T BANK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES Table 21

Quarterly Trends

2003 Quarters 2002 Quarters

Fourth Third  Second First Fourth Third  Second First

Earnings and dividends
Amounts in thousands, except per share

Interest income (taxable-equivalent basis) . . . $554,673 568,319 580,704 439,182 461,515 464,801 465,046 464,786
Interest expense. . . . . .. ... ... .. 129,173 133,539 145506 119,592 136,358 146,080 151,949 160,127
Net interest income . . . . .. ... ... ... 425500 434,780 435,198 319,590 325,157 318,721 313,097 304,659
Less: provision for credit losses . . . . . . . .. 28,000 34,000 36,000 33,000 33,000 37,000 28,000 24,000
Otherincome. . .. ............... 233,757 231,594 232,897 132,847 138,178 128,346 121,179 124,228
Less: other expense. . . ... .......... 378,355 396,400 431,147 242278 251,089 243971 233267 233,284
Income before income taxes . . . .. ... .. 252,902 235974 200,948 177,159 179,246 166,096 173,009 171,603
Applicable income taxes . . . . ... ... 81,801 75,329 62,600 56,998 57,396 52,449 54,881 54,427
Taxable-equivalent adjustment . . . . . .. .. 4,200 4,182 4,308 3,623 3,299 3,530 3,621 3,599
Netincome . . .. ................ $166,901 156,463 134,040 116,538 118,551 110,117 114,507 113,577
Per common share data

Basic earnings. . . . . ... ... $ 139 1.31 1.12 1.26 1.29 1.20 1.23 1.22

Diluted earnings . . . . ... ... ... ... 1.35 1.28 1.10 1.23 1.25 1.16 1.19 1.18

Cashdividends . . . . ............. $ .30 .30 .30 .30 .30 25 25 25
Average common shares outstanding

Basic. . ..... ... ... ... ... 120,141 119,727 119,393 92,399 92,060 92,017 92,608 93,265

Diluted . ... ... .. ... L 123,328 122,593 122,366 95,062 94950 94942 95917 96,300
Performance ratios, annualized
Return on

Average assets. . . ... 1.35% 1.24% 1.10% 1.43% 1.42% 1.37% 1.47% 1.47%

Average common stockholders’ equity . . . 11.77%  11.37%  10.00%  14.46% 15.00%  14.42%  15.43%  15.56%
Net interest margin on average

carning assets (taxable-equivalent basis) . . . 3.96% 4.02% 4.12% 4.32% 4.28% 4.38% 4.43% 4.37%
Nonperforming loans to total loans and

leases, net of unearned discount . . . . . . . .67% 77% .86% .88% .84% .86% .66% 73%
Efficiency ratio®™ . . . ... L L 57.18%  56.60%  59.59%  52.37% 54.20%  54.49%  53.69%  54.41%
Net operating (tangible) results"™
Net income (in thousands) . . . . .. ... .. $181,594 182,670 169,436 127,231 125,760 118,073 123,040 122,370
Diluted net income per common share . . . . 1.47 1.49 1.38 1.34 1.32 1.24 1.28 1.27
Annualized return on

Average tangible assets . . . ... ... ... 1.57% 1.55% 1.48% 1.62% 1.56% 1.52% 1.64% 1.65%

Average tangible common

stockholders’ equity. . . . ... ... ... 28.33%  30.67%  29.89%  24.68% 25.54%  25.46%  27.75%  28.41%

Efficiency ratio®™ . .. ... Lo oL 53.93%  53.22%  56.20%  49.81% 51.65%  51.59%  50.67%  51.26%

Balance sheet data
In millions, except per shave
Average balances

Total assets' . . ... ... ... ... $ 49,123 50,024 49,010 33,061 33,174 31,908 31,349 31,290
Total tangible assets . . . . .. .. ... .. 45968 46,848 45822 31,884 31,992 30,718 30,150 30,077
Earning assets. . . . .. ... ... ... ... 42,672 42,885 42,386 30,004 30,118 28,891 28,375 28,281
Investment securities. . . . . ... ... ... 6,212 5,837 5,654 3,638 3,745 2,942 2,888 2910
Loans and leases,

net of unearned discount. . . . . ... .. 36,361 36,953 36,632 25,789 25,864 25,828 25,214 25,109
Deposits. . .o vov o 32,357 31,954 31,189 21,078 21,508 20,991 21,210 21,272
Stockholders’ equity . . . . ... ... 5,625 5,461 5,377 3,267 3,135 3,030 2,978 2,960
Tangible stockholders’ equity . . . . . .. 2,543 2,363 2,274 2,090 1,953 1,840 1,779 1,747

At end of quarter

Total assets' . . ... ... . ... .. ... $ 49,826 50,259 50,399 33,444 33,201 34,173 31,708 31,317
Total tangible assets . . . . ... ... ... 46,681 47,093 47211 32,271 32,024 32,987 30,513 30,108
Earning assets. . . . . ... ... ... ... 43,134 43257 43,038 30,396 30,027 30,749 28,627 28,337
Investment securities. . . . . ... ... ... 7,259 5557 5,946 4,146 3,955 4,181 2,961 2,861
Loans and leases,

net of unearned discount. . . . ... ... 35,772 37,160 37,002 26,224 25,728 26,309 25,604 25,138
Deposits. . .. ooo o 33,115 32414 32,539 21924 21,665 22,540 21,858 21,624
Stockholders’ equity©@. . . . ... ... 5,717 D72 5,433 3,313 3,208 3,083 3,000 2,968
Tangible stockholders’ equity . . . . . .. 2,642 2,482 2,327 2,140 2,031 1,897 1,805 1,759
Equity per common share. . . . . ... ... 47.55 46.49 45.46 35.81 34.82 33.52 32.54 31.89
Tangible equity per common share . . . . . 21.97 20.71 19.47 23.13 22.04 20.63 19.58 18.90

Market price per common share

D T $ 9898 90.93 90.91 84.48 85.08 86.50 90.05 82.24
Low . .. o 87.50 83.65 79.00 74.71 67.70 70.09 79.80 71.19
Closing . .. .................. 98.30 87.30 84.22 78.58 79.35 78.81 85.76 80.37

@) Excludes impact of merger-velated expenses and net securities transactions.

® Excludes amortization and balances velated to goodwill and core deposit and other intangible assets and merger-velated expenses which, except in the calculation
of the efficiency ratio, ave net of applicable income tax effects. A reconcilintion of net income and net operating income appears on page 53.

) The difference between total assets and total tangible assets, and stockholders’ equity and tangible stockholders’ equity, represents goodwill, cove deposit and other
intangible assets, net of applicable deferved tax balances. A reconcilintion of such balances appears on page 53.
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M&T BANK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES Table 22

Reconciliation of Quarterly GAAP to Non-GAAP Measures

2003 Quarters 2002 Quarters

Fourth Third  Second First Fourth Third  Second First

Income statement data
In thousands, except per share

Net income
Netincome . . .. ................ $166,901 156,463 134,040 116,538 118,551 110,117 114,507 113,577
Amortization of core deposit
and other intangible assets®. . . . . ... .. 13,059 13,790 13,883 7,094 7,209 7,956 8,533 8,793
Merger-related expenses® . . . . ... ... 1,634 12,417 21,513 3,599 - - - -
Net operating income . . . . . ... ..... $181,594 182,670 169,436 127,231 125,760 118,073 123,040 122,370
Earnings per share
Diluted earnings per common share . . . . . . $ 1.35 1.28 1.10 1.23 1.25 1.16 1.19 1.18
Amortization of core deposit
and other intangible assets®. . . . . ... .. A1 a1 a1 .07 .07 .08 .09 .09
Merger-related expenses® . . . . ... ... .. .01 .10 17 .04 - - - -
Diluted net operating earnings per share . . §  1.47 1.49 1.38 1.34 1.32 1.24 1.28 1.27
Other expense
Otherexpense. . . .. .............. $378,355 396,400 431,147 242278 251,089 243971 233,267 233,284
Amortization of core deposit
and other intangible assets . . . . ... ... (21,345) (22,538) (22,671) (11,598) (11,788) (13,011) (13,142) (13,543)
Merger-related expenses . . . . . ... ... .. (2,533) (19,251) (33,158) (5,445) - - - -
Noninterest operating expense . . . . . . . . $354,477 354,611 375,318 225235 239,301 230,960 220,125 219,741
Merger-related expenses
Salaries and employee benefits . . . . ... .. $ 426 4278 3,553 285 - - - -
Equipment and net occupancy . . .. ... .. 472 758 800 96 - - - -
Printing, postage and supplies . . . . ... .. 241 614 2,319 42 - - - -
Other costs of operations . . . ... ...... 1,394 13,601 26,486 5,022 - - - -
Total. . ... ... $ 2,533 19,251 33,158 5,445 - - - -

Balance sheet data
In millions

Average assets

AVerage assets. . . . ... $ 49,123 50,024 49,010 33,061 33,174 31,908 31,349 31,290
Goodwill. . ... ... .. (2,904) (2,904) (2,893) (1,098) (1,098)  (1,098)  (1,098)  (1,098)
Core deposit and other intangible assets. . . . (251) (272) (295) (112) (124) (137) (150) (163)
Deferred taxes. . . . . . ... ... L. - - - 33 40 45 49 48
Average tangible assets . . .. ... ... .. $ 45,968 46,848 45,822 31,884 31,992 30,718 30,150 30,077
Average equity
Average equity . .. ... $ 5,625 5,461 5,377 3,267 3,135 3,030 2,978 2,960
Goodwill. . ... ... ... (2,904) (2,904) (2,893) (1,098) (1,098)  (1,098)  (1,098) (1,098)
Core deposit and other intangible assets. . . . (251) (272) (295) (112) (124) (137) (150) (163)
Deferred taxes. . . . . ... ... ... 73 78 85 33 40 45 49 48
Average tangible equity . . . ... ... ... $ 2,543 2,363 2,274 2,090 1,953 1,840 1,779 1,747

At end of quarter

Total assets

Totalassets . . ... ............... $ 49,826 50,259 50,399 33,444 33,201 34,173 31,708 31,317
Goodwill. . . ... ... L (2,904) (2,904) (2,904) (1,098) (1,098)  (1,098)  (1,098)  (1,098)
Core deposit and other intangible assets. . . . (241) (262) (284) (107) (119) (131) (144) (157)
Deferred taxes. . . .. ... ... .. ... — - - 32 40 43 47 46
Total tangible assets . . . . . ... ... ... $ 46,681 47,093 47211 32,271 32,024 32987 30,513 30,108
Total equity
Totalequity . . . .. ....... ... ..... $ 5717 5,572 5,433 3,313 3,208 3,083 3,000 2,968
Goodwill. . . ... ... oo (2,904) (2,904) (2,904) (1,098) (1,098)  (1,098)  (1,098) (1,098)
Core deposit and other intangible assets. . . . (241) (262) (284) (107) (119) (131) (144) (157)
Deferred taxes. . . .. ... ... ... 70 76 82 32 40 43 47 46
Total tangible equity . . .. ... ... ... $ 2,642 2,482 2,327 2,140 2,031 1,897 1,805 1,759

@ After any related tax effect.
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

M&T Bank Corporation (“M&I™) is responsible for the financial statements and the
other information in this Annual Report. This responsibility includes the preparation of
the statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles appropriate
in the circumstances, the fairness of the estimates and judgments required, and the

reliability of the underlying data.

The steps taken to meet this responsibility include maintaining a system of internal
controls, providing for the training of personnel, promulgating written policies and codes
of conduct and, in general, seeking to create an atmosphere conducive to proper reporting
and ethical behavior. There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of
internal controls, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or
overriding of controls. Accordingly, even the most eftective internal controls can provide
only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and the
safeguarding of assets. Furthermore, the effectiveness of internal controls can change

with circumstances.

Management has assessed M&I’s internal controls over financial reporting and disclosure
controls and procedures as of December 31, 2003. Such assessment was based on
criteria described in “Internal Control-Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and on requirements for
disclosure controls and procedures arising from the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Based
on this assessment, management believes that M&I' maintained effective internal controls

over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2003.

The Board of Directors of M&T', operating through its Audit Committee, which is
composed entirely of independent directors, provides oversight to management’s conduct
of the financial reporting process. The Audit Committee annually recommends to the
Board of Directors the appointment of the independent public accountants, which is
ultimately recommended to M&I’s stockholders for their approval. The Audit Committee
meets regularly with management, the independent public accountants and M&I”’s
internal auditor, approves the overall scope of the audit and other work of the independent
public accountants and approves related fee arrangements, and reviews the scope of
internal audits and related reports and findings. Management, the independent public

accountants and the internal auditor each have full and free access to the Audit Committee.
The consolidated financial statements of M&I have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

LLP, independent public accountants, who were engaged to express an opinion as to the

fairness of presentation of such financial statements. Their report follows this statement.

ted G (K

Robert G. Wilmers Michael P. Pinto
Chairman of the Board, President Executive Vice President and
and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of M&I' Bank Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of M&T' Bank Corporation
and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related
consolidated statements of income, cash flows and changes in stockholders’ equity for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of M&I' Bank Corporation and subsidiaries at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows

for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company changed the manner in
which it accounts for stock-based compensation as of January 1, 2003. As discussed in
Notes 1 and 8 to the financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it

accounts for goodwill and other intangible assets as of January 1, 2002.

Buftalo, New York
February 17, 2004
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M&T BANK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheet

December 31

Dollars in thousands, except per shave 2003 2002
Assets Cash and due from banks. . . .. ... ... .. ... ... ... .... $ 1,877,494 963,772
Money-market assets

Interest-bearing deposits at banks. . . . .. ... ... L 13,194 7,856

Federal funds sold and agreements to resell securities . . . . . ... ... 22,288 320,359

Trading account. . . . . ... ... 214,833 51,628

Total money-market assets . . . ... ... ... ... L 250,315 379,843
Investment securities
Available for sale (cost: $6,800,341 in 2003;
$3,508,300in 2002). . . . . ... 6,862,937 3,599,135
Held to maturity (market value: $108,053 in 2003;
$87,8931in2002). . . . ... 104,872 86,397
Other (market value: $291,341 in 2003; $269,618 in 2002). . . . . . . 291,341 269,618
Total investment securities . . . . . . . . . ... . 7,259,150 3,955,150
Loansand leases . . . . . ... ... ... 36,037,598 25,936,942
Unearned discount . . . . . .. ... (265,163) (209,158)
Allowance for creditlosses . . . . . . . ... (614,058) (436,472)
Loans and leases, net. . . . .. ... ... ... 35,158,377 25,291,312
Premises and equipment . . . . . ... oL 398,971 238,986
Goodwill . . . ... 2,904,081 1,097,553
Core deposit and other intangible assets . . . . . ... ... ... ... . 240,830 118,790
Accrued interest and otherassets . . . .. .. ... ... ... 1,736,863 1,155,775
Total assets . . . . . oo $49.826,081 33,201,181
Liabilities Noninterest-bearing deposits. . . . . ... ... $ 8,411,296 4,072,085
NOW accounts. . . . . ... v 1,738,427 1,029,060
Savings deposits . . . . .. 14,118,521 9,156,678
Time deposits . . . . . . 6,637,249 6,246,384
Deposits at foreign office . . . . .. ... o o 2,209,451 1,160,716
Total deposits.. . . . . . oo 33,114,944 21,664,923
Federal funds purchased and agreements to repurchase securities. . . . . . 3,832,182 2,067,834
Other short-term borrowings . . . . ... ...... ... ... ...... 610,064 1,361,580
Accrued interest and other liabilities . . . . ... ... ... ... ... 1,016,256 400,991
Long-term borrowings . . . . . . ... ... 5,535,425 4497 374
Total liabilities . . . . ... ... ... . ... 44108,871 29,992,702
Stockholders’ equity Preferred stock, $1 par, 1,000,000 shares authorized,

noncoutstanding . . . . ... - -
Common stock, $.50 par, 250,000,000 shares authorized,

120,106,490 shares issued in 2003;

97,139,347 shares issued in 2002. . . . . . ... ... ... 60,053 48,570
Common stock issuable, 124,303 shares in 2003;

126,670 shares in 2002 . . . . . . ... 6,326 6,190
Additional paid-in capital . . . ... ... 2,888,963 1,192,998
Retained earnings . . . . . . ... ... 2,736,215 2,297 848
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net . . . ... ... ... L. 25,653 54,772
Treasury stock — common, at cost — none in 2003;

5,110,736 shares in 2002 . . . . ... ... . ... ... . ... ... ... - (391,899)

Total stockholders’ equity. . . . .. ... ... ... .. ... ... ... 5,717,210 3,208,479
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity. . . . . ... ... ... ... $49.826,081 33,201,181
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M&T BANK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Income

Year ended December 31

In thousands, except per shave 2003 2002 2001
Interest income Loans and leases, including fees . . .. ... ......... $1,897,701 1,670,412 1,892,507
Money-market assets
Depositsatbanks . . . ... ... o o oL 147 76 116
Federal funds sold and agreements to resell securities. . . 1,875 4455 2,027
Trading account . . . .. ................... 592 202 348
Investment securities
Fully taxable . . . ... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... 210,968 148,221 182,767
Exempt from federal taxes . . . .. ... ... ... 15,282 18,733 24,120
Total interest income . . . . . . . ... ... ....... 2,126,565 1,842,099 2,101,885
Interest expense NOWaccounts. . . ... ... ... i 3,613 3,900 8,548
Savings deposits . . . ... 102,190 107,281 134,454
Time deposits. . . . ... ... 159,700 237,001 453,940
Deposits at foreign office . . ... ... ... ... ... 14,991 8,460 11,264
Short-term borrowings . . . .. ... ... . ... . ... 49,004 52,723 124,810
Long-term borrowings . . . ... ...... ... ...... 198,252 185,149 210,581
Total interest eXpense. . . . . . . oo 527,810 594514 943,597
Net interest income . . . . . . ... 1,598,755 1,247,585 1,158,288
Provision for creditlosses . . . . .. ... ... ... ... 131,000 122,000 103,500
Net interest income after provision for credit losses . . . . . 1,467,755 1,125,585 1,054,788
Other income Mortgage banking revenues. . . . .. ... ... ... ... 149,105 116,408 102,699
Service charges on deposit accounts . . . . . . ... ... .. 309,749 167,531 144,302
Trustincome . . . . ... .. ... 114,620 60,030 64,395
Brokerage services income. . . .. ... 51,184 43,261 39,349
Trading account and foreign exchange gains . . . . . .. .. 15,989 2,860 4,462
Gain (loss) on sales of bank investment securities . . . . . . 2,487 (608) 1,873
Other revenues from operations . . . . . ........... 187,961 122,449 120,346
Total otherincome . . . . ... .............. 831,095 511,931 477426
Other expense Salaries and employee benefits . . . .. ... ... ... ... 740,324 496,990 467,194
Equipment and net occupancy . . .. ... 170,623 107,822 111,403
Printing, postage and supplies . . . ... ... ... .. ... 36,985 25,378 25,512
Amortization of goodwill . . . . ... ... o L. - - 61,820
Amortization of core deposit and other intangible assets . . 78,152 51,484 59,816
Other costs of operations . . . . .. .............. 422,096 279,937 254,830
Total otherexpense. . . . ... ... ... ...... 1,448,180 961,611 980,575
Income before income taxes . . . . .. ... ... ... ... 850,670 675,905 551,639
Tncome taxes . . . . . ... 276,728 219,153 198,551
Net income . . . . ... $ 573942 456,752 353,088
Net income per common share
Basic. . . .o $ 5.08 494 3.69
Diluted . ... .. ... ... 495 478 3.58

See accompanying notes to financial starements.
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M&T BANK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31

In thousands 2003 2002 2001
Cash flows from Netincome . . . ... ... .. .. $ 573,942 456,752 353,088
operating activities Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Provision for credit losses . . . ... ... ... ..... 131,000 122,000 103,500
Depreciation and amortization of premises
and equipment . . . ... 62,603 38,497 40,604
Amortization of capitalized servicing rights . . . . . . . 50,907 39,806 31,704
Amortization of goodwill . . ... ... . 0oL - - 61,820
Amortization of core deposit and other intangible assets . . 78,152 51,484 59,816
Provision for deferred income taxes. . . . . . ... ... (60,9006) (36,499) (28,895)
Asset write-downs. . . . ... 565 1,235 1,224
Net gain on sales of assets . . . .. ............ (4,443) (7,514) (2,669)
Net change in accrued interest receivable, payable . . . (5,709) (33,470) (18,535)
Net change in other accrued income and expense . . . 51,158 32,131 17,804
Net change in loans held forsale . . . . ... ...... 356,754 (22,279)  (468,237)
Net change in trading account assets and liabilities . . . 2,121 (3,723) 3,078
Net cash provided by operating activities . . . ... .. 1,236,144 638,420 154,302
Cash flows from Proceeds from sales of investment securities
investing activities Available forsale. . . . ... ... ... ... ... 78,978 47,525 380,507
Other . . ... .. 180,325 55,546 -
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities
Available forsale. . . ... ... ... ... L. 2,467,366 2,117,278 889,858
Held to maturity. . . ... ... ... ... . ... ... 128,524 115,038 67,420
Purchases of investment securities
Available forsale. . . ... ... o (3,445,106) (2,073,617) (440,932)
Held to maturity. . . . ... ........ .. ... ... (140,664) (80,072) (87,563)
Other . . ... .. (149,934) (85,719) (36,190)
Additions to capitalized servicing rights. . . . .. ... ... (61,973) (68,187) (37,969)
Net increase in loans and leases. . . . ... .. .. ... ... (1,427,209)  (1,595,888) (1,068,942)
Capital expenditures, net . . . ... ... .. ... .. (31,631) (16,835) (23,738)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired:
Banks and bank holding companies . . . . . ... ... .. 2,134,822 (2,650) (61,741)
Other,net. . . .. .o (12,025) 4,367 (25,799)
Net cash used by investing activities . . . . .. ... .. (278,527)  (1,583,214)  (445,089)
Cash flows from Net increase (decrease) in deposits. . . . . . . ... ... .. 537,552 88,109 (36,862)
financing activities Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings . . . . . . (597,930) 383,591 937,713
Proceeds from long-term borrowings . . . . . ... ... .. 1,299,568 1,401,197 475451
Payments on long-term borrowings . . . . . . ... ... .. (1,498,842) (370,682)  (458,014)
Purchases of treasury stock . . . . ... ... .. L. - (240,314) (323,744)
Dividends paid —common . . . ... ... ... ... ... (135,423) (96,858) (95,872)
Other,net. . . .. ..o 53,109 57,132 31,945
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities. . . . . (341,966) 1,222,175 530,017
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . ... ... 615,651 277,381 239,230
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . . . . .. 1,284,131 1,006,750 767,520
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . . . .. ... ... $ 1,899,782 1,284,131 1,006,750
Supplemental Interest received during the year. . . . ... ... ... ... $ 2,151,057 1,850,213 2,144,338
disclosure of cash Interest paid during theyear . . . .. ... ... ....... 577,741 635,898 1,008,146
flow information Income taxes paid during theyear. . . ... ... ... ... 329,827 250,332 189,562
Supplemental schedule Real estate acquired in settlement of loans . . . . . ... .. $ 17,794 17,038 18,415
of noncash investing Acquisition of banks and bank holding companies
and financing activities Common stockissued. . . . ... ... ... .. ... ... 1,993,956 - 169,270
Fair value of
Assets acquired (noncash) . . .. ... ... o L. 14,355,837 - 1,674,360
Liabilities assumed . . . . . ... ... ... ... ... 14,496,703 - 1,461,449
Stockoptions . . . . ... ... - - 6,646
Securitization of residential mortgage loans allocated to:
Available for sale investment securities . . . . .. ... .. 1,150,834 977,387 -
Capitalized servicing rights . . . . .. ... ... ... ... 17,279 7,212 -
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M&T BANK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Common  Additional other
Preferred  Common stock paid-in Retained  comprehensive  Treasury
In thousands, except per shave stock issuable capital earnings income, net stock Total
2001
Balance - January 1, 2001
as previously reported . . . ... ... $ 46,622 4,077 914,575 1,735,643 (432) - 2,700,485
Retroactive restatement adjustment for
stock-based compensation (see note 1) .. . - - 68,954 (54,626) - - 14,328
Balance — January 1, 2001 as restated. . . . 46,622 4,077 983,529 1,681,017 (432) - 2,714,813
Comprehensive income:
Netincome. . .. .............. - - - 353,088 - - 353,088
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gains on investment securities,
net of reclassification adjustment . . . - - - - 23,549 - 23,549
Unrealized losses on cash flow hedge,
net of reclassification adjustment . . . - - - - (298) - (298)
376,339
Purchases of treasury stock . . .. ... ... - - - - - (323,744)  (323,744)
Acquisition of Premier National
Bancorp, Inc.:
Common stock issued . . . . . ... ... 1,220 - 168,050 - - 169,270
Fair value of stock options . . . . .. .. - - 6,646 - - - 6,646
Repayment of management stock
ownership program receivable . . . . . . . - - 112 - - - 112
Stock-based compensation plans:
Compensation expense . . . . . . ... .. - 32,257 - - 32,257
Exercise of stock options . . . . ... ... 722 - 3,959 - - 70,794 75,475
Directors’ stock plan . . ... ... 2 225 - 415 642
Deferred compensation plans, net,
including dividend equivalents . . . . . . 4 2,085 164 (1406) - 395 2,502
Common stock cash dividends —
$1.00 pershare. . . ............. - - - (95,872) - - (95,872)
Balance — December 31, 2001 $ 48,570 6,162 1,194,942 1,938,087 22,819  (252,140) 2,958,440
2002
Balance - January 1, 2002
as previously reported . . .. ... $ 48,570 6,162 1,096,340 2,017,700 22,819 (252,140) 2,939,451
Retroactive restatement adjustment for
stock-based compensation (see note 1) . . - - 98,602 (79,613) - - 18,989
Balance - January 1, 2002 as restated. . . . 48,570 6,162 1,194,942 1,938,087 22,819  (252,140) 2,958,440
Comprehensive income:
Netincome. . .. ... ........... - - - 456,752 - - 456,752
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gains on investment securities,
net of reclassification adjustment . . . - - - - 32,277 - 32,277
Unrealized losses on cash flow hedge,
net of reclassification adjustment . . . - - - - (324) - 324
488,705
Purchases of treasury stock. . . .. ... .. - - - - - (240,314) (240,314)
Stock-based compensation plans:
Stock option and purchase plans:
Compensation expense . . . . . . . ... - 40,579 - - 40,579
Exercises. . . ... ... ... ... ... - - (42,259) - - 98,854 56,595
Directors’ stock plan . . ... ... - 35 - - 994 1,029
Deferred compensation plans, net,
including dividend equivalents . . . . . - 28 (299) (133) - 707 303
Common stock cash dividends —
$1.05 pershare. . . . ............ - - - (96,858) - - (96,858)
Balance — December 31, 2002 $ 48,570 6,190 1,192,998 2,297,848 54,772 (391,899) 3,208,479
2003
Balance — January 1, 2003
as previously reported . . . ... ... $ 48,570 6,190 1,058,389 2,405,801 54,772 (391,899) 3,181,823
Retroactive restatement adjustment for
stock-based compensation (see note 1) . . = = 134,609 (107,953) = = 26,656
Balance - January 1, 2003 as restated. . . . 48,570 6,190 1,192,998 2,297,848 54,772  (391,899) 3,208,479
Comprehensive income:
Netincome. . . . .............. - - - 573,942 - - 573,942
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized losses on investment securities,
net of reclassification adjustment . . . = = = = (17,283) = (17,283)
Unrealized gains on cash flow hedge,
net of reclassification adjustment . . . - - 622 - 622
Minimum pension liability adjustment . - - - (12,458) - (12,458)
544,823
Acquisition of Allfirst Financial Inc. —
Common stock issued. . . . .. ... ... 10,969 - 1,617,034 - - 365953 1,993,956
Repayment of management stock
ownership program receivable . . . . . .. - - 23 - - - 23
Stock-based compensation plans:
Stock option and purchase plans:
Compensation expense . . . . . ... .. - - 43,228 - - — 43228
Exercises. . . ... ... ... ... 509 - 35,045 - - 25,288 60,842
Directors’ stock plan . . . ... ... ... 4 - 726 - - 175 905
Deferred compensation plans, net,
including dividend equivalents . . . . . . 1 136 (91) (152) - 483 377
Common stock cash dividends —
$1.20 pershare. . . . ............ = = = (135,423) = = (135,423)
Balance — December 31, 2003 $ 60,053 6,326 2,888,963 2,736,215 25,653 - 5,717,210

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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M&T BANK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

1. Significant accounting policies

M&T Bank Corporation (“M&I™) is a bank holding company
headquartered in Buffalo, New York. Through subsidiaries, M&T
provides individuals, corporations and other businesses, and institutions
with commercial and retail banking services, including loans and
deposits, trust, mortgage banking, asset management, insurance and
other financial services. Banking activities are largely focused on
consumers residing in New York State, Pennsylvania, Maryland and
the District of Columbia and on small and medium-size businesses
based in those areas. Banking services are also provided in Delaware,
Virginia and West Virginia, while certain subsidiaries also conduct
activities in other states.

The accounting and reporting policies of M&T and subsidiaries
(“the Company”) conform to generally accepted accounting principles
and to general practices within the banking industry. The preparation
of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The more significant accounting policies are as follows:

Consolidation

Except as described in note 18, the consolidated financial statements
include M&T and all of its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions of consolidated subsidiaries have been
eliminated in consolidation. The financial statements of M&T included
in note 24 report investments in subsidiaries under the equity method.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of this statement, cash and due from banks, federal
funds sold and agreements to resell securities are considered cash and
cash equivalents.

Securities purchased under agreements to vesell and secuvities sold under
agreements to repurchase

Securities purchased under agreements to resell and securities sold
under agreements to repurchase are treated as collateralized financing
transactions and are recorded at amounts equal to the cash or other
consideration exchanged. It is generally the Company’s policy to take
possession of collateral pledged to secure agreements to resell.

Trading account

Financial instruments used for trading purposes are stated at fair
value. Realized gains and losses and unrealized changes in fair value
of financial instruments utilized in trading activities are included in
trading account and foreign exchange gains in the consolidated
statement of income.

Investment securities

Investments in debt securities are classified as held to maturity and
stated at amortized cost when management has the positive intent
and ability to hold such securities to maturity. Investments in other
debt securities and equity securities having readily determinable fair
values are classified as available for sale and stated at estimated fair
value. Except for investment securities for which the Company has
entered into a related fair value hedge, unrealized gains or losses on
investment securities available for sale are reflected in accumulated
other comprehensive income, net of applicable income taxes.

Other securities are stated at cost and include stock of the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York and the Federal Home Loan Bank
of New York.
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Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts for
investment securities available for sale and held to maturity are included
in interest income. The cost basis of individual securities is written
down to estimated fair value through a charge to earnings when
declines in value below amortized cost are considered to be other
than temporary. Realized gains and losses on the sales of investment
securities are determined using the specific identification method.

Loans

Interest income on loans is accrued on a level yield method. Loans
are placed on nonaccrual status and previously accrued interest thereon
is charged against income when principal or interest is delinquent 90
days, unless management determines that the loan status clearly
warrants other treatment. Loan balances are charged oft when it
becomes evident that such balances are not fully collectible. Loan fees
and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and recognized
as an interest yield adjustment over the life of the loan. Net deferred
fees have been included in unearned discount as a reduction of loans
outstanding. Commitments to sell residential real estate loans are
utilized by the Company to hedge the exposure to changes in fair
value of residential real estate loans held for sale. Hedged residential
real estate loans held for sale are recorded in the consolidated balance
sheet at estimated fair market value. Valuation adjustments made on
these loans are included in mortgage banking revenues.

Except for consumer and residential mortgage loans that are
considered smaller balance homogenous loans and are evaluated
collectively, the Company considers a loan to be impaired when,
based on current information and events, it is probable that the
Company will be unable to collect all amounts according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement or the loan is delinquent
90 days. Impaired loans are classified as either nonaccrual or as loans
renegotiated at below market rates. Loans less than 90 days delinquent
are deemed to have an insignificant delay in payment and are generally
not considered impaired. Impairment of a loan is measured based on
the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
effective interest rate, the loan’s observable market price, or the fair
value of collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Interest received
on impaired loans placed on nonaccrual status is applied to reduce the
carrying value of the loan or, if principal is considered fully collectible,
recognized as interest income.

Allowance for credit losses

The allowance for credit losses represents the amount which, in
management’s judgment, will be adequate to absorb credit losses
inherent in the loan and lease portfolio as of the balance sheet date.
The adequacy of the allowance is determined by management’s
evaluation of the loan and lease portfolio based on such factors as
the differing economic risks associated with each loan category, the
current financial condition of specific borrowers, the economic
environment in which borrowers operate, the level of delinquent
loans and the value of any collateral.

Premises and equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation expense is computed principally using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Sales and securitizations of financial assets

Transfers of financial assets for which the Company has surrendered
control of the financial assets are accounted for as sales to the extent
that consideration other than beneficial interests in the transferred assets
is received in exchange. Retained interests in a sale or securitization of
financial assets are measured at the date of transfer by allocating the
previous carrying amount between the assets transferred and any



retained interests based on their relative estimated fair values. The fair
values of retained debt securities are generally determined through
reference to independent pricing information. The fair values of
retained servicing rights and any other retained interests are determined
based on the present value of expected future cash flows associated
with those interests and by reference to market prices for similar assets.

Capitalized servicing rights

Servicing assets purchased or servicing liabilities assumed that are not
recognized in connection with the sale or securitization of financial
assets are initially measured at fair value. Capitalized servicing assets
are included in other assets and amortized in proportion to and over
the period of estimated net servicing income.

To estimate the fair value of servicing rights, the Company
considers market prices for similar assets and the present value of
expected future cash flows associated with the servicing rights calculated
using assumptions that market participants would use in estimating
future servicing income and expense. Such assumptions include estimates
of the cost of servicing loans, loan default rates, an appropriate discount
rate, and prepayment speeds. For purposes of evaluating and measuring
impairment of capitalized servicing rights, the Company stratifies such
assets based on predominant risk characteristics of underlying financial
instruments that are expected to have the most impact on projected
prepayments, cost of servicing and other factors affecting future cash
flows associated with the servicing rights. Such factors may include
financial asset or loan type, note rate and term. The amount of
impairment recognized is the amount by which the carrying value of
the capitalized servicing rights for a stratum exceeds estimated fair
value. Impairment is recognized through a valuation allowance.

Goodwill and core deposit and other intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. Similar to goodwill,
other intangible assets, which include core deposit intangibles, also
lack physical substance but, as required by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, “Business Combinations,”
have had portions of the cost of an acquired entity assigned to such
assets. Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 142 revised the
accounting for purchased intangible assets and, in general, requires
that goodwill no longer be amortized, but rather that it be tested for
impairment at least annually at the reporting unit level, which is either
at the same level or one level below an operating segment. Other
acquired intangible assets with finite lives, such as core deposit
intangibles, are required to be amortized over their estimated lives.
Prior to January 1, 2002, substantially all of the Company’s goodwill
was amortized using the straight-line method over twenty years. Core
deposit and other intangible assets are amortized using accelerated
methods over estimated useful lives of five to ten years. The Company
periodically assesses whether events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts of core deposit and other intangible
assets may be impaired.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company accounts for derivative financial instruments in
accordance with SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended. SFAS No. 133
established accounting and reporting standards for derivative
instruments and for hedging activities. It requires that an entity
recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the balance
sheet and measure those instruments at fair value. If certain conditions
are met, a derivative may be specifically designated as (a) a hedge

of the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset

or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment, (b) a hedge of

the exposure to variable cash flows of a forecasted transaction or

(c) a hedge of the foreign currency exposure of a net investment in

a foreign operation, an unrecognized firm commitment, an available
for sale security, or a foreign currency denominated forecasted
transaction. Pursuant to SFAS No. 133, the accounting for changes
in the fair value of a derivative depends on the intended use of the
derivative and the resulting designation. An entity that elects to apply
hedge accounting is required to establish at the inception of the
hedge the method it will use for assessing the effectiveness of the
hedging derivative and the measurement approach for determining
the ineffective aspect of the hedge. Those methods must be consistent
with the entity’s approach to managing risk.

The Company utilizes interest rate swap agreements as part of
the management of interest rate risk to modify the repricing
characteristics of certain portions of its portfolios of earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities. For such agreements, amounts receivable
or payable are recognized as accrued under the terms of the
agreement and the net differential is recorded as an adjustment to
interest income or expense of the related asset or liability. Interest
rate swap agreements are designated as either fair value hedges or
cash flow hedges. In a fair value hedge, the fair values of the interest
rate swap agreements and changes in the fair values of the hedged
items are recorded in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognized in current earnings.
The difference between changes in the fair values of interest rate swap
agreements and the hedged items represents hedge ineffectiveness and
is recorded in “other revenues from operations” in the Company’s
consolidated statement of income. In a cash flow hedge, the effective
portion of the derivative’s unrealized gain or loss is initially recorded
as a component of other comprehensive income and subsequently
reclassified into earnings when the forecasted transaction affects
earnings. The ineffective portion of the unrealized gain or loss is
reported in “other revenues from operations” immediately. Prior to
the January 1, 2001 adoption of SFAS No. 133, interest rate swap
agreements used to manage interest rate risk were not recorded at fair
value in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Company utilizes commitments to sell residential real estate
loans to hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of residential
real estate loans held for sale. Hedged residential real estate loans held
for sale, commitments to originate residential real estate loans to be
held for sale, and commitments to sell residential real estate loans
are generally recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at estimated
fair market value. Prior to the January 1, 2001 adoption of SFAS
No. 133, residential real estate loans held for sale and related
commitments were carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair
market value.

Derivative instruments, including financial futures commitments
and interest rate swap agreements, that do not satisty the hedge
accounting requirements noted above are valued at fair value and are
generally classified as trading account assets or liabilities with resultant
changes in fair value being recognized in trading account and foreign
exchange gains in the Company’s consolidated statement of income.

Stock-based compensation

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company began recognizing expense
for stock-based compensation using the fair value method of
accounting described in SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” as amended. Under SFAS No. 123, stock-based
compensation expense is recognized over the vesting period of the
stock-based grant based on the estimated grant date fair value of the
stock-based compensation that is expected to vest. Information on
the determination of the estimated value of stock options and stock
purchase plan rights used to calculate stock-based compensation
expense under the provisions of SFAS No. 123 is included in note 10.
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The Company has chosen the retroactive restatement method
described in SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” which amended SFAS
No. 123. As a result, financial information for all prior periods
presented have been restated to reflect the expense that would have
been recognized had the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123
been applied to all stock-based compensation granted to employees
after January 1, 1995. The use of the retroactive restatement method
resulted in the restatement of previously reported balances of additional
paid-in capital, retained earnings and deferred tax assets. As of
December 31, 2000, previously reported additional paid-in capital
was increased by $69 million, retained earnings were decreased by
$55 million, and deferred tax assets were increased by $14 million.
As of December 31, 2001, previously reported additional paid-in
capital was increased by $99 million, retained earnings were decreased
by $80 million, and deferred tax assets were increased by $19 million.
As of December 31, 2002, previously reported additional paid-in
capital was increased by $135 million, retained earnings were decreased

by $108 million, and deferred tax assets were increased by $27 million.

Stock-based compensation expense is now included in salaries
and employee benefits expense and totaled $43 million in 2003,
$41 million in 2002, and $32 million in 2001. After tax effect, stock-
based compensation lowered 2003’s net income by $32 million,
diluted earnings per share by $.27, and basic earnings per share by
$.28. The impact of the Company’s decision to recognize expense for
stock-based compensation on previously reported net income, basic
carnings per share and diluted earnings per share for 2002 and 2001
is as follows:

Year ended December 31

In thousands, except per share 2002 2001
Net income:
As previously reported . . .. ... .. $485,092 378,075
Stock-based employee compensation
expense determined under the fair
value based method, net of
applicable tax effects. . . . ... ... (28,340) (24,987)
Asrestated . . ... ... L $456,752 353,088
Basic earnings per share:
As previously reported . . .. ... .. $ 525 3.95
Asrestated . . .. ... L 4.94 3.69
Diluted earnings per share:
As previously reported . . .. ... .. 5.07 3.82
Asrestated . . .. ... L 4.78 3.58

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
effects attributable to differences between the financial statement
value of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates and laws.

Earnings per common share

Basic earnings per share exclude dilution and are computed by
dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding and common shares
issuable under deferred compensation arrangements during the
period. Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that
could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock
were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the
issuance of common stock that then shared in earnings. Proceeds
assumed to have been received on such exercise or conversion are

62

assumed to be used to purchase shares of M&I' common stock at the
average market price during the period, as required by the “treasury
stock method” of accounting.

Treasury stock

Repurchases of shares of M&I' common stock are recorded at cost as
a reduction of stockholders’ equity. Reissuances of shares of treasury
stock are recorded at average cost.

2. Acquisitions

On April 1, 2003, M&T completed the acquisition of Allfirst Financial
Inc. (“Allfirst”), a bank holding company headquartered in Baltimore,
Maryland, from Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c. (“AIB”), Dublin, Ireland.
Allfirst was merged with and into M&T on that date. Allfirst Bank,
Allfirst’s primary banking subsidiary, was merged into Manufacturers
and Traders Trust Company (“M&T Bank”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of M&T, on that date. Allfirst Bank operated 269 banking offices in
Maryland, Pennsylvania, Virginia and the District of Columbia at the
date of acquisition. The results of operations acquired in the Allfirst
transaction have been included in the Company’s financial results since
April 1, 2003. Acquired assets on April 1, 2003 totaled $16 billion,
including $10 billion of loans and leases, liabilities assumed aggregated
$14 billion, including $11 billion of deposits, and $2 billion was added
to stockholders’ equity. AIB received 26,700,000 shares of M&T'
common stock valued at $2 billion (based on the market value of M&T
common stock at the time the terms of the merger were agreed to and
announced by M&T and AIB in September 2002) and $886 million
in cash in exchange for all outstanding Allfirst common shares. See
note 23 for further information on M&T”s relationship with AIB.

The acquisition of Allfirst represented a major geographic
expansion by M&T and created a strong Mid-Atlantic banking franchise.
Following the acquisition, the Company offers a broad range of
products and services through its banking offices in six states and the
District of Columbia. Management expects that M&T will benefit from
greater geographic diversity and the benefits of scale associated with a
larger company. As part of the purchase price allocation at April 1, 2003,
M&T recorded $1.8 billion of goodwill, $136 million of core deposit
intangible and $64 million of other intangible assets. The weighted-
average amortization periods for newly acquired core deposit
intangible and other intangible assets were eight years and seven
years, respectively. Information regarding the allocation of goodwill
recorded as a result of the Allfirst acquisition to the Company’s
reportable segments, as well as the carrying amounts and amortization
of core deposit and other intangible assets, is provided in note 8.

On February 9, 2001, M&I' completed the acquisition of
Premier National Bancorp, Inc. (“Premier”), a bank holding company
headquartered in Lagrangeville, New York. Following the merger,
Premier National Bank, Premier’s bank subsidiary, was merged into
M&T Bank. Premier National Bank operated 34 banking offices in the
mid-Hudson Valley region of New York State. After application of
the election, allocation, and proration procedures contained in the
merger agreement with Premier, M&T paid $171 million in cash and
issued 2,440,812 shares of M&IT' common stock in exchange for the
Premier shares outstanding at the time of acquisition. In addition,
based on the merger agreement and the exchange ratio provided
therein, M&T converted outstanding and unexercised stock options
granted by Premier into options to purchase 224,734 shares of M&T
common stock. The purchase price was approximately $347 million
based on the cash paid to Premier sharcholders, the fair value of M&T
common stock exchanged, and the estimated fair value of Premier
stock options converted into M&T" stock options.

Acquired assets, loans and deposits of Premier on February 9, 2001
totaled approximately $1.8 billion, $1.0 billion and $1.4 billion,
respectively. The transaction was accounted for using the purchase



method of accounting and, accordingly, operations acquired from
Premier have been included in the Company’s financial results since
the acquisition date. In connection with the acquisition, the Company
recorded approximately $178 million of goodwill and $32 million of
core deposit intangible. The core deposit intangible is being amortized
over seven years using an accelerated method. Through December
31, 2001, the goodwill was being amortized over twenty years using
the straight-line method.

The Company incurred merger expenses related to systems
conversions and other costs of integrating and conforming acquired
operations with and into the Company of approximately $60 million
($39 million net of applicable income taxes) during 2003 and
approximately $8 million ($5 million net of applicable income taxes)
during 2001. There were no significant similar expenses in 2002.
Expenses related to systems conversions and other costs of integration
are included in the consolidated statement of income for the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2001 as follows:

In thousands 2003 2001
Salaries and employee benefits . . . . . . .. $ 8,542 275
Equipment and net occupancy . . . . . ... 2,126 309
Printing, postage and supplies . . . . . ... 3,216 438
Other costs of operations . . . . .. ..... 46,503 6,985

$60,387 8,007

The expenses noted above consisted largely of professional
services and other temporary help fees associated with the conversion
of systems and /or integration of operations; recruiting and other
incentive compensation; initial marketing and promotion expenses
designed to introduce the Company to customers of the acquired
operations; travel and relocation costs; and printing, supplies and
other costs of commencing operations in new markets and offices.

Presented herein is certain unaudited pro forma information for
2003 as if Allfirst had been acquired on January 1, 2003 and for 2002
as if Allfirst had been acquired on January 1, 2002. These results
combine the historical results of Allfirst into the Company’s consolidated
statement of income and, while certain adjustments were made for the
estimated impact of purchase accounting adjustments and other
acquisition-related activity, they are not necessarily indicative of what
would have occurred had the acquisition taken place on the indicated
dates. In particular, expenses related to systems conversions and other
costs of integration are included in 2003 when such costs were
incurred and, additionally, the Company expects to achieve further
operating cost savings as a result of the acquisition which are not
reflected in the pro forma amounts presented. Further, pro forma net
income amounts for the year ended December 31, 2002 include
$12,714,000 of expenses related to the fraudulent foreign exchange
trading activities announced by Allfirst on February 6, 2002.

Pro forma
Year ended December 31
In thousands, except per share 2003 2002
Interest income. . . . . ... ..., .. ... $2,267,271 2,560,530
Otherincome. . . .. ............. 923,055 892,657
Netincome . . .. ............... 598,556 567,431
Diluted earnings per common share . . . . . 4.89 4.64

3. Investment securities

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities
were as follows:

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized  unrealized  unrealized fair
In thousands cost gains losses value
December 31, 2003
Investment securities
available for sale:
U.S. Treasury and
federal agencies . . . $§ 296,425 589 2976 294,038
Obligations of states
and political
subdivisions . . . . . 136,186 10,355 45 146,496
Mortgage-backed
securities:
Government issued
or guaranteed . . . 3,075,929 36,818 8,238 3,104,509
Privately issued . . 2,520,393 32,514 4,672 2,548,235
Other debt securities. . 312,508 15,011 6,671 320,848
Equity securities . . . 458,900 5,292 15,381 448,811
6,800,341 100,579 37,983 6,862,937
Investment securities
held to maturity:
Obligations of states
and political
subdivisions . . . . . 102,697 3,181 - 105,878
Other debt securities. . 2,175 - - 2,175
104,872 3,181 - 108,053
Other securities. . . . 291,341 - - 291,341
Total $7,196,554 103,760 37,983 7,262,331
December 31, 2002
Investment securities
available for sale:
U.S. Treasury and
federal agencies . . . $ 178,522 4,441 - 182,963
Obligations of states
and political
subdivisions . . . . . 160,399 12,430 30 172,799
Mortgage-backed
securities:
Government issued
or guaranteed . . . 981,143 45,128 54 1,026,217
Privately issued . . 1,606,737 41,467 1,662 1,646,542
Other debt securities. . 350,217 13,418 15,891 347,744
Equity securities . . . 231,282 2,119 10,531 222,870
3,508,300 119,003 28,168 3,599,135
Investment securities
held to maturity:
Obligations of states
and political
subdivisions . . . . . 83,224 1,496 - 84,720
Other debt securities. . 3,173 - - 3,173
86,397 1,496 - 87,893
Other securities. . . . 269,618 - - 209,618
Total $3,864,315 120,499 28,168 3,956,646
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No investment in securities of a single non-U.S. Government
or government agency issuer exceeded ten percent of stockholders’
equity at December 31, 2003.

As of December 31, 2003, the latest available investment ratings
of all privately issued mortgage-backed securities were A or better, with
the exception of 9 securities with an aggregate amortized cost and
estimated fair value of $43,685,000 and $43,921,000, respectively.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of collateralized
mortgage obligations included in mortgage-backed securities were as
follows:

December 31
In thousands 2003 2002

Amortized cost . . . .. ... L. $4,545,040 1,830,371
Estimated fairvalue . . .. .......... 4,568,193 1,873,079

Gross realized gains on the sale of investment securities were
$2,487,000 in 2003, $245,000 in 2002 and $4,097,000 in 2001.
Gross realized losses on the sale of investment securities were
$853,000 in 2002 and $2,224,000 in 2001. There were no such
losses in 2003.

At December 31, 2003, the amortized cost and estimated fair
value of debt securities by contractual maturity were as follows:

Amortized Estimated
In thousands cost fair value

Debt securities available for sale:
Dueinonevyearorless .. .......... $ 164,899 165,757
Due after one year through five years . . . . 149,091 153,788
Due after five years through ten years . . . . 154,641 154,825
Due after tenyears. . . . ... ..... ... 276,488 287,012
745,119 761,382

Mortgage-backed securities available

forsale. ... ............ . .... 5,596,322 5,652,744
$6,341,441 6,414,126

Debt securities held to maturity:
Dueinoneyearorless . .. ......... $ 78204 78,182
Due after one year through five years . . . . 8,179 8,693
Due after five years through ten years . . . . 8,784 9,586
Due after tenyears. . . .. .......... 9,705 11,592
$ 104,872 108,053

A summary of investment securities that as of December 31,
2003 have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for less than
twelve months and those that have been in a continuous unrealized
loss position for twelve months or longer follows:

Less than 12 months
Fair  Unrealized

12 months or more
Fair Unrealized

In thousands value losses value losses
U.S. Treasury

and federal agencies . . $ 149420  (2,976) - -
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions . . 449 (6) 975 (39)
Mortgage-backed

securities:

Government issued

or guaranteed . . . . . 1,505,795  (8,233) 1,295 (5)

Privately issued. . . . . 477137  (4,124) 24,284 (548)
Other debt securities. . . 19,848 (274) 121,638  (6,397)
Equity securities . . . . . - - 97,476 (15,381)
Total $2,152,649 (15,613) 245,668 (22,370)
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Included in the $22,370,000 of unrealized losses on investment
securities that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for
twelve months or more are $15,381,000 of unrealized losses on five
different preferred stock issuances of government-sponsored entities
with a cost basis of $112,857,000. The Company concluded that the
impairment of such securities as of December 31, 2003 was largely
attributable to a temporary widening of rate of return spreads
associated with the securities required by market participants that
resulted from the recent financial reporting issues disclosed by those
government-sponsored entities. The investment ratings of the
preferred stock issuances were AA- at December 31, 2003. Such
ratings have not been lowered since the preferred stock was acquired
by the Company. Furthermore, management believes that the
underlying government-directed business models, and therefore the
underlying economic performance associated with such business
models, is unchanged. Also included in the $22,370,000 noted above
are $6,392,000 of unrealized losses on thirteen different issuances of
bank trust preferred securities with a cost basis of $127,887,000.
Periodic distributions on each of those bank trust preferred securities
varies based on changes in interest rates. The decline in fair value of
the securities is largely due to a widening of interest spreads
associated with the bank trust preferred securities required by market
participants. The Company concluded that the impairment as of
December 31, 2003 was temporary in nature because management
believes that all contractual amounts owed to the Company in
accordance with the terms of the bank trust preferred securities are
collectible and cach of the securities continues to be investment
grade. The amortized cost basis of the trust preferred securities and
their respective investment ratings were as follows: $84,069,000
were rated A-; $15,602,000 were rated BBB+; and $28,216,000
were rated BBB. No securities comprising the remainder of the
impairments were individually significant and such impairments
were generally considered to be a function of the current interest
rate environment.

At December 31, 2003, investment securities with a carrying
value of $4,787,349,000, including $4,555,937,000 of investment
securities available for sale, were pledged to secure demand notes
issued to the U.S. Treasury, borrowings from various Federal Home
Loan Banks (“FHLB”), repurchase agreements, governmental
deposits and interest rate swap agreements.

Investment securities pledged by the Company to secure
obligations whereby the secured party is permitted by contract
or custom to sell or repledge such collateral totaled $580,265,000
at December 31, 2003. The pledged securities are included in
government issued or guaranteed mortgage-backed securities
available for sale.

At December 31, 2003, collateral accepted by the Company
which by contract or custom can be sold or repledged consisted
of investment securities with a fair value of $1,006,000 purchased
under agreements to resell.



4. Loans and leases

Total gross loans and leases outstanding were comprised of the
following:

December 31

In thousands 2003 2002
Loans
Commercial, financial,
agricultural ete.. . ... $ 8,566,604 5,222,184
Real estate:
Residential . . . . ... ......... ... 2,470,438 2,711,133
Commercial . . .. ........... ... 11,462,293 9,299,331
Construction . . . . . ... 1,537,880 1,001,553
Consumer. . . . ...« 10,689,330 6,922,530
Totalloans. . . . . .............. 34,726,545 25,156,731
Leases
Commercial . . ... .............. 839,795 177,554
CONSUMEr. © v v v vt e e e e 471,258 602,657
Total leases . . ... ............. 1,311,053 780,211
Total loans and leases . . . . ... ... ... $36,037,598 25,936,942

Borrowings by directors and certain officers of M&I" and its
banking subsidiaries, and by associates of such persons, exclusive of

loans aggregating less than $60,000, amounted to $198,188,000 and

$153,054,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. During

2003, new borrowings by such persons amounted to $91,977,000

(including borrowings of new directors or officers that were

outstanding at the time of their election) and repayments and other
reductions were $46,843,000.

At December 31, 2003, approximately $270 million of
commercial mortgage loans and $1.1 billion of one-to-four family
residential mortgage loans were pledged to secure outstanding
borrowings.

The Company’s loan and lease portfolio includes (i) commercial
lease financing receivables consisting of direct financing and leveraged
leases for machinery and equipment, railroad equipment, commercial
trucks and trailers, and commercial aircraft, and (ii) consumer leases
for automobiles and light trucks. A summary of lease financing
receivables follows:

December 31
In thousands 2003 2002

One-to-four family residential mortgage loans held for sale were
$723 million at December 31, 2003 and $1.1 billion at December 31,
2002. One-to-four family residential mortgage loans serviced for
others totaled approximately $13.6 billion and $12.6 billion at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. As of December 31, 2003,
approximately $17 million of one-to-four family residential mortgage
loans serviced for others had been sold with recourse. Commercial
mortgage loans serviced for others totaled approximately $3.8 billion
and $644 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. As of
December 31, 2003 approximately $825 million of commercial
mortgage balances serviced for others had been sold with recourse in
conjunction with the Company’s participation in the Federal National
Mortgage Association (“FNMA”) Delegated Underwriting and
Servicing (“DUS”) program, which was acquired as part of the Allfirst
transaction. At December 31, 2003, the Company estimated that the
recourse obligations described above were not material to the
Company’s consolidated financial position. There have been no
material losses incurred as a result of those recourse arrangements.

Nonperforming loans (loans on which interest was not being
accrued or had been renegotiated at below-market interest rates)
totaled $240,292,000 at December 31, 2003 and $215,290,000 at
December 31, 2002. If nonaccrual and renegotiated loans had been
accruing interest at their originally contracted terms, interest income
on such loans would have amounted to $19,752,000 in 2003 and
$17,555,000 in 2002. The actual amounts included in interest
income during 2003 and 2002 on such loans were $5,312,000 and
$6,483,000, respectively.

The recorded investment in loans considered impaired was
$164,183,000 and $164,497,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The recorded investment in loans considered impaired
for which there was a related valuation allowance for impairment
included in the allowance for credit losses and the amount of such
impairment allowance were $110,485,000 and $25,608,000,
respectively, at December 31, 2003 and $110,064,000 and
$17,626,000, respectively, at December 31, 2002. The recorded
investment in loans considered impaired for which there was no
related valuation allowance for impairment was $53,698,000 and
$54,433,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The
average recorded investment in impaired loans during 2003, 2002
and 2001 was $215,882,000, $143,118,000 and $116,841,000,
respectively. Interest income recognized on impaired loans totaled
$5,664,000, $4,180,000 and $3,310,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Commercial leases:
Direct financings:

Lease payments receivable. . . .. ... .. $ 330,800 103,614
Estimated residual value of leased assets . . 121,402 29,796
Unearned income. . . .. .......... (64,264) (18,669)
Investment in direct financings . . . . . . 387,938 114,741
Leveraged leases:
Lease payments receivable. . . . . ... .. 173,999 23,340
Estimated residual value of leased assets . . 213,594 20,804
Unearned income. . . . ... ........ (63,741) (11,080)
Investment in leveraged leases. . . . . . . 323,852 33,064
Investment in commercial leases . . . . . 711,790 147,805
Consumer automobile leases:
Lease payments receivable. . . . . ... .. 191,893 285,558
Estimated residual value of leased assets . . 279,365 317,099
Unearned income. . . . ... ........ (45,871) (75,807)
Investment in consumer
automobile leases . . . . ... ... ... 425,387 526,850
Total investment in leases. . . . . ... ... $1,137,177 674,655
Deferred taxes payable arising from
leveraged leases . . . . . ... ... ... $ 299,285 35,717

At December 31, 2003, the minimum future lease payments to
be received from lease financings were as follows:

In thousands Commercial Consumer Total
Year ending December 31:
2004 . . ... $105,463 95903 201,366
2005. . ... 91,199 56,659 147,858
2006. ... 69,549 28,021 97,570
2007 .. 48,653 10,422 59,075
2008. ... 31,053 888 31,941
Lateryears. . ... ........ 158,882 - 158,882
$504,799 191,893 696,692
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5. Allowance for credit losses

Changes in the allowance for credit losses were as follows:

Year ended December 31

In thousands 2003 2002 2001
Beginning balance . . . . . .. $436,472 425,008 374,703
Provision for credit losses . . . 131,000 122,000 103,500
Allowance obtained

through acquisitions . . . . . 146,300 - 22,112
Allowance related to loans

sold or securitized . . . . . . (3,198) (2,786) -
Net charge-ofts

Charge-offs . . ... ... .. (127,520)  (124,582) (94,154)

Recoveries. . . .. ... ... 31,004 16,832 18,847
Net charge-offs. . . ... ... (96,516) (107,750) (75,307)
Ending balance. . . . ... .. $614,058 436,472 425,008

6. Premises and equipment

The detail of premises and equipment was as follows:

December 31

In thousands 2003 2002
Land. .. ... ... ... . ... $ 57,811 30,961
Buildings —owned . . . ... ... oL 227915 170,301
Buildings — capital leases . . . .. ... ... 1,784 2,904
Leaschold improvements . . . . . ... ... 97,302 67,161
Furniture and equipment — owned. . . . . . 287,910 195,335
Furniture and equipment —
capital leases. . . . ... ... 1,197 2,035
673,919 468,697
Less: accumulated depreciation
and amortization
Owned assets . . . ... .......... 273,660 226,867
Capital leases . . ... ........... 1,288 2,844
274,948 229,711
Premises and equipment, net. . . . ... .. $398,971 238,986

Net lease expense for all operating leases totaled $51,511,000
in 2003, $31,202,000 in 2002 and $31,659,000 in 2001. Minimum
lease payments under noncancelable operating leases are presented in
note 20. Minimum lease payments required under capital leases are
not material.

7. Capitalized servicing assets

Changes in capitalized servicing assets were as follows:

Year ended December 31

In thousands 2003 2002 2001
Beginning balance . . . . . .. $135,076 107,173 100,927
Originations . . . ... .... 50,125 39,460 23,288
Purchases . . ... ....... 34,243 21,037 14,720
Assumed in loan

securitizations (note 18) . . . 17,279 7,212 -
Amortization . . . . . ... .. (50,907) (39,800) (31,704)
Sales. . ...... ... .. ... - - (58)

185,816 135,076 107,173

Valuation allowance . . . . . . (34,500) (32,500) (50)
Ending balance, net . . . . . . $151,316 102,576 107,123
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During 2003 and 2002, provisions for impairment of $2,000,000
and $32,450,000, respectively, were added to the valuation allowance
because the carrying value of certain strata of capitalized servicing
assets exceeded estimated fair value. There was no provision for
impairment added to the allowance for the year ended December 31,
2001. The estimated fair value of capitalized servicing assets was
approximately $161 million at December 31, 2003 and $115 million
at December 31, 2002. In conjunction with the Allfirst acquisition,
the Company obtained capitalized servicing assets of approximately
$21 million, comprised primarily of commercial mortgage servicing
rights. The fair value of capitalized residential mortgage loan servicing
assets was estimated using discount rates ranging from 9.3% to 17.5%
at December 31, 2003 and 8.6% to 16.2% at December 31, 2002, and
contemporaneous prepayment assumptions. The weighted-average
discount rate was 11.6% and 9.6% at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The estimated market value of capitalized servicing rights
may vary significantly in subsequent periods due to changing interest
rates and the effect thereof on prepayment speeds. An 18% discount
rate was used to estimate the fair value of capitalized commercial
mortgage servicing rights at December 31, 2003 with no prepayment
assumptions because, in general, the servicing agreements allow the
Company to share in customer loan prepayment fees and thereby
recover the remaining carrying value of the capitalized servicing rights
associated with such loan. The Company’s ability to realize the carrying
value of capitalized commercial mortgage servicing rights is more
dependent on the borrowers” abilities to repay the underlying loans
than on prepayments or changes in interest rates. Capitalized servicing
assets at December 31, 2003 included $129 million of capitalized
residential mortgage loan servicing rights, net of the valuation
allowance for impairment, and $22 million of capitalized commercial
mortgage loan servicing rights. At December 31, 2002 and 2001,
capitalized servicing assets consisted predominantly of capitalized
residential mortgage loan servicing rights.

The key economic assumptions used to determine the fair value
of capitalized servicing rights at December 31, 2003 and the sensitivity
of such value to changes in those assumptions are summarized in the
table that follows. Those calculated sensitivities are hypothetical and
actual changes in the fair value of capitalized servicing rights may
differ significantly from the amounts presented herein. The effect of
a variation in a particular assumption on the fair value of the servicing
rights is calculated without changing any other assumption. In reality,
changes in one factor may result in changes in another which may
magnify or counteract the sensitivities. The changes in assumptions
are presumed to be instantancous.

Weighted-average prepayment speeds — residential

(constant prepayment rate) . . . . . ... ... ... .. 20.15%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change . . . .. .. $ (7,462,000)
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change . . . .. .. (14,269,000)
Weighted-average discount rate —

residential and commercial . . .. ... L0 12.58%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change . . . .. .. $ (4,893,000)
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change . . . .. .. (9,455,000)



8. Goodwill and other intangible assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company ceased amortizing
goodwill associated with corporate acquisitions effective January 1,
2002. As prescribed by SFAS No. 142, the following is a reconciliation
of reported net income and earnings per share and net income and
carnings per share adjusted to exclude the impact of amortization of
goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2001:

Year ended December 31

In thousands, except per sharve 2001
Net income:
Asreported . . . ... $353,088
Amortization of goodwill . . . .. ... .. 61,820
Adjusted netincome . . ... ... L $414,908
Basic earnings per share:
Asreported . . .. ... $  3.69
Amortization of goodwill . . . ... .. .. .64
Adjusted basic earnings per share . . . .. $ 433
Diluted earnings per share:
Asreported . . . ... $ 358
Amortization of goodwill . . ... ... .. .62
Adjusted diluted earnings per share . . . . $ 420

The Company continues to amortize core deposit and other
intangible assets over the estimated life of each respective asset. Total
amortizing intangible assets were comprised of the following:

Gross Net

carrying  Accumulated carrying

In thousands amount  amortization amount
December 31, 2003

Core deposit . . . ... ... $385,725 202,616 183,109

Other . ............ 99,443 41,722 57,721

Total. .. ........... $485,168 244338 240,830
December 31, 2002

Core deposit . . .. ... .. $249,960 143,272 106,688

Other . ............ 35,016 22914 12,102

Total. .. ........... $284,976 166,186 118,790

Amortization of core deposit and other intangible assets was
generally computed using accelerated methods over original
amortization periods of five to ten years. The weighted average
original amortization period was approximately eight years. The
remaining weighted-average amortization period as of December 31,
2003 was approximately six years. Amortization expense for core
deposit and other intangible assets was $78,152,000, $51,484,000
and $59,816,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Estimated amortization expense in future years for
such intangible assets is as follows:

In thousands

Year ending December 31:

2004 . . $ 75410
2005 . . . 56,684
2000 . . .. 42768
2007 .. 29,311
2008 . L 17,707
Later years. . . . .ot 18,950

$240,830

Also in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142, the
Company completed a transitional goodwill impairment test as of
January 1, 2002 and annual goodwill impairment tests as of October 1,
2002 and 2003. For purposes of testing for impairment, the Company
assigned all recorded goodwill to the reporting units originally intended
to benefit from past business combinations. Goodwill was generally
assigned based on the implied fair value of the acquired goodwill
applicable to the benefited reporting units at the time of each respective
acquisition. The implied fair value of the goodwill was determined as
the difference between the estimated incremental overall fair value of
the reporting unit and the estimated fair value of the net assets assigned
to the reporting unit as of each respective acquisition date. To test for
goodwill impairment at each evaluation date, the Company compared
the estimated fair value of each of its reporting units to their respective
carrying amounts and certain other assets and liabilities assigned to the
reporting unit, including goodwill and core deposit and other
intangible assets. The methodologies used to estimate fair values of
reporting units as of the acquisition dates and as of the evaluation dates
were similar. For the Company’s core customer relationship business
reporting units, fair value was estimated as the present value of the
expected future cash flows of the reporting unit. The Company’s non-
relationship business reporting units were individually analyzed and fair
value was largely determined by comparisons to market transactions for
similar businesses. Based on the results of the transitional and annual
goodwill impairment tests, the Company concluded that the amount of
recorded goodwill was not impaired at the respective testing dates.

The resulting goodwill from the Allfirst acquisition is not tax
deductible. A summary of goodwill assigned to each of the
Company’s reportable segments as of December 31, 2003 and 2002
for purposes of testing for impairment is provided below:

December 31 Allfirst  December 31

In thousands 2002 acquisition 2003
Commercial Banking . . . . . $ 236,012 602,153 838,165
Commercial Real Estate. . . . 114,883 140,283 255,166
Discretionary Portfolio . . . . - - -
Residential Mortgage

Banking . .. ......... - - -
Retail Banking . . . . ... .. 627,564 813,361 1,440,925
All Other . . .......... 119,094 250,731 369,825
Total. . ............. $1,097,553 1,806,528 2,904,081

9. Borrowings

The amounts and interest rates of short-term borrowings were as

follows:

Federal funds

purchased and Other
repurchase
agreements

short-term

Dollars in thousands borrowings Total

At December 31, 2003

Amount outstanding. . . . . $3,832,182 610,064  4,442.246
Weighted-average
interest rate . . . . ... .. .92% 1.25% .96%

For the year ended
December 31, 2003
Highest amount

atamonth-end . . . . .. $4,301,977 1,322,839
Daily-average

amount outstanding . . . 3,337,582 993,235 4,330,817
Weighted-average

interest rate . . . ... .. 1.09% 1.27% 1.13%
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Federal funds

purchased and Other
repurchase short-term
Dollars in thousands agreements  borrowings Total
(continued)
At December 31, 2002
Amount outstanding. . . . . $2,067,834 1,361,580 3,429,414
Weighted-average
interest rate . . . . .. ... 1.24% 1.26% 1.24%
For the year ended
December 31, 2002
Highest amount
at amonth-end . . . . .. $2,598,647 1,361,580
Daily-average
amount outstanding . . . 2,101,700 1,022,976 3,124,676
Weighted-average
interest rate . . .. . ... 1.69% 1.69% 1.69%
At December 31, 2001
Amount outstanding. . . . . $2,133,558 912,272 3,045,830
Weighted-average
interest rate . . . . ... .. 1.56% 1.64% 1.58%
For the year ended
December 31, 2001
Highest amount
ata month-end . . . . .. $3,191,427 1,144,408
Daily-average
amount outstanding . . . 2,389,004 890,778 3,279,782
Weighted-average
interest rate . . . . . ... 3.78% 3.88% 3.81%

In general, federal funds purchased and short-term repurchase
agreements outstanding at December 31, 2003 matured within two
days following year-end. Other short-term borrowings included
borrowings from the U.S. Treasury and others having original maturities
of one year or less. Other short-term borrowings at December 31, 2003
and 2002 included a $500 million revolving asset-backed structured
borrowing with an unaffiliated conduit lender, which was entered into
in November 2002. Further information related to the revolving asset-
backed structured borrowing is provided in note 18. Other short-term
borrowings at December 31, 2002 included $750 million of borrowings
from the FHLB that matured in two days. There was no similar
borrowing from the FHLB at December 31, 2003.

At December 31, 2003, the Company had lines of credit under
formal agreements as follows:

MaT MaT
In thousands M&T Bank Bank, N.A.
Outstanding borrowings . . . $ - 3,137,979 -
Unused . . ........... 30,000 5,345,281 149,789

M&T has a revolving credit agreement with an unaffiliated
commercial bank whereby M&T' may borrow up to $30 million at its
discretion through December 10, 2004. At December 31, 2003, M&T
Bank had borrowing facilities available with the FHLB whereby M&T
Bank could borrow up to approximately $6.2 billion. Additionally,

M&T Bank and M&T Bank, National Association (“M&T" Bank, N.A.”),

a wholly owned subsidiary of M&TI', had available lines of credit with
the Federal Reserve Bank of New York totaling approximately $2.2
billion, under which there were no borrowings outstanding at
December 31, 2003 or 2002. M&T Bank and M&T" Bank, N.A. are
required to pledge loans or investment securities as collateral for these
borrowing facilities.
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Long-term borrowings were as follows:

December 31

In thousands 2003 2002
Subordinated notes of M&T' Bank:
7% due 2005 . . ... $ 100,000 100,000
8% due 2010 .. ... ... ... ... 499,595 504,811
3.85% duec 2013 . ... ... ... ... .. 399,633 -
Subordinated notes of M&T":
72% due 2007 .. ... L. 222351 -
6.875% due 2009. . . ... ... ... ... 108,951 -
Senior medium term notes:
7.3%due 2004 . ... ... L. 74415 74,253
6.5% due 2008 . . ... ... L. 28,028 27,582

Advances from FHLB:

Variablerates . . . .. ... ... ...... 2,000,000 2,415,000

Fixedrates. . . .. .............. 1,156,535 1,020,385
Junior subordinated debentures associated

with preferred capital securities of:

M&T Capital Trust I —8.234% . . . .. .. 154,640 -

M&T Capital Trust IT - 8.277%. . . . . .. 103,093 -

Mgd' Capital Trust IIT-9.25% . . . . . .. 69,359 -

First Maryland Capital I - Variable rate . . 142,004 -

First Maryland Capital IT — Variable rate . 139,333 -

Allfirst Asset Trust — Variable rate . . . . . 101,327 -
Preferred capital securities:

M&T Capital Trust I - 8.234% . . . . . .. - 150,000

Mgd' Capital Trust IT - 8.277%. . . . . .. - 100,000

Mgd' Capital Trust IIT-9.25%. . . . . .. - 67,828
Other .. ...... ... .. ... ...... 236,161 37,515

$5,535,425 4,497,374

The subordinated notes of M&I" Bank are unsecured and are
subordinate to the claims of depositors and other creditors of M&T
Bank. The subordinated notes of M&T are unsecured and subordinate
to the claims of general creditors of M&T. The senior medium term
notes were issued in 1997 and 1998 by Keystone Financial Mid-
Atlantic Funding Corp., now a wholly owned subsidiary of M&T" that
was acquired in 2000. The notes provide for semi-annual interest
payments at fixed rates of interest and are guaranteed by M&T.

Long-term variable rate advances from the FHLB had
contractual interest rates that ranged from 1.10% to 1.22% at
December 31, 2003 and from 1.38% to 1.80% at December 31,
2002. The weighted-average contractual interest rates were 1.15%
and 1.49% at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Long-term
fixed-rate advances from the FHLB had contractual interest rates
ranging from 4.05% to 8.29% at December 31, 2003 and 2002. The
weighted-average contractual interest rates payable were 5.38% and
5.52% at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Advances from
the FHLB mature at various dates through 2029 and are secured by
residential real estate loans, commercial real estate loans and
investment securities.

In 1997, M&T Capital Trust I (“Trust I”), M&T" Capital Trust IT
(“Trust I1”), and M&T Capital Trust III (“Trust I1I”) issued $310
million of fixed rate preferred capital securities. As a result of the Allfirst
acquisition, M&T assumed responsibility for $300 million of similar
preferred capital securities previously issued by special-purpose entities
formed by Allfirst consisting of $150 million of floating rate preferred
capital securities issued by First Maryland Capital I (“Trust IV”) in
December 1996 and $150 million of floating rate preferred capital
securities issued by First Maryland Capital II (“Trust V”) in January
1997. The distribution rates on the preferred capital securities of Trust IV



and Trust V adjust quarterly based on changes in the three-month
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) and were 2.15% and
2.01%, respectively, at December 31, 2003. Trust I, Trust II, Trust 111,
Trust IV and Trust V are referred to herein collectively as the “Trusts.”

Other than the following payment terms (and the redemption
terms described below), the preferred capital securities issued by the
Trusts (“Capital Securities”) are substantially identical in all material
respects:

Distribution Distribution

Trust rate dates
TrustI. . .......... 8.234% February 1 and August 1
TrustIT .. .. .... ... 8.277% June 1 and December 1
Trust IIL. . . ... ... .. 9.25% February 1 and August 1
Trust IV. ... ..o LIBOR January 15, April 15,
plus 1.00% July 15 and October 15

Trust V.. ... ... LIBOR February 1, May 1,
plus .85%  August 1 and November 1

The common securities of each Trust (“Common Securities”) are
wholly owned by M&I and are the only class of each Trust’s securities
possessing general voting powers. The Capital Securities represent
preferred undivided interests in the assets of the corresponding Trust.
Under the Federal Reserve Board’s current risk-based capital guidelines,
the Capital Securities are includable in M&TI’s Tier 1 capital.

The proceeds from the issuances of the Capital Securities and
Common Securities were used by the Trusts to purchase junior
subordinated deferrable interest debentures (“Junior Subordinated
Debentures”) of M&T as follows:

Junior Subordinated
Debentures

Capital Common

Trust Securities Securities

Trust I  $150 million  $4.64 million $154.64 million aggregate
liquidation amount of 8.234%
Junior Subordinated Debentures
due February 1, 2027.

Trust II $100 million  $3.09 million $103.09 million aggregate
liquidation amount of 8.277%
Junior Subordinated Debentures
due June 1, 2027.

$61.856 million aggregate

liquidation amount of 9.25%

Trust IIT  $60 million $1.856 million

Junior Subordinated Debentures

due February 1, 2027.

Trust IV $150 million  $4.64 million $154.64 million aggregate
liquidation amount of
Floating Rate Junior
Subordinated Debentures
due January 15, 2027.
Trust V. $150 million  $4.64 million $154.64 million aggregate
liquidation amount of
Floating Rate Junior
Subordinated Debentures

due February 1, 2027.

The Junior Subordinated Debentures represent the sole assets of
cach Trust and payments under the Junior Subordinated Debentures
are the sole source of cash flow for each Trust. The financial state-
ment carrying values of junior subordinated debentures associated
with preferred capital securities at December 31, 2003 of Trust III,
Trust IV, Trust V and of preferred capital securities at December 31,
2002 of Trust III include the unamortized portions of purchase

accounting adjustments to reflect estimated fair value as of the date
of M&I”s acquisition of the common securities of each respective trust.
The interest rates payable on the Junior Subordinated Debentures

of Trust IV and Trust V were 2.15% and 2.01%, respectively, at
December 31, 2003.

Holders of the Capital Securities receive preferential cumulative
cash distributions on each distribution date at the stated distribution
rate unless M&T exercises its right to extend the payment of interest
on the Junior Subordinated Debentures for up to ten semi-annual
periods (in the case of Trust I, Trust IT and Trust IIT) or twenty
quarterly periods (in the case of Trust IV and Trust V), in which case
payment of distributions on the respective Capital Securities will be
deferred for comparable periods. During an extended interest period,
MT may not pay dividends or distributions on, or repurchase,
redeem or acquire any shares of its capital stock. The agreements
governing the Capital Securities, in the aggregate, provide a full,
irrevocable and unconditional guarantee by M&T of the payment of
distributions on, the redemption of, and any liquidation distribution
with respect to the Capital Securities. The obligations under such
guarantee and the Capital Securities are subordinate and junior in
right of payment to all senior indebtedness of M&T.

The Capital Securities will remain outstanding until the Junior

Subordinated Debentures are repaid at maturity, are redeemed prior
to maturity or are distributed in liquidation to the Trusts. The Capital
Securities are mandatorily redeemable in whole, but not in part, upon
repayment at the stated maturity dates of the Junior Subordinated
Debentures or the earlier redemption of the Junior Subordinated
Debentures in whole upon the occurrence of one or more events
(“Events”) set forth in the indentures relating to the Capital Securities,
and in whole or in part at any time after the stated optional redemption
dates (January 15, 2007 in the case of Trust IV, February 1, 2007 in
the case of Trust I, Trust III and Trust V, and June 1, 2007 in the
case of Trust IT) contemporaneously with the optional redemption of
the related Junior Subordinated Debentures in whole or in part. The
Junior Subordinated Debentures are redeemable prior to their stated
maturity dates at M&I’s option (i) on or after the stated optional
redemption dates, in whole at any time or in part from time to time,
or (ii) in whole, but not in part, at any time within 90 days following
the occurrence and during the continuation of one or more of the
Events, in each case subject to possible regulatory approval. The
redemption price of the Capital Securities and the related Junior
Subordinated Debentures upon early redemption will be expressed as
a percentage of the liquidation amount plus accumulated but unpaid
distributions. In the case of Trust I, such percentage adjusts annually
and ranges from 104.117% at February 1, 2007 to 100.412% for the
annual period ending January 31, 2017, after which the percentage is
100%, subject to a make-whole amount if the early redemption occurs
prior to February 1, 2007. In the case of Trust II, such percentage
adjusts annually and ranges from 104.139% at June 1, 2007 to
100.414% for the annual period ending May 31, 2017, after which
the percentage is 100%, subject to a make-whole amount if the early
redemption occurs prior to June 1, 2007. In the case of Trust III,
such percentage adjusts annually and ranges from 104.625% at
February 1, 2007 to 100.463% for the annual period ending January 31,
2017, after which the percentage is 100%, subject to a make-whole
amount if the early redemption occurs prior to February 1, 2007.
In the case of Trust IV and Trust V, the redemption price upon
carly redemption will be equal to 100% of the principal amount
to be redeemed plus any accrued but unpaid distributions to the
redemption date.

As a result of the Allfirst acquisition, M&T also assumed
responsibility for $100 million of Floating Rate Non-Cumulative
Subordinated Trust Enhanced Securities (“SKATES”) that were issued
by Allfirst Preferred Capital Trust (“Allfirst Capital Trust”). Allfirst
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Capital Trust is a Delaware business trust that was formed in June 1999
for the exclusive purposes of (i) issuing the SKATES and common
securities, (ii) purchasing Asset Preferred Securities issued by Allfirst
Preferred Asset Trust (“Allfirst Asset Trust”) and (iii) engaging in only
those other activities necessary or incidental thereto. M&T holds 100%
of the common securities of Allfirst Capital Trust. Allfirst Asset Trust is
a Delaware business trust that was formed in June 1999 for the
exclusive purposes of (i) issuing Asset Preferred Securities and common
securities, (ii) investing the gross proceeds of the Asset Preferred
Securities in junior subordinated debentures originally issued by Allfirst
(and assumed by M&T" as part of its acquisition of Allfirst on April 1,
2003) and other permitted investments and (iii) engaging in only those
other activities necessary or incidental thereto. M&T holds 100% of the
common securities of Allfirst Asset Trust and Allfirst Capital Trust holds
100% of the Asset Preferred Securities of Allfirst Asset Trust. M&T
currently has outstanding $105.3 million aggregate liquidation amount
Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures due July 15, 2029 that
were originally issued by Allfirst and are payable to Allfirst Asset Trust
and that pay interest at a rate of 2.58% as of December 31, 2003.

Distributions on the SKATES are non-cumulative. The
distribution rate on the SKATES and on the Floating Rate Junior
Subordinated Debentures is a rate per annum of three month LIBOR
plus 1.50% reset quarterly two business days prior to the distribution
dates of January 15, April 15, July 15, and October 15 in each year.
Distributions on the SKATES will be paid if, as and when Allfirst
Capital Trust has funds available for payment. The SKATES are
subject to mandatory redemption if the Asset Preferred Securities of
Allfirst Asset Trust are redeemed. Allfirst Asset Trust will redeem the
Asset Preferred Securities if the junior subordinated debentures of
M&T held by Allfirst Asset Trust are redeemed. M&T may redeem such
junior subordinated debentures, in whole or in part, at any time on or
after July 15, 2009, subject to regulatory approval. Allfirst Asset Trust
will redeem the Asset Preferred Securities at par plus accrued and
unpaid distributions from the last distribution payment date. M&T has
guaranteed, on a subordinated basis, the payment in full of all
distributions and other payments on the SKATES and on the Asset
Preferred Securities to the extent that Allfirst Capital Trust and Allfirst
Asset Trust, respectively, have funds legally available. Under the
Federal Reserve Board’s current risk-based capital guidelines, the
SKATES are includable in M&T’s Tier I Capital.

As discussed in note 18, effective December 31, 2003 the
Company applied new accounting provisions promulgated by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) and removed the
Trusts and Allfirst Asset Trust from the Company’s consolidated
balance sheet. Accordingly, at December 31, 2003, the Company
included the Junior Subordinated Debentures payable to the Trusts and
the Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures payable to the
Allfirst Asset Trust as long-term borrowings in its consolidated balance
sheet. Prior to that date the Company included the preferred capital
securities of the Trusts and the SKATES issued by Allfirst Capital Trust
in its consolidated balance sheet as long-term borrowings, with
accumulated distributions on such securities included in interest
expense. That change in financial statement presentation had no
economic impact on the Company, had no material or substantive
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2003, and resulted in the Company
recognizing $30 million in other assets for its “investment” in the
common securities of the trusts described herein that will be
concomitantly repaid to M&I by the respective trust from the proceeds
of M&I”s repayment of the junior subordinated debentures associated
with preferred capital securities described herein.
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Long-term borrowings at December 31, 2003 mature as follows:

In thousands

Year ending December 31:
2004 . .. $ 484,422
2005 . o 1,386,249
2006 . .. 515,728
2007 .. 234,243
2008 . . 404,737
Lateryears. . . . . . .. ... 2,510,046
$5,535,425

10. Stock-based compensation plans

Stock option plans
MKT had two stock option plans at December 31, 2003. The 1983
Stock Option Plan (“1983 Plan”) allowed the grant of stock options
at prices which could not be less than the fair market value of the
common stock on the date of grant. Except as described below,
options granted under the 1983 Plan generally vest over four years
and are exercisable over terms not exceeding ten years and one day
from the date of grant. During 2001, the remaining shares available
for grant under the 1983 Plan were awarded. In 1999, the Company
granted options to substantially all employees who had not previously
received awards under the 1983 Plan. The options granted under that
award vested three years after the grant date and are exercisable for a
period of seven years thereafter.

In April 2001, stockholders approved the 2001 Stock Option
Plan (“2001 Plan”). Options granted under the 2001 Plan contain
substantially similar terms as the 1983 Plan. Under the 2001 Plan,
a maximum of 10,000,000 shares of stock may be issued upon the
exercise of options granted.

A summary of stock option activity follows:

Stock options Weighted-average

outstanding exercise price

2001
Beginning balance . . . . . . 10,609,108 $35.34
Granted . . .. ........ 2,047,904 65.95
Acquired (note 2) . ... .. 224734 45.47
Exercised . . ... ... ... (2,706,931) 26.63
Cancelled . . . ... ... .. (269,545) 71.09
Atyear-end . .. ... ... 9,905,270 43.30

2002
Granted . . . . ... ..... 1,898,918 75.81
Exercised . .. ........ (1,431,190) 38.10
Cancelled . . . ... ... .. (167,183) 60.64
Atyear-end . .. ... ... 10,205,815 49.80

2003
Granted . . .. ........ 1,787,701 80.33
Exercised . ... ... .... (1,499,687) 35.57
Cancelled . . . ... ... .. (57,7006) 71.56
Atyear-end . . . ... ... 10,436,123 $56.95

Exercisable at:

December 31, 2003 5,152,482 $42.92
December 31, 2002 4976,171 36.57
December 31, 2001 4,368,555 30.98




At December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, there were
6,248,834 and 7,978,829 shares available for future grant.
A summary of stock options at December 31, 2003 follows:

Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted-
Number Weighted-average Number  average
Range of of stock  Exercise Life of stock  exercise
exercise price options price (in years) options price

$13.95 t0 $39.83 1,499,674 $21.49
40.19 to 49.65 3,058,923 44.77
50.00 to 74.70 2,301,345 63.36 6.7 995194  59.95
7580 t0 90.72 3,576,181 78.12 8.5 265871  77.33

1.8 1495994 $21.45
52 2,395423 4543

10,436,123 $56.95 6.2 5152482 $42.92

The Company used an option pricing model to estimate the grant
date present value of stock options granted. The weighted-average
estimated value per option was $22.62 in 2003, $22.97 in 2002 and
$20.62 in 2001. The values were calculated using the following
weighted-average assumptions: an option term of 6.5 years
(representing the estimated period between grant date and exercise date
based on historical data); a risk-free interest rate of 3.61% in 2003,
4.74% in 2002 and 5.17% in 2001 (representing the yield on a U.S.
Treasury security with a remaining term equal to the expected option
term); expected volatility of 30% in 2003 and 29% in 2002 and 2001,
and estimated dividend yields of 1.50% in 2003, 1.32% in 2002 and
1.52% in 2001 (representing the approximate annualized cash dividend
rate paid with respect to a share of common stock at or near the grant
date). Based on historical data and projected employee turnover rates,
the Company reduced the estimated value per option by 10% to reflect
an estimate of the probability of forfeiture prior to vesting.

Stock purchase plan

The Company began offering a stock purchase plan to employees in
2002. The stock purchase plan provides eligible employees of the
Company with the right to purchase shares of M&T' common stock
through accumulated payroll deductions. Shares of M&I' common
stock will be issued at the end of an option period, typically one year
or six months. In connection with the employee stock purchase plan,
1,000,000 shares of M&T common stock were authorized for
issuance, of which 82,483 shares have been issued.

Similar to the stock option plans, the Company used an option
pricing model to estimate the grant date present value of purchase
rights under the stock purchase plan. The estimated weighted-average
value per right was $13.16 for 2003 and $12.47 for 2002, which were
calculated using the following weighted-average assumptions: a term
of six months to one year (representing the period between grant date
and exercise date); a risk-free interest rate of 1.24% in 2003 and 1.62%
in 2002 (representing the yield on a U.S. Treasury security with a like
term); expected volatility of 26% in 2003 and 24% in 2002; and an
estimated dividend yield of 1.41% in 2003 and 1.21% in 2002
(representing the approximate annualized cash dividend rate paid with
respect to a share of common stock at or near the grant date).

Deferved bonus plan

The Company provides a deferred bonus plan pursuant to which
eligible employees may elect to defer all or a portion of their current
annual incentive compensation awards and allocate such awards to
several investment options, including M&I' common stock.
Participants may elect the timing of distributions from the plan. Such
distributions are payable in cash with the exception of balances
allocated to M&T common stock which are distributable in the form
of M&T' common stock. Shares of M&T' common stock distributable
pursuant to the terms of the deferred bonus plan were 81,092 and

83,072 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The obligation
to issue shares is included in common stock issuable in the
consolidated balance sheet. In connection with the deferred bonus
plan, 150,000 shares of M&I' common stock were authorized for
issuance, of which 54,828 shares have been issued.

Directors’ stock plan
The Company maintains a compensation plan for non-employee
members of the Company’s boards of directors and directors advisory
councils that allows such members to receive all or a portion of their
compensation in shares of M&I' common stock. In connection with
the directors’ stock plan, 100,000 shares of M&I' common stock were
authorized for issuance, of which 50,827 shares have been issued.
Through an acquisition, the Company assumed an obligation to
issue shares of M&I' common stock related to a deferred directors
compensation plan. Shares of common stock issuable under such plan
were 43,211 and 43,598 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
The obligation to issue shares is included in common stock issuable in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Management stock ownership program

Through an acquisition, M&I obtained loans that are secured by
Mg&T' common stock purchased by former executives of the acquired
entity. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the loan amounts owed
M&T were less than the fair value of the financed stock purchased
and totaled $4,578,000 and $4,601,000, respectively. Such loans
are classified as a reduction of additional paid-in capital in the
consolidated balance sheet. The amounts are due to M&I no later
than October 5, 2010.

11. Pension plans and other postretirement benefits

The Company provides defined benefit pension and other
postretirement benefits (including health care and life insurance
benefits) to qualified retired employees. The Company uses a
December 31 measurement date for all of its plans.

Net periodic pension expense consisted of the following:

Year ended December 31
In thousands 2003 2002 2001

$24,530 12,776 11,371

Service cost . . .. ... ...
Interest cost on projected

benefit obligation. . . . . . .. 31,495 19,268 17,847
Expected return on plan assets. . (34,426) (26,371) (27,215)
Amortization of prior

service cost. . . ... ... ... 35 27 11
Recognized net actuarial loss . . 2,349 58 45
Net periodic pension expense . . . $23,983 5,758 2,059

Net postretirement benefits expense consisted of the following:

Year ended December 31

In thousands 2003 2002 2001
Service cost . . . ... ... $ 701 426 398
Interest cost on projected

benefit obligation. . . . . . .. 4,129 1,958 1,832
Expected return on plan assets. . - (38) (52)
Amortization of prior

service cost. . . . ... ... .. 170 170 170
Recognized net actuarial loss . . 371 200 83

Net postretirement

benefits expense. . . . ... .. $ 5,371 2,716 2,431
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Data relating to the funding position of the plans were as follows:

Postretirement
Pension benefits benefits
In thousands 2003 2002 2003 2002

Change in benefit
obligation:
Benefit obligation at

beginning of year . . . . $ 312,776 269,889 29,543 27,518
Service cost. . . . .. .. 24,530 12,776 701 426
Interest cost . . . .. .. 31,495 19,268 4,129 1,958
Plan participants’

contributions. . . . . . - - 1,675 841
Amendments. . . . . .. - 190 - -
Actuarial loss . . . . ... 31,155 23,677 3,640 2,410
Business combinations. . 230,610 - 47408 -
Benefits paid . . . . . . . (24,155) (13,024) (8,231) (3,610)
Benefit obligation at

end of year . . . .. .. 606,411 312,776 78,865 29,543

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan

assets at beginning

ofyear. . . . ...... 254,419 273,080 - 1,006
Actual return on

plan assets . . .. ... 95,788  (25,527) - 9
Employer

contributions. . . . . . - 19,050 - -
Plan participants’

contributions. . . . . . - - 1,675 841
Business combinations. . 136,086 - - -
Benefits and other

payments . . . ... .. (21,699) (12,184) (1,675) (1,850)
Fair value of plan assets

atend of year. . . . . . 464,594 254419 - -

Funded status . . . . ... (141,817)  (58,357) (78,865) (29,543)
Unrecognized net

actuarial loss. . . . . . .. 80,388 112,945 10,501 7,232
Unrecognized prior

service cost. . . ... .. 560 595 1,440 1,610
Prepaid (accrued)

benefit cost. . . . .. .. $ (60,869) 55,183 (66,924) (20,701)

Amounts recognized in
the consolidated balance
sheet were:
Prepaid benefit
cost (asset) . . .. .. $ 4,503 75,552 - -
Accrued benefit
cost (liability). . . . . (86,422) (20,369) (66,924) (20,701)
Intangible asset . . . . 627 - - -
Pre-tax charge to
accumulated other
comprehensive
income . ....... 20,423 - - -

$ (60,869) 55,183  (66,924) (20,701)

The Company has an unfunded supplemental pension plan
for certain key executives. The projected benefit obligation and
accumulated benefit obligation included in the preceding data related
to such plan was $40,502,000 and $40,500,000, respectively, as of
December 31, 2003 and $21,981,000 and $21,840,000, respectively,
as of December 31, 2002.
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The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit
pension plans was $550,313,000 and $270,184,000 at December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

As of December 31, 2003, the accumulated benefit obligation
and fair value of plan assets for the pension plans with accumulated
benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $543,547,000
(including $40,500,000 related to the unfunded supplemental pension
plan) and $457,125,000, respectively. As of December 31, 2002, only
the unfunded supplemental pension plan had an accumulated benefit
obligation in excess of plan assets. The amount of such accumulated
benefit obligation was $21,840,000. At December 31, 2003, the
Company recorded a minimum pension liability adjustment of
$20,423,000 that after applicable tax effect resulted in a reduction of
accumulated other comprehensive income of $12,458,000. There was
no minimum pension liability adjustment at December 31, 2002.

The assumed weighted-average rates used to determine benefit
obligations at December 31 were:

Postretirement
Pension benefits benefits
2003 2002 2003 2002
Discount rate . . . . . 6.25% 6.75% 6.25% 6.75%

Rate of increase in
future compensation
levels . . . .... .. 4.92% 4.96% - -
The assumed weighted-average rates used to determine net
benefit cost for the years ended December 31 were:

Postretirement
Pension benefits benefits
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Discount rate . . . . . 6.75% 7.25% 7.50% 6.75% 7.25% 7.50%

Long-term rate

of return on

plan assets . . . . .. 8.50% 8.75% 9.00% - 4.25% 4.25%
Rate of increase in

future compensation

levels . . .. ... .. 4.96% 4.94% 5.00% - - -

On April 1, 2003, pension and other benefit obligations were
assumed as a result of the acquisition of Allfirst. Initial liabilities and
net costs were determined using a 6.25% discount rate and other
assumptions as noted above.

Weighted-average pension plan asset allocations based on the
fair value of such assets at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and target
allocations for 2004, by asset category, are as follows:

Target

December 31 allocation

2003 2002 2004

Equity securities . . . . .. .. 75% 60% 55-75%
Debt securities . . . . ... .. 19 29 25-40
Other . . ............ 6 11 0-15

Total 100% 100%

The expected long-term rate of return assumption as of each
measurement date was determined by taking into consideration asset
allocations as of each such date, historical returns on the types of
assets held and current economic factors. The Company’s investment
policy for determining the asset allocation targets was developed
based on the desire to maximize total return while placing a strong
emphasis on preservation of capital. In general, it is hoped that, in the
aggregate, changes in the fair value of plan assets will be less volatile
than similar changes in appropriate market indices. Returns on
invested assets are periodically compared with target market indices
for each asset type to aid management in evaluating such returns.



Pension plan assets included common stock of M&I' with a fair
value of $32,235,000 (7% of total plan assets) at December 31, 2003
and $26,021,000 (10% of total plan assets) at December 31, 2002.

The Company makes contributions to its funded qualified
pension plans as required by government regulation or as deemed
appropriate by management after considering the fair value of plan
assets, expected returns on such assets, and the present value of
benefit obligations of the plans. Subject to the impact of actual events
and circumstances that may occur in 2004, the Company does not
expect to make contributions to the funded qualified pension plans in
2004. The Company’s contributions to the funded qualified pension
plans were $19,050,000 in 2002. There were no contributions to
those plans in 2003. The Company regularly funds the payment of
benefit obligations for the supplemental pension and postretirement
benefit plans because such plans do not hold assets for investment.
Payments made by the Company for supplemental pension benefits
were $2,456,000 and $840,000 in 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Payments made by the Company for postretirement benefits were
$6,556,000 and $1,754,000 in 2003 and 2002, respectively.

For measurement of postretirement benefits, a 10% annual rate
of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was
assumed for 2004. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5%
over 5 years and remain constant thereafter. Assumed health care cost
trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for
health care plans. A one-percentage point change in assumed health
care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

In thousands +1% -1%
Increase (decrease) in:
Service and interest cost . . . . .. ... .. $ 207 (184)
Accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation. . . . .. ... ... .. 4,174 (3,714)

On December 8, 2003, the President of the United States
signed into law the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003 (“the Act”). The Act provides for drug
benefits under a new Medicare Part D program and federal subsidies
to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that provide a benefit
that is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. On January
12,2004, the FASB issued Staff Position No. FAS 106-1 that permits
plan sponsors to make a one-time election to defer recognition of the
Act in a sponsor’s postretirement benefit plan accounting until formal
FASB guidance is provided. The Company’s postretirement benefit
plan does provide prescription drug benefits. The Company has
clected to defer the recognition of the provisions of the Act until the
FASB has issued formal guidance. Accordingly, the accrued benefit
liability and net postretirement benefits expense noted herein do not
reflect the effects of the Act on the Company’s postretirement benefits
plan. It is not possible to determine whether any guidance
subsequently issued by the FASB will result in any changes to the
postretirement benefit information presented herein.

The Company has a retirement savings plan (“Savings Plan”)
that is a defined contribution plan in which eligible employees of
the Company may defer up to 15% of qualified compensation via
contributions to the plan. The Company makes an employer matching
contribution in an amount equal to 75% of an employee’s contribution,
up to 4.5% of the employee’s qualified compensation. Employees’
accounts, including employee contributions, employer matching
contributions and accumulated earnings thereon, are at all times fully
vested and nonforfeitable. Employee benefits expense resulting from
the Company’s contributions to the Savings Plan totaled $14,929,000,
$10,724,000 and $10,103,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

12. Income taxes

The components of income tax expense (benefit) were as follows:

Year ended December 31

In thousands 2003 2002 2001
Current
Federal. . . . ......... $317,023 248,392 218,021
State and city . . . . ... .. 20,611 7,260 9,425
Total current . . . ... .. 337,634 255,652 227 446
Deferred
Federal. . ... ... .. .. (49,516) (30,572) (24,368)
State and city . . . . ... .. (11,390) (5,927) (4,527)
Total deferred. . . . .. .. (60,906) (36,499) (28,895)
Total income taxes applicable
to pre-tax income. . . . . $276,728 219,153 198,551

The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return
reflecting taxable income earned by all subsidiaries. In prior years,
applicable federal tax law allowed certain financial institutions the
option of deducting as bad debt expense for tax purposes amounts
in excess of actual losses. In accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, such financial institutions were not required to
provide deferred income taxes on such excess. Recapture of the excess
tax bad debt reserve established under the previously allowed method
will result in taxable income if M&T Bank fails to maintain bank status
as defined in the Internal Revenue Code or charges are made to the
reserve for other than bad debt losses. At December 31, 2003, M&T
Bank’s tax bad debt reserve for which no federal income taxes have
been provided was $74,021,000. No actions are planned that would
cause this reserve to become wholly or partially taxable.

The portion of income taxes attributable to gains or losses on
sales of bank investment securities was an expense of $970,000 and
$724,000 in 2003 and 2001, respectively, and a benefit of $221,000
in 2002. No alternative minimum tax expense was recognized in
2003, 2002 or 2001.

Total income taxes differed from the amount computed by
applying the statutory federal income tax rate to pre-tax income as
follows:

Year ended December 31

In thousands 2003 2002 2001
Income taxes at statutory rate. . $297,735 236,567 193,074
Increase (decrease) in taxes:
Tax-exempt income . . . . . (24,332) (19,972) (22,560)
State and city income taxes,
net of federal income
tax effect. . ... ... ... 5,994 866 3,184
Amortization of goodwill . . - - 21,637
Other .. ........... (2,669) 1,692 3222
$276,728 219,153 198,551
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Deferred tax assets (liabilities) were comprised of the following
at December 31:

In thousands 2003 2002 2001

Losses on loans

and other assets. . . . . ... $ 283,512 191,005 172,392
Postretirement and

other supplemental

employee benefits . . . . . . 44,157 19,105 13,000
Incentive compensation plans . . 28,871 14,650 14,873
Depreciation and

amortization . . . ... ... - 11,286
Interest on loans . . . . . ... 7,091 14,163 6,443
Retirement benefits . . . . . . . 17,825 - -
Stock-based compensation . . . 33,535 26,656 18,995
Other .. ......... ... 36,864 18,104 19,041

Gross deferred tax assets. . . 451,855 294,969 244744
Leasing transactions . . . . . . (534,035) (181,476) (166,126)
Capitalized servicing rights . . (20,390) (8,834) (21,657)
Retirement benefits . . . . . . - (28,798) (13,701)
Depreciation and

amortization . . . ... ... (32,668) - (652)
Unrealized investment gains . . (24,485) (35,441) (12,558)
Other . . ............ (9,198) (12,911) (12,399)

Gross deferred tax liabilities . . (620,776)  (267,460) (227,093)
Net deferred tax asset

(lability). . .. ...... .. $(168,921) 27,509 17,651

The Company believes that it is more likely than not that the
deferred tax assets will be realized through taxable earnings or
alternative tax strategies.

The income tax credits shown in the statement of income of
M&T in note 24 arise principally from operating losses before
dividends from subsidiaries.

13. Earnings per share

The computations of basic earnings per share follow:

Year ended December 31
In thousands, except per shave 2003 2002 2001

Income available to
common stockholders:
Net income . . .. ... .. $573,942 456,752 353,088
Weighted-average shares
outstanding (including
common stock issuable) . . . 113,010 92,483 95,732
Basic earnings per share. . . . $ 5.08 4.94 3.69

The computations of diluted earnings per share follow:

Year ended December 31

In thousands, except per share 2003 2002 2001
Income available to

common stockholders . . . . $573,942 456,752 353,088
Weighted-average

shares outstanding . . . . . . 113,010 92,483 95,732

Plus: incremental shares
from assumed conversion

of stock options . . . . . .. 2,922 3,039 2,929
Adjusted weighted-average

shares outstanding . . . . . . 115,932 95,522 98,661
Diluted earnings per share . . $ 495 4.78 3.58
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14. Comprehensive income

The following table displays the components of other comprehensive

income:
Before-tax Income
In thousands amount taxes Net
For the year ended December 31, 2003
Unrealized losses on
investment securities:
Unrealized holding losses. . $(25,752) 9,986 (15,766)
Less: reclassification
adjustment for gains
realized in net income . . . 2,487 (970) 1,517
(28,239) 10,956 (17,283)
Unrealized gains on
cash flow hedge. . . . .. .. 1,019 (397) 622
Minimum pension
liability adjustment. . . . . . (20,423) 7,965 (12,458)
Net unrealized losses. . . . $(47,643) 18,524 (29,119)
For the year ended December 31, 2002
Unrealized gains on
investment securities:
Unrealized holding gains . . $ 54,552 (22,662) 31,890
Less: reclassification
adjustment for losses
realized in net income . . . (608) 221 (387)
55,160 (22,883) 32,277
Unrealized losses on
cash flow hedge. . . . .. .. (558) 234 (324)
Net unrealized gains . . . . $ 54,602 (22,649) 31,953
For the year ended December 31, 2001
Unrealized gains on
investment securities:
Unrealized holding gains . . $ 38,275 (13,577) 24,698
Less: reclassification
adjustment for gains
realized in net income . . . 1,873 (724) 1,149
36,402 (12,853) 23,549
Unrealized losses on
cash flow hedge. . . . .. .. (461) 163 (298)
Net unrealized gains . . . . $ 35,941 (12,690) 23,251



Accumulated other comprehensive income, net consisted of
unrealized gains (losses) as follows:

Minimum
pension
Investment  Cash flow liability
In thousands securities hedges  adjustment Total
Balance at
January 1,2001 . . .. § (432) - - (432)
Net gain (loss)
during 2001 . . . . .. 23,549 (298) - 23251
Balance at
December 31, 2001. . 23,117 (298) - 22,819
Net gain (loss)
during 2002 . . . . .. 32,277 (324) - 31,953
Balance at
December 31, 2002. . 55,394 (622) - 54,772
Net gain (loss)
during 2003 . . . . .. (17,283) 622 (12,458) (29,119)

Balance at

December 31,2003. . § 38,111 - (12458) 25,653

15. Other income and other expense

The following items, which exceeded 1% of total interest income and
other income in the respective period, were included in either other
revenues from operations or other costs of operations in the
consolidated statement of income:

Year ended December 31
In thousands 2003 2002 2001

Other income:
Bank owned life insurance . . $44,630 32,625 35,409

Other expense:

Professional services . . . . . 88,669 49.200 49,701
Amortization of capitalized

servicing rights . . . . . . . 50,907 39,806 31,704
Advertising and promotion. . 38,950

Provision for impairment
of capitalized servicing
rights. . ... ... ... .. 32,450

16. International activities

The Company engages in certain international activities consisting
largely of collecting Eurodollar deposits, engaging in foreign currency
trading, providing credit to support the international activities of
domestic companies and holding certain loans to foreign borrowers.
Net assets identified with international activities amounted to
$228,741,000 and $6,258,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The increase in such assets included $215,580,000 of
loans to foreign borrowers associated with business activities obtained
in the acquisition of Allfirst. Deposits at M&I" Bank’s offshore branch
office were $2,209,451,000 and $1,160,716,000 at December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company uses such deposits to
facilitate customer demand and as an alternative to short-term
borrowings when the costs of such deposits seem reasonable.

17. Derivative financial instruments

The Company adopted SFAS No. 133, as amended, as of January 1,
2001. The January 1, 2001 transition adjustment prescribed by SFAS
No. 133 was not material to the Company’s consolidated financial
position or its results of operations.

As part of managing interest rate risk, the Company has entered
into several interest rate swap agreements. The agreements modify the
repricing characteristics of certain portions of the Company’s portfolios
of earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Interest rate swap
agreements are generally entered into with counterparties that meet
established credit standards and most contain collateral provisions
protecting the at-risk party. The Company considers the credit risk
inherent in these contracts to be negligible.

The Company designates interest rate swap agreements utilized in
the management of interest rate risk as either fair value hedges or cash
flow hedges as defined in SFAS No. 133. Fair value hedges are
intended to protect against exposure to changes in the fair value of
designated assets or liabilities. Cash flow hedges are intended to protect
against the variability in cash flows of designated assets or liabilities.

Information about interest rate swap agreements entered into for
interest rate risk management purposes summarized by type of financial
instrument the swap agreements were intended to hedge follows:

Average Weighted-  Estimated
Notional maturity average rate  fair value-

Dollars in thousands amount (in years) Fixed Variable gain (loss)

December 31, 2003
Fair value hedges:

Fixed rate

time deposits®. . .. $110,000 6.2 3.52% 1.04% $ (302)
Fixed rate long-term
borrowings® . . . . . 575,000 6.1 7.62% 4.58% (545)

$685,000 6.1 6.96% 4.01% $ (847)

December 31, 2002
Fair value hedges:
Fixed rate
time deposits® . . . . $270,000 2.5 299% 142% $ 1432
Fixed rate long-term
borrowings® . . . . . 125,000 1.7 5.38% 1.64% 6,658

395,000 2.2 3.75% 1.49% 8,090

Cash flow hedge:
Variable rate long-term
borrowings™ . . . . . 100,000 7 290% 1.42% (1,019)

$495,000 19 3.58% 1.48% $ 7,071

) Under the terms of these agreements, the Company receives settlement
amounts at a fived rate and pays at o varinble rate.
Under the terms of these agreements, the Company receives settlement
amounts at o variable rate and pays at o fixed rate.

®)

The estimated fair value of interest rate swap agreements
represents the amount the Company would have expected to receive
(pay) to terminate such contracts. The estimated fair value of such swap
agreements at December 31, 2003 and 2002 included gross unrealized
gains of $3,896,000 and $8,103,000, respectively, and gross unrealized
losses of $4,743,000 and $1,032,000, respectively. At December 31,
2003 and 2002, the estimated fair values of interest rate swap
agreements designated as fair value hedges were substantially offset by
unrealized gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair values of
the hedged items. The estimated fair value of interest rate swap
agreements designated as cash flow hedges, net of applicable income
taxes, was included in “accumulated other comprehensive income, net”
in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2002.
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At December 31, 2003 the notional amount of interest rate
swap agreements outstanding mature as follows:

In thousands

Year ending December 31:

2004 . .. $ -
2005 . . . 75,000
2000 . . o -
2007 . oo 10,000
2008 . .. 20,000
Lateryears. . ... ... ... ... 580,000

$685,000

The net effect of interest rate swap agreements was to increase
net interest income by $17,327,000 in 2003, $8,822,000 in 2002 and
$6,720,000 in 2001. The average notional amount of interest rate
swap agreements impacting net interest income which were entered
into for interest rate risk management purposes were $688,603,000 in
2003, $693,910,000 in 2002 and $522,730,000 in 2001. The
amount of hedge ineffectiveness of both fair value and cash flow
hedges recognized in 2003, 2002 and 2001 was not material to the
Company’s results of operations.

The Company utilizes commitments to sell residential real estate
loans to hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of residential
real estate loans held for sale. Such commitments have been designated
as fair value hedges and, as a result, the commitments and the hedged
loans are recorded at estimated fair value. The Company also utilizes
commitments to sell residential real estate loans to offset the exposure
to changes in the fair value of certain commitments to originate
residential real estate loans for sale. As a result of these activities, at
December 31, 2003 and 2002 net unrealized pre-tax gains related to
loans held for sale, commitments to originate loans for sale, and
commitments to sell loans were approximately $7 million and $15
million, respectively. Such unrealized gains are included in mortgage
banking revenues and, in general, are realized in subsequent periods
as the related loans are sold.

Derivative financial instruments used for trading purposes
included interest rate contracts, foreign exchange and other option
contracts, foreign exchange forward and spot contracts, and financial
futures. Interest rate contracts entered into for trading purposes had
notional values and estimated fair value gains of $5.3 billion and
$9,977,000, respectively, at December 31, 2003 and notional values
and estimated fair value gains of $1.3 billion and $1,096,000,
respectively, at December 31, 2002. Foreign exchange and other option
and futures contracts totaled approximately $548 million and $290
million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Such contracts
were valued at gains of $464,000 and $121,000 at December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. Trading account assets and liabilities are
recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at estimated fair value.
The following table includes information about the estimated fair value
of derivative financial instruments used for trading purposes:

In thousands 2003 2002

December 31

Gross unrealized gains . . . . .. ... ... $148,106 36,051
Gross unrealized losses. . . . .. ... ... 137,665 34,834
Year ended December 31:

Average gross unrealized gains . . . . . . . $132,425 27,427

Average gross unrealized losses . . . . . . . 123,871 26,325

Net gains realized from derivative financial instruments used for

trading purposes were $6,620,000, $2,205,000 and $2,945,000 in
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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18. Variable interest entities and asset securitizations

Variable interest entities

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46
(“FIN 46”), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” The FASB’s
stated intent in issuing FIN 46 was to clarify the application of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial
Statements,” to certain entities in which equity investors do not have
the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have
sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without
additional subordinated financial support from other parties. FIN 46
requires an enterprise to consolidate a variable interest entity (as defined
in FIN 40) if that enterprise has a variable interest (or combination of
variable interests) that will absorb a majority of the entity’s expected
losses if they occur, receive a majority of the entity’s expected returns
it they occur, or both. In December 2003, the FASB issued a revised
FIN 46 (“FIN 46R”), which attempts to clarify the guidance in the
original interpretation. FIN 46 applies to variable interest entities
created after January 31, 2003. FIN 46 also applies to all variable
interest entities created prior to February 1, 2003 that are considered to
be special-purpose entities (as defined in FIN 46R) as of December 31,
2003. FIN 46R must be applied to all variable interest entities no
later than the end of the first reporting period that ends after March
15, 2004. A description of variable interest entities in which the
Company holds a significant variable interest and the impact of the
new accounting provisions related to investments in variable interest
entities is described below.

M&T Auto Receivables I, LLC is a special purpose subsidiary of
M&d Bank formed for the purpose of borrowing $500 million in a
revolving asset-backed structured borrowing with an unaffiliated
conduit lender. The revolving asset-backed structured borrowing is
secured by automobile loans and other assets transferred to the special
purpose subsidiary by M&T Bank or other of its subsidiaries that totaled
$559 million and $560 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The activities of M&T" Auto Receivables I, LLC are
generally restricted to purchasing and owning automobile loans for the
purpose of securing this revolving borrowing arrangement. Proceeds
from payments on the automobile loans are required to be applied in
priority order for fees, principal and interest on the borrowing, and
funding the monthly replenishment of loans. Any remaining proceeds
are available for distribution to M&T Bank. The secured borrowing is
prepayable, in whole or in part, at any time and is non-recourse to
M&T Bank and the Company. However, 80% of the borrowing can
be put back to M&I' Bank upon demand. The Company’s maximum
incremental exposure to loss resulting from the structure of this
borrowing arrangement is generally restricted to the amount that such
borrowing is overcollateralized. Management currently estimates no
material losses as a result of this borrowing arrangement. The assets and
liabilities of M&T Auto Receivables I, LLC have been included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements since November 2002
when the revolving structured borrowing arrangement was entered
into. Such accounting treatment did not change as a result of the new
accounting provisions for variable interest entities described above.

As part of the Allfirst transaction, M&I" acquired a variable interest
in a trust that holds AIB American Depositary Shares (“ADSs”) for the
purpose of satistying options to purchase such shares granted by Allfirst
to certain employees. The trust purchased the AIB ADSs with the
proceeds of a loan from Allfirst. The loan to the trust was assumed by
M&T on the acquisition date. Proceeds from option exercises and any
dividends and other earnings on the trust assets are used to repay the
loan plus interest. Option holders have no preferential right with respect
to the trust assets and the trust assets are subject to the claims of M&I’s
creditors. The trust has been included in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements since April 1, 2003. As a result, 2,640,261 AIB
ADSs with a carrying value of approximately $62 million were included



in investment securities available for sale at December 31, 2003.
Outstanding options granted to employees who have continued service
with M&T totaled 2,443,333 at December 31, 2003. All outstanding
options were fully vested and exercisable at December 31, 2003. The
options expire at various dates through June 2012. M&I”s maximum
exposure to loss is $62 million at December 31, 2003.

Prior to December 31, 2003, the Company included the Trusts
and Allfirst Capital Trust (see note 9) in its consolidated financial
statements. As a result of implementing the new accounting provisions
for variable interest entities, as of December 31, 2003 the Trusts and
Allfirst Capital Trust were removed from the Company’s consolidated
financial statements. As a result, at December 31, 2003, the Company
included the Junior Subordinated Debentures payable to the Trusts
and the Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures payable to the
Allfirst Asset Trust as long-term borrowings in its consolidated balance
sheet. Prior to that date the Company included the preferred capital
securities of the Trusts and the Allfirst Capital Trust in its consolidated
balance sheet as long-term borrowings, with accumulated distributions
on such securities included in interest expense. That change in
financial statement presentation had no economic impact on the
Company, had no material or substantive impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2003, and resulted in the Company recognizing $30
million in other assets for its “investment” in the common securities of
the Trusts and Allfirst Asset Trust that will be concomitantly repaid to
M&T by the respective trust from the proceeds of M&I”’s repayment of
the junior subordinated debentures associated with preferred capital
securities described in note 9.

The Company facilitates certain customer borrowing arrangements
by providing credit support in the form of financial standby letters of
credit. Some of those customer borrowing arrangements utilize special
purpose trusts. In such cases, the trusts issue variable rate demand
bonds and pass through the resulting proceeds to the sponsoring
customer that formed the trust. The Company provides financial
standby letters of credit to the trusts and may also serve as
remarketing agent and /or trustee in the arrangements. The Company
receives fees for each of those services, in addition to a structuring fee.
The Company’s maximum exposure to loss at December 31, 2003 as
a result of its involvement with these transactions is equal to the letter
of credit amounts totaling $1.3 billion, which approximates the
amount of variable rate demand bonds issued by the trusts. However,
it is extremely unlikely that losses of such magnitude will ever occur.
The trusts referred to in this paragraph are not included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. Information about the
Company’s obligations under financial standby letters of credit and
other guarantees and indemnification contracts is presented in note 20.

The Company is a limited partner in various low-income
housing investment partnerships that collectively have approximately
$250 million in total assets. Those partnerships generally construct or
acquire properties to be used to provide housing to low-income
individuals in accordance with government guidelines. Such
investments provide certain tax credits and tax deductible losses to the
partners. The partnership investments also assist the Company in
achieving its community reinvestment initiatives. As a limited partner,
there is no recourse to the Company by creditors of the partnerships.
However, the tax credits that result from the Company’s investments
in such partnerships are generally subject to a fifteen year recapture
period should a partnership fail to comply with the respective
government regulations. At December 31, 2003, the Company’s
maximum exposure to loss of its investments in such partnerships
was $74 million, including $39 million of unfunded commitments.
Management currently estimates that no material losses are
probable as a result of the Company’s involvement with such entities.
In accordance with the new accounting provisions for variable interest

entities, the partnership entities are not included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Securitizations

In December 2003, the Company securitized approximately $441
million of one-to-four family residential mortgage loans in a guaranteed
mortgage securitization with FNMA. The Company recognized no
gain or loss on the transaction as it retained all of the resulting
securities and allocated $6 million of the carrying value of the loans to
capitalized servicing assets. All of the resulting securities were classified
as investment securities available for sale. The Company expects no
credit-related losses on the retained securities as a result of the
guarantee by FNMA.

In November 2003, the Company transferred approximately
$838 million of one-to-four family residential mortgage loans to
Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company Mortgage Trust 2003-1
(“M&T 2003 Trust”), a qualified special purpose trust, in a non-
recourse securitization transaction. The Company received $112
million in cash and retained approximately 87% of the resulting
securities in exchange for the loans. The Company realized a $1
million gain on the transaction and allocated $715 million and $11
million of the carrying value of the loans to the retained securities and
to capitalized servicing assets, respectively. All of the retained
securities were classified as investment securities available for sale.

In November 2002, the Company transferred approximately
$1.1 billion of one-to-four family residential mortgage loans to
Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company Mortgage Trust 2002-1
(“M&T 2002 Trust”), a qualified special purpose trust, in a non-
recourse securitization transaction, similar to the transaction described
in the previous paragraph. The Company received $140 million in
cash and retained approximately 88% of the resulting securities in
exchange for the loans. The Company realized a $5 million gain on
the transaction and allocated $977 million and $7 million of the
carrying value of the loans to the retained securities and to capitalized
servicing assets, respectively. All of the retained securities were
classified as investment securities available for sale.

As qualified special purpose trusts, neither M&I' 2003 Trust nor
M&T 2002 Trust are included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. Because the transactions were non-recourse, the Company’s
maximum exposure to loss as a result of its association with the trusts
is limited to realizing the carrying value of the retained securities and
servicing rights. The combined outstanding principal amount of
mortgage-backed securities issued by M&I' 2003 Trust and M&T' 2002
Trust at December 31, 2003 was $1.4 billion. The outstanding
principal amount of mortgage-backed securities issued by M&T 2002
Trust at December 31, 2002 was $1.1 billion. The principal amount
of such securities held by the Company was $1.2 billion and $937
million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. At December
31, 2003 and 2002, loans of the trusts that were 30 or more days
delinquent totaled $17 million and $11 million, respectively. Credit
losses, net of recoveries, for the trusts in 2003 and 2002 were
insignificant. The Company did not repurchase any delinquent or
foreclosed loans from the trusts in 2003 or 2002. Certain cash flows
between the Company and the two trusts were as follows:

Year ended December 31
In thousands 2003 2002

Principal and interest payments
$508,304 47,055
Servicing fees received . . . . .. ... 2,531 355

on retained securities. . . ... ... ...

A summary of the fair values of retained subordinated interests
resulting from the Company’s residential mortgage loan securitization
activities follows. Although the estimated fair values of the retained
subordinated interests were obtained from independent pricing
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sources, the Company has modeled the sensitivity of such fair values to
changes in certain assumptions as summarized in the table below.
These calculated sensitivities are hypothetical and actual changes in the
fair value may differ significantly from the amounts presented herein.
The effect of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair values is
calculated without changing any other assumption. In reality, changes
in one factor may result in changes in another which may magnify or
counteract the sensitivities. The changes in assumptions are presumed
to be instantaneous. The hypothetical effect of adverse changes on the
Company’s retained capitalized servicing assets at December 31, 2003
is included in note 7.

Weighted- ~ Weighted- Annual
average average  expected
Fair  prepayment discount credit
Dollars in thousands value speed rate defaults
Retained subordinated
interests:
As of securitization
date .. ....... $91,705 23.81% 7.68% .09%
As of December 31,
2003. ... .. ... 86,589 9.81% 7.67% .08%
Impact on fair value
of 10% adverse
change. . ... .. (82) (3,441) (269)
Impact on fair value
of 20% adverse
change. . ... .. (162) (6,668) (536)

The subordinated retained securities do not have pro rata
participation in loan principal prepayments for the first seven years
of the securitization. The assumed weighted-average discount rate is
168 basis points (hundredths of one percent) higher than the
weighted-average coupon of the underlying mortgage loans at
December 31, 2003.

19. Fair value of financial instruments

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments,” requires disclosure of the estimated fair value of
financial instruments. Fair value is generally defined as the price a
willing buyer and a willing seller would exchange for a financial
instrument in other than a distressed sale situation.

With the exception of marketable securities, certain oft-balance
sheet financial instruments and one-to-four family residential mortgage
loans originated for sale, the Company’s financial instruments are not
readily marketable and market prices do not exist. The Company, in
attempting to comply with the provisions of SFAS No. 107, has not
attempted to market its financial instruments to potential buyers, if any
exist. Since negotiated prices in illiquid markets depend greatly upon
the then present motivations of the buyer and seller, it is reasonable to
assume that actual sales prices could vary widely from any estimate of
fair value made without the benefit of negotiations. Additionally,
changes in market interest rates can dramatically impact the value of
financial instruments in a short period of time.

The estimated fair values of investments in readily marketable
debt and equity securities were calculated based on quoted market
prices at the respective year-end. In determining amounts to present
for other financial instruments, the Company generally used
calculations based upon discounted cash flows of the related financial
instruments or assigned some other amount as required by SFAS No.
107. Additional information about the assumptions and calculations
utilized is presented below.

The carrying amounts and calculated estimates for financial
instrument assets (liabilities) are presented in the following table.
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In thousands

Carrying amount

Calculated estimate

December 31, 2003
Financial assets:

Cash and due from banks . . . . .. $ 1,877,494 1,877,494
Money-market assets . . . ... ... 250,315 250,315
Investment securities . . . . . .. .. 7,259,150 7,262,331
Commercial loans and leases. . . . . 9,217,371 9,199,975
Commercial real estate loans. . . . . 12,371,064 12,515,272
Residential real estate loans . . . . . 3,081,440 3,089,178
Consumer loans and leases. . . . . . 11,102,560 11,176,384
Allowance for credit losses . . . . . . (614,058) (614,058)
Accrued interest receivable. . . . . . 178,809 178,809
Financial liabilities:
Noninterest-bearing deposits . . . . $ (8,411,296) (8,411,2906)
Savings deposits and
NOW accounts. . . . .. ...... (15,856,948) (15,856,948)
Time deposits . . . ... ....... (6,637,249) (6,773,092)
Deposits at foreign office. . . . . . . (2,209,451) (2,209,451)
Short-term borrowings . . . .. .. (4,442,2406) (4,442,246)
Long-term borrowings . . . . . . .. (5,535,425) (5,732,682)
Accrued interest payable . . . .. .. (93,692) (93,692)
Trading account liabilities . . . . . . (137,665) (137,665)
Other financial instruments:
Commitments to originate
real estate loans forsale. . . . . . . $ 4,868 4,868
Commitments to sell
real estate loans . . . ... ... .. (8,427) (8,427)
Other credit-related commitments . (28,180) (28,180)
Interest rate swap agreements used for
interest rate risk management . . . (847) (847)
December 31, 2002
Financial assets:
Cash and due from banks . . .. .. $ 963,772 963,772
Money-market assets . . . ... ... 379,843 379,843
Investment securities . . . . . . . .. 3,955,150 3,956,646
Commercial loans and leases. . . . . 5,322,590 5,316,894
Commercial real estate loans. . . . . 9,727,743 9,853,932
Residential real estate loans . . . . . 3,247,716 3,301,880
Consumer loans and leases. . . . . . 7,429,735 7,514,362
Allowance for credit losses . . . . . . (436,472) (436,472)
Accrued interest receivable. . . . . . 143,126 143,126
Financial liabilities:
Noninterest-bearing deposits . . . . $ (4,072,085) (4,072,085)
Savings deposits and
NOW accounts. . . ... ...... (10,185,738) (10,185,738)
Time deposits . . . . ... ... ... (6,246,384) (6,341,3606)
Deposits at foreign office. . . . . . . (1,160,716) (1,160,716)
Short-term borrowings . . ... .. (3,429,414) (3,429,414)
Long-term borrowings . . . . . . .. (4,497,374) (4,692,771)
Accrued interest payable . . . . . .. (88,922) (88,922)
Trading account liabilities . . . . . . (34,834) (34,834)
Other financial instruments:
Commitments to originate
real estate loans forsale. . . . . . . $ 10,075 10,075
Commitments to sell
real estate loans . . ... ... ... (15,139) (15,139)
Other credit-related commitments . (12,4806) (12,4806)
Interest rate swap agreements used for
interest rate risk management . . . 7,071 7,071



The following assumptions and methods or calculations were used in
determining the disclosed value of financial instruments.

Cash and due from banks, money-market assets, shovt-term borrowings,
accrued interest veceivable, accrued interest payable and trading
account linbilities

Due to the nature of cash and due from banks and the near maturity
of money-market assets, short-term borrowings, accrued interest
receivable, accrued interest payable and trading account liabilities, the
Company estimated that the carrying amount of such instruments
approximated estimated fair value.

Investment securities

Estimated fair values of investments in readily marketable debt and
equity securities were based on quoted market prices. Investment
securities that were not readily marketable were assigned amounts
based on estimates provided by brokers, discounted calculations of
projected cash flows or, in the case of other investment securities,
which include capital stock of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York
and the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, at an amount equal
to the carrying amount.

Loans and leases

In general, discount rates used to calculate values for loan products
were based on the Company’s pricing at the respective year end. A
higher discount rate was assumed with respect to estimated cash flows
associated with nonaccrual loans. The allowance for credit losses
represents the Company’s assessment of the overall level of credit
losses inherent in the portfolio as of the respective year end and may
not be indicative of the credit-related discount that a purchaser of the
Company’s loans and leases would seek.

Deposits

SFAS No. 107 requires that the estimated fair value ascribed to
noninterest-bearing deposits, savings deposits and NOW accounts be
established at carrying value because of the customers’ ability to
withdraw funds immediately. Time deposit accounts are required to be
revalued based upon prevailing market interest rates for similar maturity
instruments. As a result, amounts assigned to time deposits were based
on discounted cash flow calculations using prevailing market interest
rates for deposits with comparable remaining terms to maturity.

The Company believes that deposit accounts have a value
greater than that prescribed by SFAS No. 107. The Company feels,
however, that the value associated with these deposits is greatly
influenced by characteristics of the buyer, such as the ability to reduce
the costs of servicing the deposits and deposit attrition which often
occurs following an acquisition. Accordingly, estimating the fair value
of deposits with any degree of certainty is not practical.

Long-term borrowings

The amounts assigned to long-term borrowings were based on
quoted market prices, when available, or were based on discounted
cash flow calculations using prevailing market interest rates for
borrowings of similar terms.

Trading account assets and linbilities

Trading account assets and liabilities are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at estimated fair value which, in general, is based on
quoted market prices. Trading account assets are included in money-
market assets and totaled $214,833,000 and $51,628,000 at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Trading account
liabilities are included in other liabilities and totaled $137,665,000
and $34,834,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Commatments to originate real estate loans for sale and commitments
to sell real estate loans

As described in note 17, the Company enters into various
commitments to originate real estate loans for sale and commitments
to sell real estate loans. Such commitments are considered to be
derivative financial instruments and, therefore, are carried at estimated
fair value on the consolidated balance sheet. The estimated fair values
of such commitments were generally calculated based on quoted
market prices for commitments to sell real estate loans to certain
government-sponsored entities and other parties.

Interest rate swap agreements used for intevest vate visk management

The estimated fair value of interest rate swap agreements used for
interest rate risk management represents the amount the Company
would have expected to receive or pay to terminate such agreements.

Other commaitments and contingencies

As described in note 20, in the normal course of business, various
commitments and contingent liabilities are outstanding, such as loan
commitments, credit guarantees and letters of credit. The Company’s
pricing of such financial instruments is based largely on credit quality
and relationship, probability of funding and other requirements.
Loan commitments often have fixed expiration dates and contain
termination and other clauses which provide for relief from funding
in the event of significant deterioration in the credit quality of the
customer. The rates and terms of the Company’s loan commitments,
credit guarantees and letters of credit are competitive with other
financial institutions operating in markets served by the Company.
The Company believes that the carrying amounts, which are included
in other liabilities, are reasonable estimates of the fair value of these
financial instruments.

The Company does not believe that the estimated information
presented herein is representative of the earnings power or value of
the Company. The preceding analysis, which is inherently limited in
depicting fair value, also does not consider any value associated with
existing customer relationships nor the ability of the Company to
create value through loan origination, deposit gathering or fee
generating activities.

Many of the estimates presented herein are based upon the use
of highly subjective information and assumptions and, accordingly,
the results may not be precise. Management believes that fair value
estimates may not be comparable between financial institutions due
to the wide range of permitted valuation techniques and numerous
estimates which must be made. Furthermore, since the disclosed
fair value amounts were estimated as of the balance sheet date, the
amounts actually realized or paid upon maturity or settlement of the
various financial instruments could be significantly different.

20. Commitments and contingencies

In the normal course of business, various commitments and
contingent liabilities are outstanding. The following table presents the
Company’s significant commitments. Certain of these commitments
are not included in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.
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In thousands 2003 2002

In thousands

December 31
Commitments to extend credit
Home equity lines of credit. . . . ... .. $3,747,663 2,056,259
Commercial real estate loans
tobesold .. ... ... ... ... 70,747 -
Other commercial real estate
and construction . . . . ... ... ... 730,485 549,100
Residential real estate loans
tobesold . . ... ... ... ... ... 458,863 825,330
Other residential real estate . . . . ... .. 639,852 676,650
Commercial and other. . . ... ... ... 6,786,997 2,250,516
Standby letters of credit. . . . .. ... ... 3,056,611 833,715

Commercial letters of credit . . . . ... .. 69,387 25,556
Financial guarantees and
indemnification contracts. . . . . ... .. 1,061,691

895,808

121,312
Commitments to sell real estate loans . . . . 1,453,966

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to
customers, generally having fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses that may require payment of a fee. Standby and commercial
letters of credit are conditional commitments issued to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. Standby letters of credit
generally are contingent upon the failure of the customer to perform
according to the terms of the underlying contract with the third party,
whereas commerecial letters of credit are issued to facilitate commerce
and typically result in the commitment being funded when the
underlying transaction is consummated between the customer and
third party. The credit risk associated with commitments to extend
credit and standby and commercial letters of credit is essentially the
same as that involved with extending loans to customers and is subject
to normal credit policies. Collateral may be obtained based on
management’s assessment of the customer’s creditworthiness.

Financial guarantees and indemnification contracts are
oftentimes similar to standby letters of credit and include mandatory
purchase agreements issued to ensure that customer obligations are
fulfilled, recourse obligations associated with sold loans, and other
guarantees of customer performance or compliance with designated
rules and regulations. Included in loans sold with recourse are loans
sold in conjunction with the Company’s involvement in the FNMA
DUS program. Under this program, the Company’s maximum credit
risk associated with loans sold with recourse is equal to one-third of
cach loan’s original principal balance which, at December 31, 2003,
totaled $825 million.

Since many loan commitments, standby letters of credit, and
guarantees and indemnification contracts expire without being funded
in whole or in part, the contract amounts are not necessarily
indicative of future cash flows.

The Company utilizes commitments to sell real estate loans to
hedge exposure to changes in the fair value of real estate loans held
for sale. Such commitments are considered derivatives in accordance
with SFAS No. 133 and along with commitments to originate real
estate loans to be held for sale and hedged real estate loans held for
sale are now generally recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at
estimated fair market value. Additional information about such
derivative financial instruments is included in note 17.

The Company occupies certain banking offices and uses certain
equipment under noncancellable operating lease agreements expiring
at various dates over the next 45 years. Minimum lease payments
under noncancellable operating leases are summarized in the
following table.
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Year ending December 31:
2004 . .. $ 47,097
2005 . . . 44,329
2006 . ... 34,427
2007 ..o 26,210
2008 . . 21,761
Lateryears. . . . ... ... ... 94,312
$268,136

The Company entered an agreement in 2003 with the Baltimore
Ravens of the National Football League whereby the Company
obtained the naming rights to a football stadium in Baltimore,
Maryland for a fifteen year term. Under the agreement, the Company
paid $3 million in 2003 and is obligated to pay $3 million in 2004,
$5 million per year from 2005 through 2013, and $6 million per year
from 2014 through 2017.

M&T and its subsidiaries are subject in the normal course of
business to various pending and threatened legal proceedings in
which claims for monetary damages are asserted. Management, after
consultation with legal counsel, does not anticipate that the aggregate
ultimate liability, if any, arising out of litigation pending against M&T
or its subsidiaries will be material to the Company’s consolidated
financial position, but at the present time is not in a position to
determine whether such litigation will have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s consolidated results of operations in any future
reporting period.

21. Segment information

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures
About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,”
reportable segments have been determined based upon the Company’s
internal profitability reporting system, which is organized by strategic
business units. Certain strategic business units have been combined for
segment information reporting purposes where the nature of the
products and services, the type of customer and the distribution of
those products and services are similar. The reportable segments are
Commercial Banking, Commercial Real Estate, Discretionary
Portfolio, Residential Mortgage Banking and Retail Banking.

The financial information of the Company’s segments has been
compiled utilizing the accounting policies described in note 1 with
certain exceptions. The more significant of these exceptions are
described herein. The Company allocates interest income or interest
expense using a methodology that charges users of funds (assets)
interest expense and credits providers of funds (liabilities) with
income based on the maturity, prepayment and/or repricing
characteristics of the assets and liabilities. The net effect of this
allocation is recorded in the “All Other” category. A provision for
credit losses is allocated to segments in an amount based largely on
actual net charge-offs incurred by the segment during the period plus
or minus an amount necessary to adjust the segment’s allowance for
credit losses due to changes in loan balances. In contrast, the level of
the consolidated provision for credit losses is determined using the
methodologies described in note 1 to assess the overall adequacy of
the allowance for credit losses. Indirect fixed and variable expenses
incurred by certain centralized support areas are allocated to segments
based on actual usage (for example, volume measurements) and other
criteria. Certain types of administrative expenses and bankwide
expense accruals (including amortization of goodwill and core deposit
and other intangible assets) are generally not allocated to segments.
Income taxes are allocated to segments based on the Company’s
marginal statutory tax rate adjusted for any tax-exempt income or
non-deductible expenses. Equity is allocated to the segments based



Residential

Commercial Commercial ~ Discretionary Mortgage Retail All
In thousands, except asset data Banking'®  Real Estate Portfolio Banking Banking Other' Total
For the year ended December 31, 2003
Net interest income™ . . . ... ... ... .. $307,432 212,396 97,065 97,715 779,711 104,436 1,598,755
Noninterest income . . . .. .......... 115,037 30,553 47,168 202,924 309,618 125,795 831,095
422,469 242,949 144,233 300,639 1,089,329 230,231 2,429,850
Provision for credit losses . . . . ... ..... 18,661 974 1,731 967 81,509 27,158 131,000
Amortization of goodwill . . .. ... ... - - - - - - -
Amortization of core deposit and
other intangible assets . . . . . ... ... .. - - - - - 78,152 78,152
Depreciation and other amortization. . . . . . 392 2,998 5,495 44,088 24938 35,599 113,510
Other noninterest cxpcnsc‘b> .......... 107,118 33,649 20,686 147,601 659,382 288,082 1,256,518
Income (loss) before taxes. . . ... ...... 296,298 205,328 116,321 107,983 323,500 (198,760) 850,670
Income tax expense (benefit) . . . . ... ... 121,763 86,444 29,851 41,817 131,826 (134,973) 276,728
Net income (loss). . . .. ... ......... $174,535 118,884 86,470 66,166 191,674 (63,787) 573,942
Average total assets (in millions) . . . . .. .. $ 9,693 7,191 8,821 1,862 13,166 4,616 45,349
Capital expenditures (in millions). . . . .. .. $ - - - 2 12 18 32
For the year ended December 31, 2002
Net interest income™ . .. ... ... ... .. $214,018 174,200 68,205 85,869 599,261 106,032 1,247,585
Noninterest income . . . . ... ........ 50,506 7,262 38,293 168,047 189,564 58,259 511,931
264,524 181,462 106,498 253,916 788,825 164,291 1,759,516
Provision for credit losses . . . . ... ... .. 47,037 495 572 777 66,414 6,705 122,000
Amortization of goodwill . . . ... ... ... - - - - - - -
Amortization of core deposit and
other intangible assets . . . . . ... ... .. - - - - - 51,484 51,484
Depreciation and other amortization. . . . . . 412 164 3,230 37,937 18,536 18,024 78,303
Other noninterest expense. . . . . ... .. .. 64,065 20,930 17,872 154211 435,119 139,627 831,824
Income (loss) before taxes. . . . ... ... .. 153,010 159,873 84,824 60,991 268,756 (51,549) 675,905
Income tax expense (benefit) . . .. ... ... 63,420 67,541 20,476 23,244 109,590 (65,118) 219,153
Netincome . . .................. $ 89,590 92,332 64,348 37,747 159,166 13,569 456,752
Average total assets (in millions) . . . . .. .. $ 6,315 6,234 7,072 1,618 9,059 1,637 31,935
Capital expenditures (in millions). . . . .. .. $ - - - 1 12 4 17
For the year ended December 31, 2001
Net interest income® . . .. ... ... .. .. $227.832 163,678 50,230 59,161 642,979 14,408 1,158,288
Noninterest income . . . ... ......... 44913 6,139 38,372 151,478 172,515 64,009 477 426
272,745 169,817 88,602 210,639 815,494 78,417 1,635,714
Provision for credit losses . . . ... ... ... 29,902 (150) 3,057 46 51,194 19,451 103,500
Amortization of goodwill . . . ... ... - - - - - 61,820 61,820
Amortization of core deposit and
other intangible assets . . . . . ... ... .. - - - - - 59,816 59,816
Depreciation and other amortization. . . . . . 425 243 3,154 29,746 20,052 18,688 72,308
Other noninterest expense®™ . . .. ... ... 61,027 19,744 16,614 114,317 410,360 164,569 786,631
Income (loss) before taxes. . . ... ...... 181,391 149,980 65,777 66,530 333,888 (245,927) 551,639
Income tax expense (benefit) . . . . ... ... 74,745 63,326 12,368 23,625 136,284 (111,797) 198,551
Net income (loss). . . .. ............ $106,646 86,654 53,409 42,905 197,604 (134,130) 353,088
Average total assets (in millions) . . .. .. .. $ 6,371 5,961 7,359 1,361 8,015 1,775 30,842
Capital expenditures (in millions). . . . . . . . $ - - - 2 6 16 24

@) Net interest income is the diffevence between actual taxable-equivalent interest earned on assets and interest paid on linbilities by a scgment and a
Sfunding charge (credit) based on the Company’s internal funds transfer pricing methodology. Segments ave charged a cost to fund any assets (eg. loans)
and ave paid o funding credit for any funds provided (eg. deposits). The taxable-equivalent adjustment aggregated $16,313,000 in 2003,
$14,049,000 in 2002 and $17,513,000 in 2001 and is eliminated in “All Other” net interest income and income tax expense (benefit).

® Including the impact in the “All Other” category of the merger-related expenses described in note 2.

) During 2003, a strategic business unit which had previously been included in the “All Other” category was moved to the Commercinl Banking
segment for internal profitability reporting purposes. As o vesult, approximately $27 million of loans were transferred from the “All Other” category
to the Commercial Banking segment. This strategic business unit contributed net losses of $12 million and $1 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Financial information for 2002 and 2001 has been veclassified to conform with curvent year presentation.
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on regulatory capital requirements and in proportion to an assessment
of the inherent risks associated with the business of the segment
(including interest, credit and operating risk).

The management accounting policies and processes utilized in
compiling segment financial information are highly subjective and,
unlike financial accounting, are not based on authoritative guidance
similar to generally accepted accounting principles. As a result,
reported segment results are not necessarily comparable with similar
information reported by other financial institutions. Furthermore,
changes in management structure or allocation methodologies and
procedures may result in changes in reported segment financial data.
Information about the Company’s segments is presented in the
accompanying table.

The Commercial Banking segment provides a wide range of
credit products and banking services to middle-market and large
commercial customers, largely within the markets the Company serves.
Among the services provided by this segment are commercial lending
and leasing, letters of credit, deposit products and cash management
services. The Commercial Real Estate segment provides credit services
which are secured by various types of multifamily residential and
commercial real estate and deposit services to its customers. Activities
of this segment also include the origination, sales and servicing of
commercial real estate loans through the FNMA DUS program. The
Discretionary Portfolio segment includes securities, residential mortgage
loans and other assets; short-term and long-term borrowed funds;
brokered certificates of deposit and interest rate swap agreements
related thereto; and offshore branch deposits. This segment also
provides services to commercial customers and consumers which
include foreign exchange, securities trading and municipal bond
underwriting and sales. The Residential Mortgage Banking segment
originates and services residential mortgage loans for consumers and
sells substantially all of those loans in the secondary market to investors
or to bank subsidiaries of M&T'. Residential mortgage loans held for
sale are included in the Residential Mortgage Banking segment.

The Retail Banking segment offers a variety of services to consumers
and small businesses through several delivery channels that include
traditional and “in-store” banking offices, automated teller machines,
telephone banking and internet banking. The “All Other” category
includes other operating activities of the Company that are not directly
attributable to the reported segments as determined in accordance
with SFAS No. 131, the difference between the provision for credit
losses and the calculated provision allocated to the reportable segments,
goodwill and core deposit and other intangible assets resulting from
acquisitions of financial institutions, the net impact of the Company’s
internal funds transfer pricing methodology, eliminations of
transactions between reportable segments, certain nonrecurring
transactions, the residual effects of unallocated support systems and
general and administrative expenses, and the impact of interest rate
risk management strategies. The amount of intersegment activity
eliminated in arriving at consolidated totals was included in the

“All Other” category as follows:

Year ended December 31

In thousands 2003 2002 2001

Revenues . . .. ........ $(87,309) (70,229) (66,450)
Expenses . .. ......... (18,307) (19,3506) (20,578)
Income taxes (benefit). . . . . (28,077) (20,700) (18,665)
Net income (loss) . . ... .. (40,925) (30,173) (27,207)

The Company conducts substantially all of its operations in the
United States. There are no transactions with a single customer that
in the aggregate result in revenues that exceed ten percent of
consolidated total revenues.
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22. Regulatory matters

Payment of dividends by M&I”s banking subsidiaries is restricted by
various legal and regulatory limitations. Dividends from any banking
subsidiary to M&T' are limited by the amount of earnings of the
banking subsidiary in the current year and the preceding two years.
For purposes of this test, at December 31, 2003, approximately
$695,873,000 was available for payment of dividends to M&T" from
banking subsidiaries without prior regulatory approval.

Banking regulations prohibit extensions of credit by the subsidiary
banks to M&T unless appropriately secured by assets. Securities of
affiliates are not eligible as collateral for this purpose.

The bank subsidiaries are required to maintain noninterest-
carning reserves against certain deposit liabilities. During the
maintenance periods that included December 31, 2003 and 2002,
cash and due from banks included a daily average of $501,031,000
and $311,810,000, respectively, for such purpose.

Federal regulators have adopted capital adequacy guidelines for
bank holding companies and banks. Failure to meet minimum capital
requirements can result in certain mandatory, and possibly additional
discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have
a material effect on the Company’s financial statements. Under the
capital adequacy guidelines, the so-called “Tier 1 capital” and “Total
capital” as a percentage of risk-weighted assets and certain oft-balance
sheet financial instruments must be at least 4% and 8%, respectively.
In addition to these risk-based measures, regulators also require
banking institutions that meet certain qualitative criteria to maintain
a minimum “leverage” ratio of “Tier 1 capital” to average total assets,
adjusted for goodwill and certain other items, of at least 3% to be
considered adequately capitalized. As of December 31, 2003, M&T and
cach of its banking subsidiaries exceeded all applicable capital adequacy
requirements. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the most recent
notifications from federal regulators categorized each of M&I”s bank
subsidiaries as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action. To be considered well capitalized, a banking
institution must maintain Tier 1 risk-based capital, total risk-based
capital and leverage ratios of at least 6%, 10% and 5%, respectively.
Management is unaware of any conditions or events since the latest
notifications from federal regulators that have changed the capital
adequacy category of M&I”s bank subsidiaries.

The capital ratios and amounts of the Company and its banking
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 are presented below:

M&T
M&T M&T Bank,
Dollars in thousands (Consolidated) Bank NA.
December 31, 2003:
Tier 1 capital
Amount . . ... ..... $3,205,649 3,116,834 85,209
Ratio™ . .. ........ 7.30% 7.18% 26.60%
Minimum required
amount®™ . . . ... 1,755,845 1,735,288 12,814
Total capital
Amount . . ........ 4,916,825 4,779,265 88,896
Ratio™ . . . ... ..... 11.20% 11.02% 27.75%
Minimum required
amount®™. .. ... ... 3,511,689 3,470,575 25,627
Leverage
Amount . . ........ 3,205,649 3,116,834 85,209
Ratio . .. ........ 6.98% 6.87% 18.17%
Minimum required
amount®™ . . ... ... 1,378,201 1,360,134 14,065



M&T
M&T M&T Bank,
Dollars in thousands (Consolidated) Bank NA.
(continued)
December 31, 2002:
Tier 1 capital
Amount . .. ... .... $2,249,795 2,139,408 78,669
Ratio® . . ... ...... 8.02% 7.74% 19.73%
Minimum required
amount®™ . . . ... .. 1,122,164 1,106,125 15,949
Total capital
Amount . ... ...... 3,141,065 3,025,683 82,310
Ratio® . . ... ...... 11.20% 10.94% 20.64%
Minimum required
amount®™ . . . ... 2244328 2212250 31,897
Leverage
Amount . . ... ..... 2,249,795 2,139,408 78,669
Ratio . ... ....... 7.05% 6.81% 12.09%
Minimum required
amount™. . .. ... .. 957,255 941917 19,514

@ The ratio of capital to visk-weighted assets, as defined by requlntion.

O Minimum amount of capital to be considered adequately capitalized,
as defined by regulation.

© The ratio of capital to average assets, as defined by regulation.

23. Relationship of M&T' and AIB

As a result of M&I’s acquisition of Allfirst (see note 2), AIB acquired
approximately 22.5% of the issued and outstanding shares of M&T'
common stock on April 1, 2003. While AIB maintains a significant
ownership in M&T, the Agreement and Plan of Reorganization by
and among M&T, AIB and Allfirst (“Reorganization Agreement”)
includes several provisions related to the corporate governance of
M&T that provide AIB with representation on the M&I" and M&T'
Bank boards of directors and key board committees and certain
protections of its rights as a substantial M&T shareholder. In addition,
AIB has rights that will facilitate its ability to maintain its
proportionate ownership position in M&T.

With respect to AIB’s right to have representation on the M&T'
and M&T Bank boards of directors and key board committees, for as
long as AIB holds at least 15% of M&TI’s outstanding common stock,
AIB is entitled to designate four individuals, reasonably acceptable to
M&T, on both the M&T" and M&T Bank boards of directors. In
addition, one of the AIB designees to the M&T board of directors will
serve on each of the Executive, Nomination and Compensation, and
Audit committees. Also, as long as AIB holds at least 15% of M&T’s
outstanding common stock, neither the M&T nor the M&I' Bank
board of directors may consist of more than 28 directors without the
consent of the M&T directors designated by AIB. AIB will continue
to enjoy these rights if its holdings of M&I' common stock drop
below 15%, but not below 12%, so long as AIB restores its ownership
percentage to 15% within one year. In the event that AIB holds at
least 10%, but less than 15%, of M&I’s outstanding common stock,
AIB will be entitled to designate at least two individuals on both the
M&T and M&T Bank boards of directors and, in the event that AIB
holds at least 5%, but less than 10%, of M&I”’s outstanding common
stock, AIB will be entitled to designate one individual on both the
M&T and M&T Bank boards of directors. M&T also has the right to
appoint one representative to the AIB board while AIB remains a
significant shareholder.

There are several other corporate governance provisions that
serve to protect AIB’s rights as a substantial M&T sharcholder and

are embodied in M&I”s certificate of incorporation and bylaws, which
were both amended in connection with the Allfirst acquisition to
incorporate such provisions. These protections include an effective
consent right in connection with certain actions by M&T, such as
amending M&T’s certificate of incorporation or bylaws in a manner
inconsistent with AIB’s rights, engaging in activities not permissible
for a bank holding company or adopting any shareholder rights
plan or other measures intended to prevent or delay any transaction
involving a change in control of M&T. AIB has the right to limit,
with the agreement of at least one non-AIB designee on the M&T
board of directors, other actions by M&T, such as reducing M&I’s
cash dividend policy such that the ratio of cash dividends to net
income is less than 15%, acquisitions and dispositions of significant
amounts of assets, and the appointment or election of the chairman
of the board of directors or the chief executive officer of M&I'. The
protective provisions described above will cease to be applicable when
AIB no longer owns at least 15% of M&T outstanding common stock,
calculated as described in the Reorganization Agreement.

M&T assumed from Allfirst two floating rate notes payable to
AIB. A $100 million floating rate note payable to AIB was repaid by
M&T on June 3, 2003. An additional $200 million floating rate note
payable to AIB was repaid by M&T" on September 30, 2003. Interest
expense related to the notes discussed above aggregated $2 million
in 2003.

24. Parent company financial statements

Condensed Balance Sheet
December 31

In thousands 2003 2002
Assets
Cash
In subsidiary bank . ... ... ... .. .. $ 2,129 6,629
Other. . ... ... ... ... ... .. 1 1
Totalcash . . . ............... 2,130 6,630
Due from consolidated subsidiaries
Banks
Money-market assets . . . .. ... ... 59,639 78,989
Note receivable . . . ... ... ... .. 200,000 -
Current income tax receivable. . . . . . . 2,347 2,139
Other. .. ... ... ... ... 439 -
Other. . ... ... ... ... . . - 181

Total due from consolidated subsidiaries . . 262,425 81,309

Investments in consolidated subsidiaries

Banks and bank holding company . . . . . 6,398,737 3,363,680
Other. . ... ... ... . ... . ... 32,603 7,734
Investments in unconsolidated
subsidiaries (note 18) . . . ... ... ... 30,228 -
Otherassets. . .. ... ............ 181,404 13,019
Totalassets . . . . ............. $6,907,527 3,472,372
Liabilities
Due to consolidated subsidiaries
Banks. . . ... ... oL $ 384 1
Other. .. ...... ... ... ...... 12,349 6,016
Total due to consolidated subsidiaries . . 12,733 6,017
Accrued expenses and other liabilities . . . . 52,430 143
Long-term borrowings . . ... ....... 1,125,154 257,733
Total liabilities. . . . ... ...... ... 1,190,317 263,893
Stockholders’ equity . . . . ... ... ... 5,717,210 3,208,479
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . . $6,907,527 3,472,372
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Condensed Statement of Income

Year ended December 31

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31

In thousands, except per shave 2003 2002 2001 In thousands 2003 2002 2001
Income Cash flows from
Dividends from bank and operating activities
bank holding company Netincome. . ......... $ 573,942 456,752 353,088
subsidiaries . . .. ... ... $ 65,000 340,000 362,000 Adjustments to reconcile
Other income. . . .. ... .. 18,601 1,545 3,721 net income to net
Total income . . .. ... .. 83,601 341,545 365,721 cash provided by
Expense operating activities
Interest on short-term Equity in undistributed
borrowings . . ... ... .. 25 - 75 income of subsidiaries . . (533,898)  (131,069) (4,158)
Interest on long-term Provision for deferred
borrowings . . ... ... .. 51,971 21,516 21,516 income taxes. . . . .. .. 3,524 (873) 794
Other expense . . . ... ... 7,877 3,242 3,438 Net change in accrued
Total expense. . . . ... .. 59,873 24,758 25,029 income and expense . . . 8,479 19,297 37,712
Income before Net cash provided by
income taxes and equity operating activities . . . . 52,047 344,107 387,436
in undistributed Cash flows from
income of subsidiaries . . . . 23,728 316,787 340,692 investing activities
Income tax credits . . . . . . . 16,316 8,896 8,238 Proceeds from sales of
Income before equity in investment securities . . . . . 70,065 - -
undistributed income of Proceeds from maturities of
subsidiarvies . . . ... ... .. 40,044 325,683 348,930 investment securities . . . . . 14,434 - -
Equity in undistributed Purchases of
income of subsidiaries investment securities . . . . . (1,369) - (399)
Net income of subsidiaries . . 598,898 471,069 366,158 Net decrease in loans
Less: dividends received. . . . (65,000)  (340,000) (362,000) to affiliates. . . . . . .. ... 158,000 _ -
Equity in undistributed Acquisitions, net of
income of subsidiaries . . . . 533,898 131,069 4,158 cash acquired . . . ... ... 163,046 _ _
Net income . . . . ... .... $573,942 456,752 353,088 Other, net. . . .. ....... 3,832 (17) 15
Net income per common share Net cash provided (used)
Basic. . ... ... $ 508 4.94 3.69 by investing activities . . . 408,008 (17) (384)
Diluted. . . .. ........ 4.95 4.78 3.58 Cash flows from
financing activities
Net decrease in short-term
borrowings . . ... ... .. (100,000) - -
Net decrease in long-term
borrowings . . ... ... .. (300,000) - -
Purchases of treasury stock . . - (240,314) (323,744)
Dividends paid — common . . (135,423) (96,858) (95,872)
Other,net. . . .. ... .. .. 51,518 46,145 49,154
Net cash used
by financing activities. . . (483,905)  (291,027) (370,462)
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents . . . . . (23,850) 53,063 16,590
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year. . . . . . . 85,619 32,556 15,966
Cash and cash equivalents at
endofyear . . ........ 61,769 85,619 32,556
Supplemental disclosure of
cash flow information
Interest received during
theyear . .. ......... 14,401 2,079 1,727
Interest paid during
theyear . ... ........ 34,846 21,266 21,342
Income taxes received
during the year . . . . .. .. 32,720 25,676 43,201
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M&T BANK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Selected Consolidated Year-End Balances

In thousands 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Money-market assets
Interest-bearing deposits at banks . . . . . ... ... ... 13,194 7,856 4,341 3,102 1,092
Federal funds sold and resell agreements . . . . . ... .. 22,288 320,359 41,086 17,261 643,555
Trading account . . . . .. ... ... 214,833 51,628 38,929 37,431 641,114
Total money-market assets. . . . . .. .......... 250,315 379,843 84,356 57,794 1,285,761
Investment securities
U.S. Treasury and federal agencies . . .. ... ...... 3,398,547 1,209,180 1,448,397 1,984,347 737,586
Obligations of states and political subdivisions. . . . . . . 249,193 256,023 306,768 249425 79,189
Other . . .. ... 3,611,410 2489947  1,268972 1,076,081 1,083,747
Total investment securities. . . . . .. ... ....... 7,259,150 3,955,150 3,024,137 3,309,853 1,900,522
Loans and leases
Commercial, financial, leasing, etc. . . .. ... ... ... 9,406,399 5,399,738 5205834 5,171,959 3,697,058
Real estate — construction. . . . . ... ... 1,537,880 1,001,553 1,034,362 900,170 525,241
Real estate — mortgage . . . . . ..o 13,932,731 12,010,464 12,929,102 11,732,168 9,712,803
CONSUMET. . . . v vttt e e 11,160,588 7,525,187 6,226,170 5,166,017 3,637,759
Total loans and leases. . . . ... ............. 36,037,598 25,936,942 25,395,468 22,970,314 17,572,861
Unearned discount . . . . ... ... ... ... (265,163) (209,158)  (207,708)  (227,500)  (166,090)
Allowance for credit losses . . . ... ... ... ... ... (614,058) (436,472)  (425,008)  (374,703)  (316,165)
Loans and leases, net . . . .. ... ............ 35,158,377 25,291,312 24,762,752 22,368,111 17,090,606
Goodwill. . . ... ... 2,904,081 1,097,553 1,097,553 1,000,837 540,561
Core deposit and other intangible assets . . . .. ... ... 240,830 118,790 170,273 198,570 107,479
Real estate and other assets owned. . . . . ... ... .... 19,629 17,380 16,387 13,619 10,000
Totalassets . . ... ... 49,826,081 33,201,181 31,469,185 28,963,784 22,418,662
Noninterest-bearing deposits . . . . .. ... ... ...... 8,411,296 4,072,085 3,704,004 3,344 913 2,260,432
NOWaccounts . . . . .. vv v v iiiii e 1,738,427 1,029,060 930,400 873,472 583,471
Savings deposits . . . ... 14,118,521 9,156,678 7,980,065 6,105,689 5,198,681
Time deposits. . . . . . oo 6,637,249 6,246,384 8,188,036 9,604,088 7,088,345
Deposits at foreign office . . . ... ... ... ... ... 2,209,451 1,160,716 777,895 244511 242,691
Total deposits . . . ... ... 33,114,944 21,664,923 21,580,400 20,232,673 15,373,620
Short-term borrowings . . .. ... ... ... ... .. ... 4,442 246 3429414 3,045,830 2,072,824 2,554,159
Long-term borrowings . . ... ........ ... ..... 5,535,425 4497374  3461,769 3,414,516 1,775,133
Total liabilities . . . ... ... ... ... 44,108,871 29,992,702 28,510,745 26,248,971 20,612,069
Stockholders’ equity . . . . ... ... 5,717,210 3,208,479 2958440 2,714,813 1,806,593
Stockholders, Employees and Offices
Number at year-end 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Stockholders . . . . ... ... ..o 11,258 11,587 12,565 11,936 4991
Employees. . . ... ... 14,000 9,197 9,291 8,736 6,569
Offices . . . .. oo v 735 493 513 488 310
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M&T BANK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Earnings

In thousands 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Interest income
Loans and leases, including fees . . . ... .. ........ $1,897,701 1,670,412 1,892,507 1,579,701 1,323,262
Money-market assets
Depositsatbanks . . . ... ... o o oL 147 76 116 308 87
Federal funds sold and resell agreements . . . . . ... .. 1,875 4455 2,027 12,891 24,491
Trading account . . . .. ... ... ... 592 202 348 1,009 3,153
Investment securitics
Fully taxable . . . ... ... ... ... . ......... 210,968 148,221 182,767 165,811 118,741
Exempt from federal taxes . . . .. ........ ... .. 15,282 18,733 24120 13,064 8,897
Total interest income . . . . ... ... ... ... ... 2,126,565 1,842,099 2,101,885 1,772,784 1,478,631
Interest expense
NOWaccounts . . . . .. ovv vt i e 3,613 3,900 8,548 7,487 4,683
Savings deposits . . ... 102,190 107,281 134,454 132,225 121,888
Time deposits. . . . . . .. 159,700 237,001 453,940 445,666 367,889
Deposits at foreign office . . .. ... ... ... 14,991 8,460 11,264 14915 12,016
Short-term borrowings . . . .. ..... .. ... ... ... 49,004 52,723 124,810 172,466 104,911
Long-term borrowings . . . . ... ... ... ... 198,252 185,149 210,581 145,838 107,847
Total interest eXpense . . . . . . oo oo 527,810 594514 943,597 918,597 719,234
Net interest income. . . . . . .. .. ... ... ... 1,598,755 1,247,585 1,158,288 854,187 759,397
Provision for creditlosses . . . . ... ... ... ... . ... 131,000 122,000 103,500 38,000 44500
Net interest income after provision for credit losses . . . . . 1,467,755 1,125,585 1,054,788 816,187 714,897
Other income
Mortgage banking revenues. . . . . ... ... L. L. 149.105 116,408 102,699 63,168 71,819
Service charges on deposit accounts . . . . . ... ... ... 309,749 167,531 144,302 92,544 73,612
Trust inCOMe . . . . oo oo 114,620 60,030 64,395 45,165 40,751
Brokerage services income. . . . ... ... ... 51,184 43,261 39,349 32,795 27,140
Trading account and foreign exchange gains . . . . . . ... 15,989 2,860 4,462 2,351 315
Gain (loss) on sales of bank investment securities . . . . . . 2,487 (608) 1,873 (3,078) 1,575
Other revenues from operations . . . . . ... ........ 187,961 122,449 120,346 91,727 67,163
Total otherincome . . . ... ... ... ... ... 831,095 511,931 477 426 324,672 282,375
Other expense
Salaries and employee benefits . . ... ... oL 740,324 496,990 467,194 353,312 302,544
Equipment and net occupancy . . . . ... 170,623 107,822 111,403 80,960 73,131
Printing, postage and supplies . . . .. ... ... ... ... 36,985 25,378 25512 20,138 17,510
Amortization of goodwill . . . ... ... L. - - 61,820 35,760 31,737
Amortization of core deposit and other intangible assets . . 78,152 51,484 59,816 33,816 17,978
Other costs of operations . . . . .. .............. 422,096 279,937 254,830 194,570 153,780
Total otherexpense . . . . ... ... ... ... ... 1,448,180 961,611 980,575 718,556 596,680
Income before income taxes . . . .. ... .......... 850,670 675,905 551,639 422,303 400,592
Incometaxes . . . . . . ... 276,728 219,153 198,551 154,109 148,191
Netincome. . . . ... ... .. $ 573942 456,752 353,088 268,194 252,401
Dividends declared - Common. . . . ... ... ...... $ 135423 96,858 95,872 51,987 35,128
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M&T BANK CORPORATION AND

Common Sharveholder Datn

SUBSIDIARIES

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Per share
Net income
Basic .. ... $ 5.08 4.94 3.69 3.33 3.24
Diluted . . . ... ... .. 4.95 4.78 3.58 3.24 3.13
Cash dividends declared. . . .. ... ... ... ... 1.20 1.05 1.00 .625 45
Stockholders’ equity at year-end. . . . ... ... .. ... 47.55 34.82 31.54 29.09 23.36
Tangible stockholders’ equity at year-end . . . . ... .. 21.97 22.04 18.54 16.89 15.26
Dividend payoutratio. . . .. ... ... ... ... 23.62% 21.24% 27.19% 19.40% 13.93%

Changes in Interest Income and Expense™

2003 compared with 2002

2002 compared with 2001

Total Resulting from changes in: Total Resulting from changes in:
Increase (decrease) in thousands change Volume Rate change Volume Rate
Interest income
Loans and leases, including fees. . . . . . . . $229.,543 499,739 (270,196)  (222,055) 80,883 (302,938)
Money-market assets
Deposits at banks. . . .. ... ... ... 71 91 (20) (40) 45 (85)
Federal funds sold and
agreements to resell securities . . . . . . (2,580) (1,764) (816) 2,428 3,859 (1,431)
Trading account . . . .. .......... 400 518 (118) (166) 5 (171)
Investment securities
U.S. Treasury and federal agencies. . . . . 24797 60,881 (36,084) (32,496) (26,481) (6,015)
Obligations of states
and political subdivisions . . . . . .. .. (2,001) (1,727) (274) (6,655) (3,668) (2,987)
Other .. ....... .. ... . ...... 36,500 43,166 (6,6606) (4,260) 16,182 (20,448)
Total interest income . . . .. ....... $286,730 (263,250)
Interest expense
Interest-bearing deposits
NOWaccounts . . . .. ........... s (287) 1,123 (1,410) (4,648) 436 (5,084)
Savings deposits. . . ... ... (5,091) 42,013 (47,104) (27,173) 23,938 (51,111)
Time deposits. . . . . . ..o (77,301) (22,736) (54,565)  (216,939) (67,856)  (149,083)
Deposits at foreign office . . . . ... ... 6,531 9,725 (3,194) (2,804) 5,623 (8,427)
Short-term borrowings. . . . ... ... ... (3,659) 16,850 (20,509) (72,087) (5,642) (66,445)
Long-term borrowings. . . . ... ... ... 13,103 69,234 (56,131) (25,432) 33,228 (58,660)
Total interest expense . . . . . .. ..... $(66,704) (349,083)

@ Interest income data ave on o taxable-cquivalent basis. The apportionment of changes resulting from the combined effect of both volume and rate was
based on the separately determined volume and rate changes.
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MANUFACTURERS AND TRADERS TRUST COMPANY
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MANUFACTURERS AND TRADERS TRUST COMPANY

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

AND SUBSIDIARIES

December 31

In thousands 2003 2002
Assets Cash and due from banks. . . . . ... ... ... ... ... .... $ 1,877,504 963,779
Money-market assets . . . ... 206,625 380,970
Investment securities
Available for sale (cost: $6,576,851 in 2003;
$3,342,710in1 2002). . . . . oo 6,625,204 3,425,465
Held to maturity (market value: $108,053 in 2003,
$87,8931in2002). . . . ... 104,872 86,397
Other (market value: $290,022 in 2003;
$268,3021in2002). . . ... 290,022 268,302
Total investment securities . . . . . . . . . oo 7,020,098 3,780,164
Loans and leases, net of unearned discount . . . . .. ..... ... ... 35,505,302 25,394,944
Allowance for credit losses . . . . . . ... ... (610,885) (432,831)
Loansand leases, net . . . . .. ... ... ... ... ... 34894417 24,962,113
Other assets . . . . . v v vt i 5,203,286 2,603,575
Totalassets . . . . . . . . $49,201,930 32,690,601
Liabilities Deposits
Noninterest-bearing. . . . . .. .. ... .. $ 8,423,052 4,099,521
Interest-bearing . . . . . . . ... 24,459,785 17,309,320
Total deposits.. . . . . . o o 32,882,837 21,408,841
Short-term borrowings . . . . . . ... ... 4,463,446 3,429.414
Accrued interest and other liabilities . . . ... .. ... ... ... ..., 956,789 363,533
Long-term borrowings . . . . . . . ..o 4,591,924 4,077,711
Total liabilities . . ... ...... ... .. ... ... 42894996 29,279,499
Stockholder’s equity 6,306,934 3,411,102
Total liabilities and stockholder’s equity. . . . . ... ... ... ... $49,201,930 32,690,601

Member FDIC and Federal Reserve System
One MST Plaza, Buffalo, New York 14203 716/842-4200

New York City Offices and
International Banking Facility
212/350-2000

350 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10022

Highland Lease Corporation
716/848-3233
Consumer leasing

M&T Credit Corporation

716/848-3233
Cayman Islands Branch Consumer lending
Cardinal Avenue No. 6 410/244-3883

George Town, Grand Cayman Commercial lending
Cayman Islands,

British West Indies

and leasing
M&T Financial Corporation

410/244-3883
Capital equipment leasing
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M&T Mortgage Corporation
716/848-4848
Residential mortgage lending

M&T Real Estate Trust
716/848-3808
Commercial real estate lending

M&T Realty

Capital Corporation
410/545-2411
Multi-family commercial
mortgage lending

M&T Securities, Inc.
716/635-9308
Securities brokerage and

investment advisory services

Matthews, Bartlett &
Dedecker, Inc.
716/853-7960
Insurance agency

MTB Investment
Advisors, Inc.
410/986-5600

Investment advisory services



M&T BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

Condensed Balance Sheet

December 31

In thousands 2003 2002
Assets Cash and due from banks. . . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... .... $ 2,656 2,568
Money-market assets . . . .. ... 21,200 -
Investment securities
Available for sale (cost: $120,292 in 2003,
$133230in2002). . . . .o 130,995 139,637
Other (market value: $1,319 in 2003 and $1,316 in 2002). . . . . . .. 1,319 1,316
Total investment SECUrities . . . . . . . . oo vt v v e 132,314 140,953
Loans, net of unearned discount. . . . ... ... ... ... .. ... 317,133 482,840
Allowance for creditlosses . . . . . .. ... oo (3,173) (3,641)
Loans,net . . . . . . .. . 313,960 479,199
Other assets . . . . . v vt 2,943 3,231
Total assets . . . . . . o . $473,073 625,951
Liabilities Deposits
Noninterest-bearing. . . . . .. .. ... L $ - 28
Interest-bearing . . . . . . .. ... 312,089 362,507
Total deposits. . . . . . .. 312,089 362,535
Short-term borrowings . . . . . ... .. .. - 63,100
Accrued interest and other liabilities . . . ... .. ... ... ........ 19,181 17,621
Long-term borrowings . . . . . . . . ... 50,000 100,000
Total liabilities . . . . . ... ... . . . 381,270 543,256
Stockholder’s equity 91,803 82,695
Total liabilities and stockholder’s equity. . . . . .. ...... ... .. $473,073 625,951

Member FDIC

48 Main Street, Onkfield, New York 14125 800/528-6532
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DIVIDEND

REINVESTMENT PLAN

INQUIRIES

INTERNET ADDRESS

QUOTATION AND TRADING OF

COMMON STOCK

AVAILABILITY OF

SEC FORM 10-K

M&T BANK CORPORATION

A plan is available to common stockholders whereby they may invest their
dividends and voluntary cash payments in additional shares of M&T Bank

Corporation’s common stock.

Requests for information about the Dividend Reinvestment Plan and questions
about stock certificates or dividend checks should be addressed to M&T

Bank Corporation’s transfer agent, registrar and dividend disbursing agent:

Registrar and Transter Company
10 Commerce Drive

Cranford, NJ 07016-3572
800,/368-5948

Internet address: www.rtco.com

Questions on other matters and requests for SEC Form 10-K may be

directed to:

M&T Bank Corporation
Investor Relations Department
One M&T Plaza, 12th Floor
Buffalo, NY 14203-2399
716,/842-5445

www.mandtbank.com

Mg&T Bank Corporation’s common stock is traded under the symbol MTB
on the New York Stock Exchange. Quarterly information on the market

price of the stock is included in the table on page 52.

A copy of M&I" Bank Corporation’s Annual Report as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (Form 10-K) will be available at

no charge.



MaT Bank Corporation

[ www.mandtbank.com ]






